
           

TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL  

Monday, MAY 23, 2016
 

 

JUANITA POHL CENTER  

8513 SW Tualatin Road  

Tualatin, OR 97062  

WORK SESSION- Canceled
BUSINESS MEETING begins at 7:00 p.m.

     Mayor Lou Ogden

Council President Monique Beikman

Councilor Wade Brooksby     Councilor Frank Bubenik
Councilor Joelle Davis           Councilor Nancy Grimes

Councilor Ed Truax
 

Welcome! By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the process
of representative government. To encourage that participation, the City Council has specified a
time for your comments on its agenda, following Announcements, at which time citizens may
address the Council concerning any item not on the agenda or to request to have an item
removed from the consent agenda. If you wish to speak on a item already on the agenda,
comment will be taken during that item. Please fill out a Speaker Request Form and submit it to
the Recording Secretary. You will be called forward during the appropriate time; each speaker
will be limited to three minutes, unless the time limit is extended by the Mayor with the consent
of the Council.

Copies of staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred
to on this agenda are available for review on the City website at 
www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings, the Library located at 18878 SW Martinazzi Avenue, and on
file in the Office of the City Manager for public inspection. Any person with a question
concerning any agenda item may call Administration at 503.691.3011 to make an inquiry
concerning the nature of the item described on the agenda.

In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to
participate in this meeting, you should contact Administration at 503.691.3011. Notification
thirty-six (36) hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to
assure accessibility to this meeting.

Council meetings are televised live the day of the meeting through Washington County Cable
Access Channel 28. The replay schedule for Council meetings can be found at www.tvctv.org.
Council meetings can also be viewed by live streaming video on the day of the meeting at 
www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings.

Your City government welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend the City of Tualatin
Council meetings often.

 PROCESS FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings
http://www.tvctv.org/
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/meetings


 PROCESS FOR LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS
A legislative public hearing is typically held on matters which affect the general welfare of the
entire City rather than a specific piece of property.

1. Mayor opens the public hearing and identifies the subject.
2. A staff member presents the staff report.
3. Public testimony is taken.
4. Council then asks questions of staff, the applicant, or any member of the
    public who testified.
5. When the Council has finished questions, the Mayor closes the public
    hearing.
6. When the public hearing is closed, Council will then deliberate to a decision
    and a motion will be made to either approve, deny, or continue the public
    hearing.
 

PROCESS FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARINGS
A quasi-judicial public hearing is typically held for annexations, planning district changes,
conditional use permits, comprehensive plan changes, and appeals from subdivisions,
partititions and architectural review.

1. Mayor opens the public hearing and identifies the case to be considered.
2. A staff member presents the staff report.
3. Public testimony is taken:

a) In support of the application
b) In opposition or neutral

4. Council then asks questions of staff, the applicant, or any member of the
    public who testified.
5. When Council has finished its questions, the Mayor closes the public
    hearing.
6. When the public hearing is closed, Council will then deliberate to a decision
    and a motion will be made to either approve, approve with conditions, or 
    deny the application, or continue the public hearing. 
 

TIME LIMITS FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS
The purpose of time limits on public hearing testimony is to provide all provided all interested
persons with an adequate opportunity to present and respond to testimony. All persons providing
testimony shall be limited to 3 minutes, subject to the right of the Mayor to amend or waive the
time limits.

EXECUTIVE SESSION INFORMATION
An Executive Session is a meeting of the City Council that is closed to the public to allow the City
Council to discuss certain confidential matters. An Executive Session may be conducted as a
separate meeting or as a portion of the regular Council meeting. No final decisions or actions
may be made in Executive Session. In many, but not all, circumstances, members of the news
media may attend an Executive Session.

The City Council may go into Executive Session for certain reasons specified by Oregon law.
These reasons include, but are not limited to: ORS 192.660(2)(a) employment of personnel;
ORS 192.660(2)(b) dismissal or discipline of personnel; ORS 192.660(2)(d) labor relations; ORS
192.660(2)(e) real property transactions; ORS 192.660(2)(f) information or records exempt by
law from public inspection; ORS 192.660(2)(h) current litigation or litigation likely to be filed; and
ORS 192.660(2)(i) employee performance of chief executive officer.

 



 

OFFICIAL AGENDA OF THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR MAY 23,
2016

             

A. CALL TO ORDER
Pledge of Allegiance

 

B. ANNOUNCEMENTS
 

1.   Proclamation Designating the Week of May 15-21, 2016 as Emergency Medical
Services Week in the City of Tualatin

 

2. Tualatin Chamber of Commerce Trail Trekker 5K Check Presentation
 

3. New Employee Introduction- Chris Ragland, Building Official
 

4. New Employee- Sara Harris, Office Assistant II
 

C. CITIZEN COMMENTS
This section of the agenda allows anyone to address the Council regarding any issue not on the
agenda, or to request to have an item removed from the consent agenda. The duration for each
individual speaking is limited to 3 minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers will
be referred to City staff for follow-up and report at a future meeting.

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one vote. The Mayor will ask Councilors if there is anyone
who wishes to remove any item from the Consent Agenda for discussion and consideration. If you wish
to request an item to be removed from the consent agenda you should do so during the Citizen
Comment section of the agenda. The matters removed from the Consent Agenda will be considered
individually at the end of this Agenda under, Items Removed from the Consent Agenda. The entire
Consent Agenda, with the exception of items removed from the Consent Agenda to be discussed, is
then voted upon by roll call under one motion.

 

1.   Consideration of Approval of the Minutes for the Regular Meeting of May 9, 2016
 

2.   Consideration of Resolution No. 5276-16 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Intergovernmental Agreements with Washington County for Library Services.

 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS – Quasi-Judicial
 

1.   Continued from March 14, 2016: Consideration of a Petition Requesting
Annexation of Property at 18600 SW Pacific Highway (Tax Map 2S1 21A, Tax Lot
1100) (ANN-15-0002)

 

F. GENERAL BUSINESS



F. GENERAL BUSINESS
If you wish to speak on a general business item please fill out a Speaker Request Form and you will be
called forward during the appropriate item. The duration for each individual speaking is limited to 3
minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers will be referred to City staff for
follow-up and report at a future meeting.

 

1.   Consideration of Resolution No. 5275-16 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
an Annexation Agreement and Restrictive Covenant with Stein Woodburn LLC for
Property Located at 18600 SW Pacific Highway (TAX MAP 2S121A, TAX LOT
001100). 

 

G. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
Items removed from the Consent Agenda will be discussed individually at this time. The Mayor may
impose a time limit on speakers addressing these issues.

 

H. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COUNCILORS
 

I. ADJOURNMENT
 



City Council Meeting
Meeting Date: 05/23/2016  
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Proclamation Designating the

Week of May 15-21, 2016 as
Emergency Medical Services
Week in the City of Tualatin

ANNOUNCEMENTS
Proclamation Designating the Week of May 15-21, 2016 as Emergency Medical Services Week
in the City of Tualatin

Proclamation 



Proclamation 
 

Proclamation Designating the Week of May 15-21, 2016 as 
Emergency Medical Services Week in the City of Tualatin 

 WHEREAS emergency medical services are a vital public service; and 

 WHEREAS the members of emergency medical services teams are ready to provide 
lifesaving care to those in need 24 hours a day, seven days a week; and 

 WHEREAS access to quality emergency care dramatically improves the survival and 
recovery rate of those who experience sudden illness or injury; and 

 WHEREAS the emergency medical services system consists of emergency 
physicians, emergency nurses, emergency medical technicians, paramedics, firefighters, 
educators, administrators and others; and 

 WHEREAS the members of emergency medical services teams, whether career or 
volunteer, engage in thousands of hours of specialized training and continuing education 
to enhance their lifesaving skills; and 

 WHEREAS it is appropriate to recognize the value and the accomplishments of 
emergency medical services providers by designating Emergency Medical Services Week;  

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TUALATIN, OREGON that: 

 The week of May 15-21, 2016 is designated as Emergency Medical Services Week in 
the City of Tualatin to call attention to Emergency Medical Services providers for the 
outstanding service they provide to the community. The City Council also calls upon the 
community to express their thanks to these the men and women for their outstanding 
dedication to their field.  

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of May, 2016. 
 
       CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 
 
 
       BY _________________________ 
         Mayor 
 
       ATTEST: 
 

BY _________________________ 
         City Recorder 



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Nicole Morris, Deputy City Recorder

DATE: 05/23/2016

SUBJECT: Consideration of Approval of the Minutes for the Regular Meeting of May 9, 2016

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
The issue before the Council is to approve the minutes for the Regular Meeting of May 9, 2016.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff respectfully recommends that the Council adopt the attached minutes.

Attachments: Council Regular Meeting Minutes of May 9, 2016



  

OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR MAY 9,
2016 

 

Present: Mayor Lou Ogden; Council President Monique Beikman; Councilor Wade Brooksby;
Councilor Frank Bubenik; Councilor Joelle Davis; Councilor Ed Truax 

Absent: Councilor Nancy Grimes 

Staff
Present:

City Manager Sherilyn Lombos; City Attorney Sean Brady; Police Chief Kent Barker;
Community Services Director Paul Hennon; Finance Director Don Hudson; Planning
Manager Aquilla Hurd-Ravich; Deputy City Recorder Nicole Morris; Teen Program
Specialist Julie Ludemann; Program Coordinator Kathy Kaatz; Maintenance Services
Division Manager Clayton Reynolds; Assistant to the City Manager Tanya Williams;
Assistant City Manager Alice Cannon; Library Manager Jerianne Thompson; Senior
Planner Karen Fox; Public Works Director Jerry Postema 

 

               

A. CALL TO ORDER
Pledge of Allegiance

 
  Mayor Ogden called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.
 

B. ANNOUNCEMENTS
 

1. Update on the Youth Advisory Council's Activities for May 2016   

 
  Members of the Youth Advisory Council (YAC) presented a PowerPoint on their

latest activities and upcoming events. YAC is preparing for their annual Project
FRIENDS event to be held May 20. The event is a daylong anti-bullying workshop
for Tualatin 5th graders. A Youth Summit was held and 27 youth attended. There
were roundtable discussions on stress management, drugs and alcohol, youth
employment, youth leaderships and involvement, and transportation. The
information that was gathered during the summit will be used to assist in future
decision making. The Teen Kaleidoscope Run is set to be held June 17 at Ibach
Park. All youth 6-12th grade are invited to participate. 

 

2. Proclamation Declaring the Week of May 15 - 21, 2016 as “National Police Week”
in the City of Tualatin

  

 
  Councilor Davis read the proclamation declaring the week of May 15 - 21, 2016 as

“National Police Week” in the City of Tualatin.

Councilor Davis stated the Tualatin Police Foundation will hold a "Breakfast with
the Chief" Fundraiser on May 10, 7 a.m., at the Tualatin Country Club. More
information is available on their website.

May 9, 2016
1 of 3 

  



 

3. New Employee Introduction- Karen Fox, Senior Planner
 
  Assistant City Manager Alice Canon introduced Senior Planner Karen Fox. The

Council welcomed her. 
 

4. New Employee Introduction- Denny Larios, Building Inspector
 
  Assistant City Manager Alice Canon introduced Building Inspector Denny Larios.

The Council welcomed him.
 

5. New Employee Introduction- Eli Sanders, Police Officer
 
  Police Chief Kent Barker introduced Police Officer Eli Sanders. The Council

welcomed him. 
 

6. New Employee Introduction- Brent Powell, Police Officer
 
  Police Chief Kent Barker introduced Police Offer Brent Powell. The Council

welcomed him. 
 

C. CITIZEN COMMENTS
This section of the agenda allows anyone to address the Council regarding any issue not on the
agenda, or to request to have an item removed from the consent agenda. The duration for each
individual speaking is limited to 3 minutes. Matters requiring further investigation or detailed answers
will be referred to City staff for follow-up and report at a future meeting.

 
  John Bartholomew, Tualatin America's Best Community Team Member,

announced the team as one of the eight finalist in the competition. The ABC Team
received a $100,000 grant to begin putting their revitalization plans into action
over the next year.

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA
The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one vote. The Mayor will ask Councilors if there is anyone
who wishes to remove any item from the Consent Agenda for discussion and consideration. If you
wish to request an item to be removed from the consent agenda you should do so during the Citizen
Comment section of the agenda. The matters removed from the Consent Agenda will be considered
individually at the end of this Agenda under, Items Removed from the Consent Agenda. The entire
Consent Agenda, with the exception of items removed from the Consent Agenda to be discussed, is
then voted upon by roll call under one motion.

 
  MOTION by Council President Monique Beikman, SECONDED by Councilor Frank

Bubenik to adopt the consent agenda.  
 

Aye:  Mayor Lou Ogden, Council President Monique Beikman, Councilor Wade
Brooksby, Councilor Frank Bubenik, Councilor Joelle Davis, Councilor Ed
Truax 

Other:  Councilor Nancy Grimes (Absent) 
MOTION CARRIED 

 

May 9, 2016
2 of 3 

  



1. Consideration of Approval of the Minutes for the Special Council Work Session of
April 12, 2016 and the Regular Meeting of April 25, 2016

  

 

2. Consideration of Approval of 2016 Liquor License Renewals Late Submittals   

 

3. Consideration of Resolution No. 5274-16 to Close Out Funds Considered
Unnecessary and Transfer Remaining Balances to the General Fund

  

 

4. Consideration of Resolution No. 5273-16 Authorizing Solid Waste and Recycling
Rate Adjustment with an Effective Date of May 1, 2016

  

 

E. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
Items removed from the Consent Agenda will be discussed individually at this time. The Mayor may
impose a time limit on speakers addressing these issues.

 

F. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COUNCILORS
 
  Councilor Bubenik stated Deer Creek Elementary will hold their annual School

Carnival this Friday, May 13. They are seeking volunteers. Contact the school for
more information.

 

G. ADJOURNMENT
 
  Mayor Ogden adjourned the meeting at 7:29 p.m.
 

 

Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

____________________________ / Nicole Morris, Recording Secretary

____________________________ / Lou Ogden, Mayor
 

May 9, 2016
3 of 3 

  



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Jerianne Thompson, Library Manager
Paul Hennon, Community Services Director

DATE: 05/23/2016

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 5276-16 Authorizing the City Manager to
Execute Intergovernmental Agreements with Washington County for Library
Services.

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
The Council will consider three intergovernmental agreements that are required for continued
participation in the Washington County Cooperative Library Services (WCCLS).

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff respectfully recommends Council adoption of the attached resolution authorizing the City
Manager to sign the Public Library Services Agreement, the WCCLS Information Network
Agreement, and the Second Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Washington County holds three common Intergovernmental Agreements with nine cities and
three non-profit associations on behalf of Washington County Cooperative Library Services
(WCCLS). The City of Tualatin is a signatory to these Agreements. Two IGAs are presented as
revisions for approval, and one is presented as an Amendment.

Execution of the Public Library Services Agreement (PLSA), the WCCLS Information Network
Agreement, and the Second Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA Second
Amendment) is required for participation in WCCLS.

PLSA
The PLSA defines the responsibilities of WCCLS and the nine cities and three non-profit
associations that provide public library service to county residents. The Agreement also outlines
the central support services provided by WCCLS to member libraries, and serves as the primary
vehicle for distribution of county funds to public library service providers. Beginning July 1,
2016, there will be twelve Contractors: the cities of Banks, Beaverton, Cornelius, Forest Grove,
Hillsboro, North Plains, Sherwood, Tigard, and Tualatin, and the Aloha, Cedar Mill and Garden
Home community library associations. With the passage of the 2015 WCCLS library local option
levy, a new five-year Agreement is presented for approval. The WCCLS Executive Board has



levy, a new five-year Agreement is presented for approval. The WCCLS Executive Board has
recommended adoption of this new Agreement for the term covering the same five-year period
as the WCCLS Local Option Levy, July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2021. Annual distribution of
WCCLS funds to the City of Tualatin will be $1,540,664 in FY16-17 and is projected to increase
3% annually for the remainder of the term.
 
WCCLS Information Network Agreement
The WCCLS Information Network Agreement defines the responsibilities of WCCLS member
libraries for use of the shared Information Network including the integrated library system
software, the WCCLS.org website and its resources, databases and e-content provided by
WCCLS for library staff and the public, Internet access, software, hardware and peripheral
products provided to member libraries by WCCLS, and the central site hardware, software and
telecommunications network operated by WCCLS.  The term of this Agreement is from July 1,
2016, through June 30, 2021.
 
IGA Second Amendment
The IGA Second Amendment amends an IGA approved in 2006, and amended in 2007, which
defines the membership and governance structure for WCCLS and the duties of the Executive
Board and Policy Group. This Amendment updates some language in the original Agreement
and adds Aloha Community Library as an additional member. This Amendment would go into
effect on July 1, 2016.

OUTCOMES OF DECISION:
If approved, the City will continue to be a member library in WCCLS. If not approved, the City
would not be a member library of WCCLS and would forgo all financial and other benefits of
membership, including approximately $8,180,000 in revenues over the five-year term of the
agreements.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
All funds received from WCCLS must be spent on the provision of library services, including but
not limited to operating and capital expenditures. Eighty percent of the total annual payment will
be received by December 31 and the balance received by April 15 of each year. The distribution
to the Tualatin Public Library will be $1,540,664 in FY16-17 and is projected to increase 3%
annually for the remainder of the term. See Exhibit A to the attached PLSA for the distribution for
each fiscal year between FY16/17 and FY20/21.

Attachments: Resolution 5276-16 - WCCLS Agreements
PLSA
Information Network
Second Amendment to IGA
WCCLS IGA



RESOLUTION NO. 5276-16  Page 1 of 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  5276-16  

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS WITH WASHINGTON COUNTY FOR 
LIBRARY SERVICES. 

 
   WHEREAS, City is a member library of the Washington County Cooperative 
Library Services (WCCLS); and 
 

WHEREAS, WCCLS is an agency of Washington County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and Washington County wish to enter into various 

agreements relating to WCCLS library services;  
 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TUALATIN, OREGON, that: 
 
 Section 1. The Council authorizes the City Manager to sign the following 
agreements, which are attached and incorporated by reference: 
 

A. Public Library Services Agreement; 
 

B. WCCLS Information Network Agreement; and 
 

C. Second Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement Washington County 
Cooperative Library Services. 

 
 Section 2.  This resolution is effective upon adoption. 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of May, 2016. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 
 
BY_________________________ 
                 City Attorney 

CITY OF TUALATIN OREGON 
 
BY       
                      Mayor 
 
ATTEST 

 
BY      
                  City Recorder 
 

 



Public Library Services Agreement 2016 

Public Library Services Agreement, 5/6/2016   1 

Public Library Services Agreement  
 

This Agreement is made by and between Washington County, a home rule 
subdivision of the State of Oregon hereinafter referred to as “County”, on behalf of 
Washington County Cooperative Library Services, hereinafter referred to as “WCCLS,” 
and the Cities of Banks, Beaverton, Cornelius, Forest Grove, Hillsboro, North Plains, 
Sherwood, Tigard, and Tualatin, and Aloha Community Library Association, Cedar Mill 
Community Library Association and Garden Home Community Library Association, 
hereinafter referred to as “Contractor(s).”  County and Contractors are collectively known 
as “the Parties.”  WHEREAS, Washington County has approved funding for countywide 
library services including non-fee access by County residents to public libraries operated 
by Contractors; and 
 

WHEREAS the Parties originally entered into this Agreement in 1976 and the 
Agreement has had subsequent amendments and renewals including the last one entered 
into on June 21, 2011 (MO #11-165); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties to this Agreement are either units of local government 

empowered by ORS 190.010 to enter into an intergovernmental agreement or are private 
non-profit agencies operating public libraries; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to maintain and provide residents of Washington 
County with access to quality public library services and Contractors can provide such 
access and services. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, 
the Parties agree as follows: 
 
1. DEFINITIONS 
 

The following definitions shall be used in this Agreement: 
 
A. WCCLS (Washington County Cooperative Library Services) – An agency 

of County government that exists to coordinate, contract for or provide a 
full range of library and information services to all residents of the county. 

 
B. WCCLS Information Network– The system that includes: the shared 

integrated library system software (circulation, public access catalog, 
cataloging, serials control and acquisitions software); the WCCLS.org 
website and its resources; other databases and e-content provided by 
WCCLS for Contractors’ staff or public access; wireless Internet access 
for the public; central site hardware and software; software, hardware or 
peripheral products provided to Contractors and supported by WCCLS; 
and the telecommunications network linking Contractors to the system and 
for Internet access. 

 



Public Library Services Agreement 2016 

Public Library Services Agreement, 5/6/2016   2 

C. Qualified Borrowers – All Washington County residents, residents of 
counties or cities with which Washington County has reciprocal 
borrowing agreements, and paying card holders. 

 
 
D. West Slope Community Library - The public library that is a department 

of WCCLS and managed by the County.  For purposes of this Agreement, 
West Slope is a Contractor. 

 
E. Oregon Public Library Statistical Report – The report mandated by  ORS 

357.520, containing statistics and provided on an annual basis to the 
Oregon State Library via a reporting format determined by the State 
Library.  Report data is typically due October 1 of each year.   

 
F. WCCLS Executive Board – the board established to advise the Board of 

County Commissioners and the Cooperative Library Services Director on 
matters pertaining to the funding for countywide library services, 
distribution of financial resources by WCCLS for the provision of 
countywide public library services, and long term governance and funding 
strategies.   

 
G. WCCLS Policy Group – the Board established to provide technical and 

professional support and advice to the WCCLS Executive Board, to 
develop and implement policies and procedures for delivery of 
countywide public library services, and to advise the Cooperative Library 
Services Director. 

 
2. TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement shall be in effect from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2021, 
except as otherwise provided in Section 11 of this Agreement. 
 

3. FUNDS 
 

As compensation to Contractor for the services to be provided pursuant to this 
Agreement, WCCLS agrees to distribute funds to Contractor on the basis set forth 
in Section 5 and the Payment Schedule set forth in Section 7.  
 
By receipt of funds from WCCLS each Contractor agrees to expend those funds 
to provide library services according to Contractor’s established policies, and to 
ensure that Contractor’s library facilities are open for public use by all Qualified 
Borrowers.  Contractors must spend all funds received from WCCLS on the 
provision of library services.  
 
 
 



Public Library Services Agreement 2016 

Public Library Services Agreement, 5/6/2016   3 

4. MINIMUM OPERATING REQUIREMENTS 
By receipt of funds form WCCLS each Contractor agrees that Contractor’s library 
facilities will be open to the public at least 45 hours per week, and to employ at 
least one full-time employee who will serve as the primary contact with WCCLS. 

 
5. FUNDING DISTRIBUTION 
 

A. WCCLS shall determine the total payment to be made to each Contractor 
during the term of this Agreement by using the method set forth in this 
Section and based on figures set forth in EXHIBIT A “Funding 
Distributions.”   

 
B. Payments to Contractors shall be budgeted in three (3) funding distribution 

pools.   
1. Pool One. If the countywide assessed value increases at least 3% 

annually, for FY2016-17 the total amount in Pool One shall be 
$23,313,017 as identified in EXHIBIT A. Thereafter, if 
countywide assessed value increases at least 3% annually 
Contractors shall each receive increases of 3% on an annual basis 
for the Term of this Agreement.  

 
2. Pool Two. After actual County assessed valuation, tax levies and 

taxes are certified, County will determine WCCLS revenue which 
is subject to adjustment to actual revenue.  WCCLS will use the 
WCCLS actual revenue to first fully fund Pool One distributions 
and budgeted WCCLS support and outreach services, including the 
Jump Start Operating Fund.  WCCLS may then allocate additional 
funds to Pool Two. The WCCLS Executive Board shall 
recommend whether funds from Pool Two shall be distributed to 
Contractors, and if so, on what basis.  Typically, the WCCLS 
Executive Board shall make the recommendation in February of 
each year.  Any distribution of funds from Pool Two shall be 
distributed on a separate schedule from Pool One.  

 
3. Jump Start Operating Fund.  WCCLS shall create a third funding 

pool and use funds from this pool to support Contractors that 
physically expand a library building or add a new library branch 
during the term of this Agreement. Funds shall be allocated to 
support the operations of said expansions. WCCLS shall allocate 
funds through an application process created by the WCCLS 
Executive Board. Funds from this third funding pool will be added 
to the Contractor’s Pool 1 base allocation at the beginning of the 
next Agreement term. 

 
 
 



Public Library Services Agreement 2016 

Public Library Services Agreement, 5/6/2016   4 

6. ADJUSTMENTS IN PAYMENTS 
 
A. WCCLS may adjust payments if funding for payments noted in 5.B.1 is 

less than projected.  WCCLS will reduce amounts paid to each Contractor 
in an amount proportionate to each library’s percentage of the total 
amount available for payment. 

 
B. WCCLS shall notify the Contractors in writing of any adjustments under 

this Section after the County adopts the budget for the subsequent fiscal 
year.  If reductions in revenue are necessary after the beginning of a fiscal 
year, County shall give sixty (60) days notification to Contractors, if 
possible. 

 
7. PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

 
A. WCCLS shall make payments to those Contractors that are cities as 

follows: 
1. 80% (eighty percent) of the total annual payment shall be made on 

or before December 31; and 
2. 20% (twenty percent) of the total annual payment shall be made on 

or before April 15. 
 
B. Notwithstanding paragraph 7.A above, a city not formerly a party to a 

Public Library Services Agreement with WCCLS, that establishes a public 
library and becomes a party to this Agreement, shall be entitled to receive 
payment on a monthly basis during the term of this Agreement.  The 
monthly payment shall be 1/12 of the total annual payment.  In addition, 
WCCLS agrees that any city to which this subsection applies shall be 
entitled to receive monthly payments for the entire term of any renewal or 
successor agreement to which it becomes a party, provided funds are 
available.  

 
C. WCCLS shall make payments to those Contractors that are community 

libraries, specifically Aloha Community Library Association, Cedar Mill 
Community Library Association, Garden Home Community Library 
Association and the West Slope Community Library, on a monthly basis.  
The monthly payment shall be 1/12 of the total annual payment. 

 
8. SPECIAL LIBRARY FUND 

 
County, on behalf of WCCLS, shall maintain a Special Library Fund that shall 

include: 
A. Any remaining funds from a previous year which shall be carried over to 

the next year; 
B. All property tax collections made under all County library local option 

levies; 



Public Library Services Agreement 2016 

Public Library Services Agreement, 5/6/2016   5 

C. All transfers of county general funds made to WCCLS; 
D. All interest earnings on the Special Library Fund, in accordance with ORS 

294.080(1); and 
E. Other revenues for library services. 
 

9. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY WCCLS 
  

WCCLS agrees to provide the following central support and outreach services to 
Contractors and West Slope Community Library: 

A. Reciprocal borrowing with other metropolitan area public libraries and 
Oregon Library Passport Program participating libraries; 

B. Coordination of countywide library services among Contractors and with 
regional and state library service providers; 

C. Coordination of selection and purchase of shared electronic products 
available through WCCLS.org, coordination of training and education for 
adult services staff, coordination of countywide adult programming such 
as Summer Reading, and interlibrary loan borrowing from and lending to 
libraries outside of Washington County; 

D. Outreach services to special populations of Washington County residents, 
including, but not limited to, circulation of materials to those who cannot 
get to a public library (homebound), information and education about 
library-related services for child care providers and the children in their 
care, Latino and other cultural communities. 

E. Coordination and support of countywide youth services, including 
Summer Reading Programs and shared resources, coordination of training 
and education of youth services staff; 

F. Courier pick-up and delivery of materials between Contractors and 
provision of courier connections to regional library delivery systems; 

G. Planning for long-term growth and development of countywide library 
services;  

H. Operation and maintenance of the WCCLS Information Network as 
defined in the WCCLS Information Network Agreement; and 

I. Other services to address Long Range Service Plan goals as agreed upon 
by the Parties. 

 
10. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY CONTRACTORS 

 
A. Each Contractor agrees to ensure equity of access to materials, resources 

and services for all Qualified Borrowers.   
B. Qualified Borrowers will not be charged a fee for the initial circulation or 

renewal of library materials. 
C. Each Contractor shall apply all fees and policies uniformly to all Qualified 

Borrowers.  Such fees may include special service and overdue fees.  
D. Each Contractor shall designate a staff member who will work with 

WCCLS and administer this Agreement on behalf of Contractor.  
Contractor shall authorized the  staff member to receive and give any 



Public Library Services Agreement 2016 

Public Library Services Agreement, 5/6/2016   6 

notices that may be required under this Agreement.  Unless otherwise 
designated, this shall be the Library Director for each Contractor.  

E. Each Contractor shall meet all requirements for Level 5 Libraries as 
defined in the Admission of New Public Libraries to Washington County 
Cooperative Library Services, as approved by the WCCLS Executive 
Board May 23, 2012 and subsequent revisions. 

F. Each Contractor shall abide by shared policies and procedures as agreed 
upon by the WCCLS Policy Group. 

G. Each Contractor shall identify its membership in WCCLS through 
identification marks, and through public communications in selected 
library printed materials, websites or other publicity materials.   

 
11. RECORD KEEPING 

 
A. WCCLS shall provide each Contractor with a copy of the County’s annual 

audit, upon request by Contractor. 
 
B. Each Contractor shall provide WCCLS with a copy of Contractor’s annual 

audit.  For purposes of this Section, the following requirements shall 
apply: 
1. For Contractors which are cities, the audit shall be that of the city, 

and shall be supplied upon request of WCCLS. 
2. For Contractors which are community libraries (specifically Aloha 

Community Library Association, Cedar Mill Community Library 
Association and Garden Home Community Library Association), 
the audit shall be the result of an annual review of the Contractor’s 
financial statements made by an independent certified public 
accountant in accordance with standards of the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants, and shall be supplied by 
December 31st of each year to WCCLS.  

 
C. Each Contractor shall provide WCCLS with a copy of its Oregon Public 

Library Statistical Report. 
 

12. TERMINATION 
 
A. County may terminate this Agreement upon sixty (60) days written notice 

for a termination date no sooner than  the end of the current  fiscal year, if 
it determines, in good faith through an open, public process, that:  
1. The public interest would be served by such termination; or 
2. Adequate funds are not available. 

 
B. Each Contractor shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon 

sixty (60) days written notice, if Contractor determines, in good faith, that: 
1. The public interest in its jurisdiction or area of service would be 

served by such termination; or 



Public Library Services Agreement 2016 

Public Library Services Agreement, 5/6/2016   7 

2. Appropriated funds for Contractor are less than the amount 
reasonably anticipated. 

 
C. County and each Contractor may terminate participation in this Agreement 

separately, and Agreements between remaining parties and County shall 
remain in effect. 

 
D. If Contractor terminates its participation in the Agreement, the County 

shall distribute funds to the Contractor  prorated to the date of termination. 
 
13. INSURANCE 
 

Each contractor to this Agreement shall maintain comprehensive general liability 
insurance or adequate reserves in a program of self-insurance covering personal 
injury and property damage for the Contractors, its employees and agents.  The 
insurance coverage shall cover the minimum amount specified in ORS 30.271.  
For Contractors which are not units of local government, certification of insurance 
shall be provided to WCCLS and all such insurance coverage shall name 
Washington County, its officers, employees and agents as additional insureds. 
 

14. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS 
 
The Parties shall comply with all local, state, and federal ordinances, statutes, 
laws and regulations that are applicable to the services provided under this 
Agreement. 
A. Equal Opportunity Contractor shall not discriminate against its employees 

(including applicants for employment) on the basis of race, color, religion, 
gender, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, age, or marital status 
except in case of bona fide occupational qualifications as defined and 
provided by applicable federal or state law. No person shall be denied or 
subjected to discrimination in receipt of the benefits of any services or 
activities made possible by or resulting from this Agreement on the 
grounds of race, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, national origin, 
disability, age, or marital status.  Any violation of this provision shall be 
grounds for cancellation, termination or suspension of the Agreement in 
whole or in part by County. 

 
B. Public Contracting Statutes ORS 279B.200 through 279B.240 and 

279C.500 through 279C.870, as applicable, are incorporated herein by 
reference.  The Contractor agrees to: 
1. Make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying, to 

Contractor, labor or material for the performance of the work 
provided for in this Agreement; 

2.   Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund 
incurred in the performance of the Agreement: 



Public Library Services Agreement 2016 

Public Library Services Agreement, 5/6/2016   8 

3.   Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the 
County on account of any labor or material furnished pursuant to 
this Agreement; and 

4.   Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from 
employees pursuant to ORS 316.167. 

 
15. INDEMNIFICATION 

 
Each party agrees to hold harmless, defend, and indemnify each other, including 
its officers, agents, and employees, against all claims, demands, actions and suits 
(including all attorney fees and costs) arising from the indemnitor’s performance 
of this Agreement where the loss or claim is attributable to the negligent acts or 
omissions of that party.  If the indemnifying party is a unit of local government, 
such indemnification shall be subject to the limitations of liability for public 
bodies set forth in the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.302, and the 
Oregon Constitution.  
 

16. DEBT LIMITATION 
 
This Agreement is expressly subject to the debt limitation of Oregon Counties set 
forth in Article XI, Section 10 of the Oregon Constitution, and is contingent upon 
appropriation of funds therefor.  
 

17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 

Each party is an independent contractor with respect to each other party and has 
no control over the work performed by the other.   No party is an agent or 
employer of another party.  No party or its employees is entitled to participate in a 
pension plan, insurance, bonus, or similar benefits provided by any other party. 

 
18. NOTICE 
 

Each party shall give the other immediate written notice of any action or suit filed 
or any claim made against that party that may result in litigation in any way 
related to this Agreement. 

.  
18. COUNTERPARTS 
 

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be 
an original, all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 
19. CAPTIONS 
 

Captions and headings used in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall 
not be construed or interpreted so as to enlarge or diminish the rights or 
obligations of the parties hereto. 



Public Library Services Agreement 2016 

Public Library Services Agreement, 5/6/2016   9 

 
20. SEVERABILITY 
 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Agreement 
is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent 
provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 
of this Agreement unless the result of the holding is a failure of consideration of 
any party. 

 
21. AMENDMENT 
 
This Agreement may only be amended in writing and signed by all of the Parties.  
 
FOR THE CONTRACTOR:   FOR WASHINGTON COUNTY: 

 
_____________________   ________________________ 
SIGNATURE     SIGNATURE 
           
_____________    ______________   
TITLE      TITLE      

       
DATE___________    DATE_________         
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________   
COUNTY COUNSEL 



WCCLS Public Library Pool 1 Funding For FY16-17 through FY20-21, with one-time adjustment in FY16-17

Exhibit A

3% annual increases ->
Library FY15-16 

Distribution
APPLY 4% 
increase to 
"catch up"

FY16-17 
Distribution 
(with base 

adjustments)

FY17-18 
Distribution

FY18-19 
Distribution

FY19-20 
Distribution

FY20-21 
Distribution

$ increase 
over 5 yrs

% incr 
over 5 
yrs

Aloha 400,000$        450,000$        500,000$           515,000$        530,450$        
Banks 135,596$         141,020$          167,705$        172,737$        177,919$           183,256$        188,754$        53,158$          39.2%
Beaverton 4,934,347$      5,131,720$      5,490,941$     5,655,669$     5,825,339$        6,000,099$     6,180,102$     1,245,756$     25.2%
Cedar Mill 3,645,857$      3,791,691$      3,981,275$     4,100,714$     4,223,735$        4,350,447$     4,480,961$     835,104$        22.9%
Cornelius 178,194$         185,321$          205,707$        211,878$        218,234$           224,781$        231,525$        53,331$          29.9%
Forest Grove 734,507$         763,887$          802,081$        826,144$        850,928$           876,456$        902,750$        168,243$        22.9%
Garden Home 379,103$         394,267$          413,980$        426,400$        439,192$           452,368$        465,939$        86,836$          22.9%
Hillsboro 4,582,623$      4,765,928$      5,004,224$     5,154,351$     5,308,981$        5,468,251$     5,632,298$     1,049,675$     22.9%
North Plains 104,437$         108,614$          168,717$        173,778$        178,992$           184,361$        189,892$        85,455$          81.8%
Sherwood 775,590$         806,613$          846,944$        872,352$        898,523$           925,479$        953,243$        177,653$        22.9%
Tigard 3,238,976$      3,368,535$      3,469,591$     3,573,679$     3,680,889$        3,791,316$     3,905,055$     666,079$        20.6%
Tualatin 1,410,865$      1,467,300$      1,540,664$     1,586,884$     1,634,491$        1,683,526$     1,734,031$     323,167$        22.9%
West Slope 743,265$         772,996$          796,186$        820,071$        844,673$           870,013$        896,114$        152,849$        20.6%
Totals 20,863,358$    21,697,893$    23,288,017$  24,024,657$  24,781,897$      25,525,354$  26,291,114$  5,427,756$     26.0%

Basic Library Threshold: (Included in FY16-17 distributions)
Open 45 hours per week, 1FTE position (Director)
Library Net additional
North Plains 50,327$          (Gets NPPL 1FTE Director)
Banks 16,814$          (gets BAL 3 more hrs/week)
Total 67,141$          



WCCLS Information Network Agreement 2016 

WCCLS Information Network Agreement  5/6/2016- page 1  

WCCLS Information Network Agreement 
 

 
This WCCLS Network Agreement, hereafter referred to as “Agreement,” is made by and 
between Washington County, a home rule subdivision of the State of Oregon hereinafter referred 
to as "County", by and through  Washington County Cooperative Library Services, hereinafter 
referred to as "WCCLS," and the Cities of Banks, Beaverton, Cornelius, Forest Grove, Hillsboro, 
North Plains, Sherwood, Tigard and Tualatin, Aloha Community Library Association, Cedar 
Mill Community Library Association, Garden Home Community Library Association, Tuality 
Healthcare and Oregon College of Art and Craft, hereinafter referred to as "Network Users."  
County and Network Users are collectively known as “the Parties.” 
 
WHEREAS the Parties originally entered into this Agreement in 1986 and the Agreement has 
had subsequent amendments and renewals including the last one entered into on July 11, 2011. 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties to this Agreement are either units of local government 
empowered by ORS 190.010 to enter into an intergovernmental agreement, or are private non-
profit agencies operating libraries, and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Parties desire to continue to provide residents of Washington County 
with access to public library services and can provide such access and services, and  
 

WHEREAS, WCCLS has purchased and installed an integrated library system  and 
operates and maintains a secure telecommunications network to facilitate connections between 
Network Users’ libraries and to the Internet, and desires to make this system available for use by 
libraries in Washington County;   
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the 
Parties agree as follows: 
 
1. DEFINITIONS 
 
 The following definitions shall be used in constructing the following phrases, terms and 

abbreviations in this Agreement: 
 
A) WCCLS (Washington County Cooperative Library Services) - An agency of County 

government that exists to coordinate, contract for or provide a full range of library and 
information services to all residents of the county. 

 
B) WCCLS Information Network– The system that includes: the shared integrated library 

system software (circulation, public access catalog, cataloging, serials control and 
acquisitions software); the WCCLS.org website and its resources; other databases and e-
content provided by WCCLS for Network Users’ library staff or public access; wireless 
Internet access for the public; central site hardware and software; software, hardware or 
peripheral products provided to Network Users’ libraries and supported by WCCLS; and the 
telecommunications network linking Network Users to the system and for Internet access, 
hereinafter referred to as the “Network.” 



WCCLS Information Network Agreement 2016 

WCCLS Information Network Agreement  5/6/2016- page 2  

 
C) Host – Any intelligent device connected to the Network that is addressable by a 

network/transport protocol.  All workstations, network printers, routers, etc. are hosts.  
 
D) Broadband Users’ Group – A membership organization through which WCCLS procures 

Internet and firewall network services.   
 
E) WCCLS Policy Group – The board established to provide technical and professional support 

and advice to the WCCLS Executive Board, to develop and implement policies and 
procedures for delivery of countywide public library services, and to advise the Cooperative 
Library Services Director.  

 
F) WCCLS Information Network Users’ Group - A committee of the WCCLS Policy Group to 

advise WCCLS and the WCCLS Policy Group on the operation of the automated system as 
defined in the WCCLS Policy Group Bylaws. 

 
G) Public Library Services Agreement - The Inter-Governmental Agreement between 

Washington County and library service providers to provide library services to all county 
residents, containing a distribution formula under which WCCLS makes payments to public 
libraries. 

 
H) WCCLS Executive Board – The board established to advise the Board of County 

Commissioners and the Cooperative Library Services Director on matters pertaining to the 
funding for countywide library services, distribution of financial resources by WCCLS for 
the provision of countywide public library services, and long term governance and funding 
strategies. 

 
I) West Slope Community Library – The public library that is a department of WCCLS and 

managed by the County.  For purposes of this Agreement, West Slope is treated as a Network 
User. 

 
2.  TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement shall be in effect from July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2021, except as otherwise 
provided in Section 14 of this Agreement.  
 
3. OWNERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT OF THE WCCLS INFORMATION NETWORK 
 
A) The Washington County Board of Commissioners, as the governing body of WCCLS, retains 

final authority for decision-making related to Network and its operation. 
 
B) WCCLS shall have full ownership of all Network components and shall make the system 

available to Network Users.  All software and upgrades provided to Network Users by 
WCCLS will remain the property of WCCLS. 

 



WCCLS Information Network Agreement 2016 

WCCLS Information Network Agreement  5/6/2016- page 3  

C) Item records owned by Network Users, the associated bibliographic and patron records 
where the patron is registered at the Network User Library, shall be considered the property 
of that Network User. On termination of this Agreement by either party Network User shall 
pay all reasonable costs associated with data extraction necessary to provide records in 
machine-readable format.   

 
 
4. SERVICE AVAILABILITY 
 
A) Network shall be available for use twenty-four (24) hours a day except for routine 

maintenance and when software, hardware, or telecommunications upgrades or changes 
necessitate making the system unavailable. WCCLS agrees to provide Network User with 
prior notice of Network downtime if it will affect library operations or business hours except 
for unexpected outages due to Network failure or other circumstances beyond the control of 
WCCLS. No liability shall be assumed by WCCLS if Network experiences downtime.  

 
B) WCCLS staff shall be available to support the Network and to answer questions about the 

Network from Network Users. No Network staff will be available on days that are official 
Washington County holidays.  
The hours of service are as follows: 

8:00 am – 9:00 pm, Monday – Thursday;  
8:00 am – 6:00 pm Friday,  
9:00 am – 5:00 pm Saturday, and  
10:30 am - 5:30 pm Sunday.   
Staff will be available for emergency support from 6:00pm to 9:00pm Friday only. 
  

5. DATA RECOVERY 
 
WCCLS will duplicate at least daily all data maintained in the Network database.  WCCLS will 
maintain back-up data on-site and off-site so that files can be reconstructed if a system 
malfunction occurs that requires restoring or rebuilding data files, in whole or in part.   A 
minimum of one weekly back-up will be stored in a location physically apart from the site of the 
central system in case of major disaster at the central site. The purpose of the back-up is for 
emergency recovery is live data or the system is damaged or destroyed and is not for archival 
purposes. 
 
6. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF WCCLS 
 
WCCLS shall: 
A) Purchase all Network hardware, software, and telecommunications equipment; house such 

equipment in a suitable environment; and maintain said equipment in good operating 
condition.  

 
B) Purchase integrated library system client software licenses for Network Users and coordinate 

distribution of licenses.  
 



WCCLS Information Network Agreement 2016 

WCCLS Information Network Agreement  5/6/2016- page 4  

C) Provide, or contract for the provision of, maintenance of Network hardware, software, and 
the telecommunications equipment.   

 
D) Provide and maintain directory services to control access to the Network. 
 
E) Employ personnel needed to maintain and operate Network and staff a help desk for problem 

reporting and resolution. 
 
F) Provide a source of, and maintain for Network Users, MARC bibliographic cataloging 

records and authority records in the catalog.  This includes monitoring and evaluating 
bibliographic services to maintain quality bibliographic records. 

 
G) Purchase, and coordinate licensing of, other software, applications or equipment to support 

Network services. 
 
H) Purchase item inventory tags, security tags and patron cards to be used by Network Users. 
 
I) Provide initial training and initial and on-going training materials to Network Users for 

WCCLS-provided software applications as documentation is provided by vendors. 
 
J) Provide documentation for the integrated library system as documentation is provided by 

vendors. 
 
K) Provide software updates to Network Users for software applications purchased by WCCLS 

and licensed for use at member libraries.  
 
L) Regularly review the operations of Network hardware, software and telecommunications, 

evaluate performance, and develop plans for modifications, upgrades and new services, as 
outlined in the WCCLS Long Range Plan. 

 
M) Monitor compliance with Policies & Procedures adopted by the WCCLS Policy Group and 

the Broadband Users’ Group to coordinate orderly and secure use of the Network. 
 
N) Conduct an independent security audit of the Network and implement recommendations to 

maintain security and integrity. 
 
O) Take steps to maintain security, up to and including terminating a connection between one or 

more network Hosts that presents a problem or threatens security, integrity, or performance 
of the Network.  WCCLS shall notify affected Network Users about an impending 
disconnection if time permits.  Unless WCCLS determines that the problem or threat has 
resulted in a default under paragraph 11, WCCLS shall restore connectivity  when the 
WCCLS staff determines that the problem is resolved or the threat removed. 

 
P) Provide and maintain library security gates (RFID enabled). 

 
Q) Manage the Network pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 



WCCLS Information Network Agreement 2016 

WCCLS Information Network Agreement  5/6/2016- page 5  

 
7. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF NETWORK USERS 
 
Network Users shall: 
A) Participate in the use and operation of the Network under the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement and the Policies & Procedures adopted by the WCCLS Policy Group. 
 
B) Take full responsibility for linking item information for Network User’s holdings to 

bibliographic records in the catalog and for meeting cataloging standards as outlined in the 
Policies & Procedures. 

 
C) Provide, maintain, and administer cabling, equipment, software, associated devices and Hosts 

within Network User’s building that are connected to the Network. Network Users should 
meet ANSI/TIA-5568-C or ISO/IEC 11801(Ed2.2) standards when installing new data 
cabling.  

 
D) Provide site preparation, access, and environmental conditions necessary for optimal security 

and functioning of Hosts provided by WCCLS.  
 
E) Ensure that devices configured by Network User and accessing the Network comply at all 

times with hardware, software and security requirements deemed necessary by WCCLS staff. 
Network User shall use WCCLS directory services to access the Network. 

 
F) Ensure that all Hosts connected to the Network are secured and supervised by library staff 

during use. Network User shall not allow public users to use staff workstations. 
 
G) Ensure that any Host or device connected to the Network shall neither cause, nor have the 

potential to cause, any network disruption, security breach, nor other deleterious outcome.   
 
H) Obtain permission from WCCLS before attempting to attach any new equipment to the 

Network.   
 
I) Obtain permission from WCCLS before adding workstations that will run software 

applications purchased by WCCLS and licensed for use at Network Users’ libraries.  
 
J) Protect Network equipment and software from abuse, theft or misuse, and assume financial 

responsibility for repairing or replacing damaged equipment. 
 

K) Be responsible for system security by limiting access to non-public accounts to trained, 
authorized staff and volunteers, using individually-assigned user logon credentials, and 
following security protocols and procedures as directed by WCCLS to prevent unauthorized 
access.  Examples may be password protection, encryption of sensitive information, or 
locking workstations when not in use. 

 



WCCLS Information Network Agreement 2016 

WCCLS Information Network Agreement  5/6/2016- page 6  

L) Notify WCCLS before requesting additional services, including but not limited to domain 
accounts, integrated library system staff or volunteer logon accounts, workstations, and staff 
email accounts. 

 
M) Notify WCCLS promptly to request that a logon or staff email account be deleted to maintain 

system security. For example, if a Network User terminates an employee, the Network User 
shall promptly request that the terminated employee be deleted.  

 
N) Provide an inventory of Network Hosts in Network User’s facility and connected to the 

Public Communications Network as needed by WCCLS. 
 
O) Conduct an annual inventory of licenses in use by the Network User as instructed by 

WCCLS staff.   
 
P) Keep records and statistics when required by WCCLS to document system performance. 
 
Q) Designate at least one person as the WCCLS contact concerning use of the Network. 

 
8. CONFIDENTIALITY OF DATA 
 
The patron and circulation records in the catalog are exempt from public disclosure pursuant to 
ORS 192.502(23).  Network Users agree that they will not disclose patron and circulation 
information or patron’s use of library resources and services including, but not limited to, 
databases, e-content and wireless access.  Network Users also agree that only library staff and 
designated library volunteers shall have access to such records in the course of operating the 
system.  Network Users agree to forward to WCCLS all requests for confidential data from law 
enforcement or other requestors in accordance with established Policies and Procedures.  
Network Users may use patron name and address information for library purposes as long as it is 
used in accordance with established Policies & Procedures. 

 
9. COST ALLOCATION FORMULA 
 
On an annual basis, WCCLS shall calculate the Cost Allocation Formula (EXHIBIT A) based on 
measures of Network Users’ use of the Network: integrated library system licenses, total 
circulation, number of titles, number of items, number of patrons, and volumes added in the 
fiscal year.  WCCLS uses the Cost Allocation Formula to identify each Network User’s 
percentage share of operational costs to maintain the Network if WCCLS funding ceases. 
 
Network Users that are not signatories to the Public Library Services Agreement, chiefly Tuality 
Health Resource Center and Oregon College of Art and Craft, shall be responsible for ten percent 
of their share of the cost allocation on an annual basis.  These Network Users shall be notified of 
Network operating costs by April 1 as determined by the Cost Allocation Formula used in 
EXHIBIT A "Cost Allocation Formula".  These Network Users shall receive an invoice from 
WCCLS by April 15 for the annual cost, which shall be paid by June 30.  
 



WCCLS Information Network Agreement 2016 

WCCLS Information Network Agreement  5/6/2016- page 7  

10. ADMISSION OF NEW NETWORK USERS THAT ARE NOT SIGNATORIES TO 
THE PUBLIC LIBRARY SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
WCCLS may admit other libraries that are not signatories to the Public Library Services 
Agreement to the Network if WCCLS undertakes the necessary system modification to ensure 
continued security and performance. Admission of new Network Users shall require unanimous 
approval of present Network Users and the WCCLS Executive Board.  New Network Users are 
assessed a share of operating costs for the first year of membership as determined by the 
WCCLS Executive Board. The “Cost Allocation Formula” in Exhibit A applies during and after 
the second year. 

 
11. DEFAULT   
 
A) Each of the following shall constitute a default: 

1.  Material noncompliance with the terms of the Agreement or any policies or 
procedures adopted pursuant to this agreement;  
2. Misuse of any Network resources including, but not limited to, system operating 

software, hardware, or telecommunications. 
3.  Failure to maintain system security protocols or procedures as directed by WCCLS. 
 

B) If a Network User or WCCLS defaults on the Agreement, WCCLS or the Network User or 
WCCLS, respectively, shall: 

1.  Advise the party in writing of the alleged default and any action required to cure the 
default; 
2.  Set forth a time by which the default must be cured, a minimum of thirty (30) days.  
 

C) If a Network User fails to cure the alleged default after WCCLS notifies the Network User of 
the alleged default, WCCLS may, following written notice to the Network User: 

1.  Prohibit Network User from the use of the system; 
2.  Take any action to cure or stop the default; 
3.  Recover any costs, expenses or disbursements incurred by WCCLS to cure the default;  
4.  Terminate this Agreement as regards the defaulting Network User. 
 

D) Notwithstanding subparagraph B, WCCLS may lock out a Network User from the system 
without notice in the event of an emergency involving, but not limited to, system damage or 
the breach of security or confidentiality of the database. 

 
12. TERMINATION 
 
A) County may terminate this Agreement in its entirety or as to any individual Network User 

upon sixty (60) days written notice, if it determines, in good faith, through an open, public 
process, that: 

1.  The public interest would be served by such termination; 
2.  Adequate funds are not available. 
 



WCCLS Information Network Agreement 2016 

WCCLS Information Network Agreement  5/6/2016- page 8  

B) Each Network User may terminate this Agreement upon sixty (60) days written notice, if the 
Network User determines, in good faith, that the public interest in its jurisdiction or area of 
service would be served by such termination. 

 
C) County and each Network User may terminate this Agreement for a default by the other party 

that has not been cured. 
 
D) Upon termination of this Agreement as to any individual Network User, this Agreement 

between remaining Parties shall remain in effect.  
 
E) Except for termination under subparagraph A, the Network User shall be responsible for 

payment of any costs, expenses, or disbursements incurred by WCCLS to remove or 
otherwise mask Network User’s data from the system on termination. 

 
13.  INSURANCE   

 
A) County and each Network User shall maintain comprehensive general liability insurance or 

adequate reserves in a program of self-insurance covering personal injury and property 
damage for the Network User, its employees and agents.  The insurance coverage shall cover 
the minimum amount specified in ORS 30.271.  For Network Users who are not units of 
local government, certification of insurance shall be provided to WCCLS and all such 
insurance coverage shall name Washington County, its officers, employees and agents as 
additional insureds. 

 
B) WCCLS shall maintain insurance adequate to cover the replacement of the central site 

equipment including but not limited to central hardware, telecommunications equipment and 
uninterruptible power supply.  The insurance coverage shall be for a minimum of $600,000. 

 
C) Network Users shall maintain insurance adequate to cover the replacement of the 

telecommunications and security equipment owned by WCCLS and housed at Network 
User’s site.   

 
14. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS 
 
The Parties shall comply with all local, state, and federal ordinances, statutes, laws and 
regulations that are applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. 
 
A) Equal Opportunity Network User shall not discriminate against its employees (including 

applicants for employment) on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, 
national origin, disability, age, or marital status except in case of bona fide occupational 
qualifications as defined and provided by applicable federal or state law. No person shall be 
denied or subjected to discrimination in receipt of the benefits of any services or activities 
made possible by or resulting from this Agreement on the grounds of race, color, religion, 
gender, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, age, or marital status.  Any violation of 
this provision shall be grounds for cancellation, termination or suspension of the Agreement, 
in whole or in part, by County. 



WCCLS Information Network Agreement 2016 

WCCLS Information Network Agreement  5/6/2016- page 9  

 
B)  Public Contracting Statutes  ORS 279B.200 through 279B.240 and 279C.500 through 

279C.870, as applicable, are incorporated herein by reference.  The Contractor agrees to: 
1.  Make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying, to Contractor, labor or material 
for the performance of the work provided for in this Agreement; 
2.  Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund incurred in the 
performance of the Agreement: 
3.  Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the County on account of 
any labor or material furnished pursuant to this Agreement; and 
4.  Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees pursuant to ORS 
316.167. 

 
15. INDEMNIFICATION  
 
Each party agrees to hold harmless, defend, and indemnify each other, including its officers, 
agents, and employees, against all claims, demands, actions and suits (including all attorney fees 
and costs) arising from the indemnitor’s performance of this Agreement where the loss or claim 
is attributable to the negligent acts or omissions of that party.  If the indemnifying party is a unit 
of local government, such indemnification shall be subject to the limitations of liability for 
public bodies set forth in the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.302, and the Oregon 
Constitution.  
 
16. DEBT LIMITATION 
 
This Agreement is expressly subject to the debt limitation of Oregon Counties set forth in Article 
XI, Section 10 of the Oregon Constitution, and is contingent upon appropriation of funds 
therefor.  

 
17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
Each party is an independent contractor with respect to each other party and has no control over 
the work performed by the other.   No party is an agent or employer of another party.  No party 
or its employees is entitled to participate in a pension plan, insurance, bonus, or similar benefits 
provided by any other party. 
 
18. NOTICE 
 
Each party shall give the other immediate written notice of any action or suit filed or any claim 
made against that party that may result in litigation in any way related to this Agreement. 
 
19. COUNTERPARTS 
 
This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original, all 
of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 
 
 



WCCLS Information Network Agreement 2016 

WCCLS Information Network Agreement  5/6/2016- page 10  

20. CAPTIONS 
 
Captions and headings used in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be 
construed or interpreted so as to enlarge or diminish the rights or obligations of the parties 
hereto. 
 
21. SEVERABILITY 
 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Agreement is, for any 
reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be 
deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions of this Agreement unless the result of the holding is a failure 
of consideration of any Party.  

 
22. AMENDMENT 
 
This Agreement may only be amended in writing and signed by all of the Parties.  
 
 
 
FOR THE NETWORK USER:   FOR WASHINGTON COUNTY: 
 
             
Signature      Signature 
 
             
Title           Title 
 
             
Date           Date         
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
County Counsel 

 



Second Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement, Washington County Cooperative Library Services 

5/6/2016, Page 1 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
WASHINGTON COUNTY COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SERVICES 

 
 This amends the Intergovernmental Agreement dated January 17, 2006 and amended July 
1, 2007 between Washington County on behalf of Washington County Cooperative Library 
Services, and the cities of Banks, Beaverton, Cornelius, Forest Grove, Hillsboro, North Plains, 
Sherwood, Tigard, and Tualatin, and the Cedar Mill Community Library Association and the 
Garden Home Community Library Association (“Contractors”) as follows: 
 
In accordance with Section 4.I: Adding or Subtracting Members, the Aloha Community Library 
Association shall be added as a Member, effective July 1, 2016.  The Aloha Community Library 
Association, by its execution of this Amendment, also hereby agrees to be bound by all of the terms 
and conditions of the January 17, 2006 Intergovernmental Agreement and all Amendments thereto.    

 
Amend Section 1, B: delete definition as it is an obsolete reference term. 
 
Amend Section 1, C: replace definition of WILInet (Washington County Inter-Library 
Information network) as follows: 
 

WCCLS Information Network– The system that includes: the shared integrated library 
system software (circulation, public access catalog, cataloging, serials control and 
acquisitions software); the WCCLS.org website and its resources; other databases and e-
content provided by WCCLS for member library staff or public access; wireless Internet 
access for the public; central site hardware and software; software, hardware or peripheral 
products provided to member libraries and supported by WCCLS; and the 
telecommunications network linking Contractors to the system and for Internet access. 

 
Amend Section 1, F: replace definition of WCCLS Library Directors’ Board as follows: 
 

WCCLS Policy Group – the Board established to provide technical and professional support 
and advice to the WCCLS Executive Board, to develop and implement policies and 
procedures for delivery of countywide public library services, and to advise the Cooperative 
Library Services Director. 

 
Amend Section 1, G replace definition of Cooperative Library Advisory Board (CLAB) as 
follows: 
 

WCCLS Executive Board – the Board established to advise the Board of County 
Commissioners and the Cooperative Library Services Director on matters pertaining to the 
funding for countywide library services, distribution of financial resources by WCCLS for 
the provision of countywide public library services, and long term governance and funding 
strategies. 

 
 
 
 



Second Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement, Washington County Cooperative Library Services 

5/6/2016, Page 2 

Amend Section 4, A: WCCLS EXECUTIVE BOARD Membership to read as follows:   
 

4. WCCLS EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

A. Membership 
The Executive Board shall consist of fourteen (14) voting Board Members 
(“Members”) representing the twelve (12) Contracting library service providers, the 
West Slope Community Library, and Washington County.  For the cities of Banks, 
Beaverton, Cornelius, Forest Grove, Hillsboro, North Plains, Sherwood, Tigard, and 
Tualatin, the Members shall be the chief administrative officers of those jurisdictions 
or their designees.  For the Aloha Community Library Association, the Cedar Mill 
Community Library Association and the Garden Home Community Library 
Association, the Members shall be representatives designated by the Contractors’ 
governing boards.  For the West Slope Community Library, the Member shall be a 
representative of the community appointed by the Board of County Commissioners.  
The Washington County Administrator (or designee) shall represent countywide 
services.  The Executive Board will meet as needed and will typically convene either 
prior to or immediately following the standing city/county managers’ meetings. 

 
Amend Section 5, A: WCCLS POLICY GROUP Membership to read as follows: 
 
5. WCCLS POLICY GROUP 
 

A. Membership 
The WCCLS Policy Group (“Policy Group”) shall consist of fourteen (14) voting 
Policy Group members representing the twelve (12) Contracting library service 
providers, the West Slope Community Library, and a library that is a non-public 
library WCCLS  Information Network User (either Tuality Health Information 
Resource Center or the Oregon College of Art and Craft library).  These fourteen 
Members shall be the library directors or their designees.  

 
 

Replace Section 7, SEVERABILITY to read as follows: 
 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Agreement is, for any 
reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Agreement unless the result of the 
holding is a failure of consideration of any party. 
 

Replace Section 10, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS to read as follows: 
 
10. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS 

Each party agrees to comply with all local, state, and federal ordinances, statutes, laws and 
regulations that are applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. 



Second Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement, Washington County Cooperative Library Services 

5/6/2016, Page 3 

A. Equal Opportunity   Member hereby agrees that its employees (including 
applicants for employment) shall not be discriminated against race, color, religion, 
gender, sexual orientation, national origin, disability, age, or marital status except in 
case of bona fide occupational qualifications as defined and provided by applicable 
federal or state law. No person shall be denied or subjected to discrimination in 
receipt of the benefits of any services or activities made possible by or resulting 
from this contract on the grounds of race, color, religion, gender, sexual orientation, 
national origin, disability, age, or marital status.  Any violation of this provision 
shall be grounds for cancellation, termination or suspension in whole or in part by 
County. 

 
B) Public Contracting Statutes  ORS 279B.200 through 279B.240 and 279C.500 

through 279C.870, as applicable, are incorporated herein by reference.  The 
Member agrees to: 

1.  Make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying, to Member, labor or 
material for the performance of the work provided for in this contract; 

2.  Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund incurred in the 
performance of the contract: 

3.  Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the County on 
account of any labor or material furnished pursuant to this contract; and 

4.  Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees pursuant to 
ORS 316.167. 

 
Replace Section 11, LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION to read as follows: 
 
11. INDEMNIFICATION 

Each party agrees to hold harmless, defend, and indemnify each other, including its officers, 
agents, and employees, against all claims, demands, actions and suits (including all attorney 
fees and costs) arising from the indemnitor’s performance of this Agreement where the loss 
or claim is attributable to the negligent acts or omissions of that party.  If the indemnifying 
party is a unit of local government, such indemnification shall be subject to the limitations 
of liability for public bodies set forth in the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.302, 
and the Oregon Constitution. 
 

Replace Section 12, NO BENEFITS to read as follows: 
 
12. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 

Each party is an independent contractor with respect to each other party and has no control 
over the work performed by the other.   No party is an agent or employer of another party.  
No party or its employees is entitled to participate in a pension plan, insurance, bonus, or 
similar benefits provided by any other party. 

 
 
 
 



Second Amendment to the Intergovernmental Agreement, Washington County Cooperative Library Services 

5/6/2016, Page 4 

Replace Section 14, INSURANCE to read as follows: 
 

All parties to this Agreement shall maintain comprehensive general liability insurance or 
adequate reserves in a program of self-insurance covering personal injury and property 
damage for the Members, their employees and agents.  The insurance coverage shall be for a 
minimum of the amounts specified in ORS 30.271.  For Members which are not units of 
local government, certification of insurance shall be provided to WCCLS and all such 
insurance coverage shall name Washington County, its officers, employees and agents as 
additional insureds. 

 
 
This amendment shall become effective July 1, 2016. 

 
In performing the above, it is understood and agreed that all other terms and conditions of the 
original Intergovernmental Agreement of January 17, 2006 and amendments thereto are still in 
effect. 

 
FOR THE CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
      
Signature 
 
      
Title 
 
      
Date 
 
 
FOR WASHINGTON COUNTY: 
 
      
Signature 
 
      
Title 
 
______________________________  
Washington County   
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________  
County Counsel 



  Page 1 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
WASHINGTON COUNTY COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SERVICES 

 
 This Agreement is made by and between Washington County, a home rule subdivision of 
the State of Oregon hereinafter referred to as “County,” on behalf of Washington County 
Cooperative Library Services, hereinafter referred to as “WCCLS,” and the cities of Banks, 
Beaverton, Cornelius, Forest Grove, Hillsboro, Sherwood, Tigard, and Tualatin, and the Cedar Mill 
Community Library Association and the Garden Home Community Library Association, hereinafter 
referred to as “Contractor(s).”  
 

WITNESSETH 
 
WHEREAS, Washington County has approved funding for county-wide library services 

including non-fee access by County residents to public libraries operated by Contractors; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Public Library Services Agreement exists to define the method for 

distribution of those funds and the rights and responsibilities of WCCLS and Contractors in the 
provision of county-wide lbirary services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties to this Agreement are either units of local government empowered 

by ORS 190.010 to enter into an intergovernmental agreement or are private non-profit agencies 
operating public libraries; and 

 
WHEREAS, all parties are desirous of providing residents of Washington County with 

access to public library services and Contractors are capable of providing such access and services; 
and 

WHEREAS the participating jurisdictions now desire to enter into another Agreement to 
provide, among other things, for an Executive Board and Policy Board among the participating 
jurisdictions and assigning responsibilities thereto in order to serve as advisors to the County 
regarding the provision of county-wide library service;  

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties 

agree as follows: 
 

1. DEFINITIONS 
The following definitions shall be used in constructing the following phrases, terms and 
abbreviations in this Agreement: 
 
A. WCCLS (Washington County Cooperative Library Services) – An agency of county 

government which exists to coordinate, contract for or provide a full range of library 
and information services to all residents of the county. 

B. WCCLS Network – The consortium of public, academic, special and school libraries 
in Washington County, which exists to provide countywide library service. 



  Page 2 

C. WILInet (Washington County Inter-Library Information Network) – An integrated, 
automated library system, including but not limited to WILI, which is comprised of 
the integrated library system software (online circulation, public access catalog, 
cataloging and acquisitions software),  and other databases, Internet resources, 
central site hardware and telecommunications equipment. 

D. Qualified Borrowers – All Washington County residents, residents of counties with 
which Washington County has reciprocal borrowing agreements, and other paid card 
holders. 

E. West Slope Community Library - The public library that is a department of WCCLS 
and managed by the County.  For purposes of funding, West Slope is treated as a 
Contractor, but is not a signatory to this Agreement. 

F. WCCLS Library Directors’ Board – The executive body of the WCCLS Network; 
advisory to the Cooperative Library Advisory Board and the WCCLS Manager. 

G. Cooperative Library Advisory Board (CLAB) – The board appointed by the 
Washington County Board of County Commissioners to develop, review and 
recommend library service policies, representing Public Library Services Agreement 
Contractors and the West Slope Community Library.  CLAB is advisory to the Board 
of County Commissioners and to the Cooperative Library Services Manager. 

 
 
2. TERM OF AGREEMENT  
 This Agreement shall be in effect from January 1, 2006 and shall remain in effect 

perpetually thereafter, until such time as this Agreement is wholly or partially terminated 
pursuant to Section 9 herein. 

 
 
3.  GOVERNING BODY 

WCCLS shall continue to be governed by the Washington County Board of County 
Commissioners.  A WCCLS Executive Board, described below, shall be established to 
advise the Board of County Commissioners and the Cooperative Library Services Manager 
on matters pertaining to the funding for countywide library services, distribution of financial 
resources by WCCLS for the provision of countywide public library services, and long term 
governance and funding strategies.   
 
The WCCLS Executive Board shall replace the current Cooperative Library Advisory 
Board.  A WCCLS Policy Group, also described below, shall be established to provide 
technical and professional support and advice to the WCCLS Executive Board, to develop 
and implement policies and procedures for delivery of countywide public library services, 
and to advise the Cooperative Library Services Manager.  The WCCLS Policy Group shall 
replace the current Library Directors’ Board.    

 
 

 
 
 



  Page 3 

4. WCCLS EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

A. Membership 
The Executive Board shall consist of twelve (12) voting Board Members 
(“Members”) representing the ten current Contracting library service providers, the 
West Slope Community Library, and Washington County.  For the cities of 
Beaverton, Cornelius, Forest Grove, Hillsboro, Sherwood, Tigard, and Tualatin, the 
Members shall be the chief administrative officers of those jurisdictions or their 
designees.  For the City of Banks, the Cedar Mill Community Library Association 
and the Garden Home Community Library Association, the Members shall be 
representatives designated by the Contractors’ governing boards.  For the West Slope 
Community Library, the Member shall be a representative of the community 
appointed by the Board of County Commissioners.  The Washington County 
Administrator (or designee) shall represent countywide services.  The Executive 
Board will meet as needed and will convene either prior to or immediately following 
the city/county managers’ meetings. 

 
B. Non-Voting Members 

The Chair and Vice-Chair of the WCCLS Policy Group shall serve as Members of 
the Executive Board in an ex-officio capacity. 

 
C. Appointments to the WCCLS Executive Board 

Except as otherwise specified herein, appointments for all Contractors and the 
County are continuous and Members shall serve at the pleasure of their appointing 
authorities.  The West Slope Community Library representative shall be appointed by 
the Board of County Commissioners for a two year term, which can be renewed.   

 
D. Responsibilities 

The Executive Board shall advise the Board of County Commissioners, the County 
Administrator and the Cooperative Library Services Manager on issues pertaining to 
funding for countywide library services, the distribution of financial resources by 
WCCLS for direct public library services, and long-term governance and funding 
strategies.  This includes but is not limited to the following matters: 

 
1. Provide recommendations regarding contracts related to the provision of centrally 

provided support services when Board of County Commissioner approval is 
required, 

2. Review Policy Group recommendations for central service plans and budget 
allocations, forward the Executive Board’s recommendations regarding the same to 
the County Administrator and the Board of County Commissioners for inclusion in 
WCCLS annual budget requests, 

3. Review recommended allocation amounts and funding distribution formulas to be 
included in the Public Library Services Agreement; provide jurisdictional 
endorsements of such Agreements and recommend to the County Administrator and 
the Board of County Commissioners for approval, 



  Page 4 

4. Consider and recommend to the Cooperative Library Services Manager, the County 
Administrator and the Board of County Commissioners any changes regarding 
governance of Members or membership for WCCLS or the Executive Board, 

5. Recommend long term funding strategies for countywide library service to the 
County and Board of County Commissioners, 

6. Develop recommendations for the County and the Board of County Commissioners 
regarding supplemental funding strategies for countywide library services. 

 
E. Schedule of Meetings 

The Executive Board at its first organizational meeting or as soon thereafter as 
reasonable, shall adopt rules governing its procedures, and which shall include at a 
minimum: 1) time and place of regular meetings; 2) the method and manner of 
calling special meetings; 3) the method, term and manner of establishing committees 
or sub-committees; and 4) Executive Board by-laws and rules of procedure.  The 
Executive Board shall meet as needed to adequately execute its duties and 
responsibilities.  The first organizational meeting shall be a joint meeting with the 
WCCLS Policy Group and thereafter a joint meeting of the two boards shall be held 
annually.  All meetings of the Executive Board and the WCCLS Policy Group shall 
be held in accordance with Oregon Public Meeting Laws, ORS 192.610 to 192.710. 

 
F. Election of Officers 

The Executive Board at its first organizational meeting or as soon thereafter as 
reasonable, shall elect a Chair and Vice Chair/Chair Elect.  The term of the officers 
shall be for two years, with elections held at the Executive Board’s annual meeting.  
The Chair, or the Vice Chair/Chair Elect in his/her absence, shall preside over all 
meetings of the Executive Board.  The Cooperative Library Services Manager (or 
designee) shall serve as Clerk of the Board and be responsible for providing notices 
of meetings and keeping minutes, as required by Oregon Public Meeting Laws. 

 
G. Quorum 

A majority of the Members of the Executive Board shall constitute a quorum.  All 
decisions of the Board, unless otherwise provided herein, shall require the presence 
of a quorum and a majority vote of those representatives in attendance.  No 
recommendation regarding a formula for allocating county funds through the Public 
Library Services Agreement shall be forwarded to the Board of Commissioners 
unless it receives the votes of a majority of the Members of the Executive Board.  

 
H. Voting 

Each Member of the Executive Board shall have one vote.  In the event that a 
Member is unable to attend a meeting in which a vote is scheduled to take place, the 
Member may appoint a designee to attend and vote in his/her place.  Under 
circumstances when neither a Member nor his/her designee can attend, a Member 
may, prior to the meeting, submit his/her vote to the Chair on a specific issue under 
signature in writing or by email that clearly identifies the sender. 

 



  Page 5 

I. Adding or Subtracting Members 
Members shall be added to the Executive Board, as needed, to represent new library 
service providers admitted to WCCLS through the Public Library Services 
Agreement (PLSA).  Members shall be subtracted from the Executive Board at such 
time as a library service provider withdraws from membership in WCCLS and ceases 
to be a party to the PLSA, or when a city assumes management and fiscal 
responsibilities for operating a community library, or when two or more library 
service providers merge into one administrative entity.  A library that changes its 
governance (EX: a city library becomes a community library, or a city or community 
library establishes a library district) retains its membership rights in WCCLS 
including membership on the Executive Board and authority to receive funds through 
the Public Library Services Agreement. 

 
 
5. WCCLS POLICY GROUP 
 

A. Membership 
The WCCLS Policy Group (“Policy Group”) shall consist of twelve (12) voting 
Members representing the ten (10) current contracting library service providers, the 
West Slope Community Library, and a library that is a non-public library WILInet 
member (either Tuality Health Information Resource Center or the Oregon College 
of Art and Craft library).  These twelve Members shall be the library directors or 
their designees. The Policy Group shall replace the current Library Directors’ Board. 

 
B. Responsibilities 

The Policy Group shall advise the WCCLS Executive Board and the Cooperative 
Library Services Manager on issues pertaining to the development and 
implementation of policies and procedures for delivery of public library services to all 
county residents, and to provide technical and professional support for the WCCLS 
Executive Board.  This includes but is not limited to the following matters: 
 

1. Develop, approve and implement shared policies and procedures for the delivery of 
direct public library services by member libraries, 

2. Advise the Cooperative Library Services Manager on issues related to the provision 
of library services to special populations, 

3. Advise the Cooperative Library Services Manager on operational considerations for 
contracts related to the provision of centrally provided support services, 

4. Recommend annual service plans and review budget allocations for centrally 
provided support services and library services to special populations to the 
Cooperative Library Services Manager and the Executive Board, 

5. Advise the Cooperative Library Services Manager and the Executive Board on the 
allocation of County resources for direct public library service delivery and the 
formula used to distribute such resources, 

6. Provide technical and professional support for the Executive Board regarding 
governance of members and membership in WCCLS, 



  Page 6 

7. Encourage and provide a forum for positive and timely communication among 
library directors and staff to continuously evaluate and improve library services to 
county residents, 

8. Develop recommendations for long term funding needs and strategies for the 
Executive Board, 

9. Provide technical and professional support for the Executive Board regarding 
supplemental funding strategies for countywide library services, 

10. Keep abreast of library trends and developments; evaluate and recommend service 
implementation changes as needed to the Cooperative Library Services Manager. 

 
C. Schedule of Meetings 

The Policy Group at its first organizational meeting or as soon thereafter as 
reasonable, shall adopt rules governing its procedures, and include at a minimum: 1) 
time and place of regular meetings; 2) method and manner of calling special 
meetings; 3) method of establishing committees or sub-committees; and 4) Policy 
Board by-laws and rules of procedure.  The Policy Group shall meet monthly or as 
needed to execute its duties and responsibilities.  The first organizational meeting 
shall be a joint meeting with the WCCLS Executive Board and thereafter a joint 
meeting of the two boards shall be held annually.  All meetings of the Policy Group 
and the Executive Board shall be held in accordance with Oregon Public Meeting 
Laws, ORS 192.610 to 192.710. 

 
D. Election of Officers 

The Policy Group at its first organizational meeting or as soon thereafter as 
reasonable, shall elect a Chair and Vice Chair/Chair Elect.  The term of the officers 
shall be for one year, with elections held at the Policy Group’s annual meeting.  The 
Chair, or the Vice Chair/Chair Elect in his/her absence, shall preside over all 
meetings of the Policy Group.  The Cooperative Library Services Manager (or 
designee) shall serve as Clerk of the Board and be responsible for providing notices 
of meetings and keeping minutes, as required by Oregon Public Meeting Laws. 

 
E. Quorum 

A majority of the Members of the Policy Group shall constitute a quorum.  All 
decisions of the Group, unless otherwise provided herein, shall require the presence 
of a quorum and a majority vote of those representatives in attendance.  No 
recommendation regarding a formula for allocating county funds through the Public 
Library Services Agreement shall be forwarded to the Executive Board unless it 
receives the votes of a majority of the Members of the Policy Group.  

 
F. Voting    

Each voting Member of the Policy Group shall have one vote.  Under circumstances 
when a Member cannot attend, he/she may, prior to the meeting, submit a vote to the 
Chair on a specific issue under signature in writing or by email that clearly identifies 
the sender. 
 



  Page 7 

 
G. Adding or subtracting members 

Member representatives shall be added to the Policy Group, as needed, to represent 
new library service providers admitted to WCCLS through the Public Library 
Services Agreement.  Member representatives shall be subtracted from the Policy 
Group at such time as a library service provider withdraws from membership in 
WCCLS and ceases to be a party to the PLSA, or when a city assumes management 
and fiscal responsibilities for operating a community library, or when two or more 
library service providers merge into one administrative entity.  A library that changes 
its governance (EX: a city library becomes a community library, or a city or 
community library establishes a library district) retains its membership on the Policy 
Group. 

 
 
6. AMENDMENTS  

All changes, modifications, or amendments to this Agreement shall only be considered upon 
approval of three fourths (3/4) of the Member representatives of the Executive Board.  
Following a recommendation from the Executive Board, this Agreement may be changed, 
modified, or amended only in writing and upon approval of all of the parties to this 
Agreement. 

 
 
7. SEVERABILITY  

The terms of this Agreement are severable and a determination by an appropriate body 
having jurisdiction over the subject matter of this Agreement that results in the invalidity of 
any part, shall not affect the remainder of the Agreement. 

 
 
8.  INTERPRETATION 

The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be liberally construed in accordance with 
the general purposes of this Agreement. 

 
 
9.         TERMINATION 

This Agreement may be terminated only pursuant to the following: 
 
 A. This Agreement shall terminate as to any individual party upon that party ceasing to 

be a party to the Public Library Services Agreement (PLSA) dated 1/20/04.   
B. This Agreement shall terminate in its entirety, as to all parties, upon execution of  a 

declaration signed by three-fourths (3/4) of all parties to this Agreement terminating 
its effectiveness.  

 
 
 
 



  Page 8 

10.     COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS   
Each party agrees to comply with all local, state and federal ordinances, statutes, laws and 
regulations that are applicable to the services and activities provided under this Agreement. 

 
 
11.     LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION 

Notwithstanding that actions by some or all of the parties to this Agreement may be 
undertaken on behalf of the others, each party agrees to be responsible for the consequences 
of any wrongful acts of the party’s employee as they affect any other party or a person not a 
party to this Agreement.  Subject to the limitations of liability for public bodies set forth in 
the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, and the Oregon Constitution, each party 
agrees to indemnify the other parties and each of them, and hold each and all harmless from 
any and all claims, actions or suits arising out of a wrongful act of the first party’s employee 
done in the course and scope of this Agreement. 

 
 
12.     NO BENEFITS 

No party or its employees is entitled to participate in a pension plan, insurance, bonus, or 
similar benefits provided by any other party. 
 
 

13.      NOTICE 
Any Contractor shall give immediate written notice to the County of any action or suit filed 
or any claim made against that party that may result in litigation and is directly related to this 
Agreement.     

 
 
14.     INSURANCE 

Each party agrees to maintain insurance levels, or self-insurance in accordance with ORS 
30.282, for the duration of this agreement at levels necessary to protect against public body 
liability as specified in ORS 30.270.  Contractors which are community libraries shall 
provide certification of insurance upon request. 

 
 
15.     COUNTERPARTS 

This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original, 
all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 
 
16.     CAPTIONS 

Captions and headings used in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be 
construed or interpreted so as to enlarge or diminish the rights or obligations of the parties hereto. 

 
 
 



  Page 9 

FOR THE CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
      
Signature 
 
      
Title 
 
      
Date 
 
 
 
 
FOR WASHINGTON COUNTY: 
 
      
Signature 
 
      
Title 
 
______________________________  
Washington County   
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________  
Sr. Assistant County Counsel 
 



5/6/2016, Page 1 

AMENDMENT TO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
WASHINGTON COUNTY COOPERATIVE LIBRARY SERVICES 

 
 This amends the Intergovernmental Agreement dated January 17, 2006 between 
Washington County on behalf of Washington County Cooperative Library Services, and the cities of 
Banks, Beaverton, Cornelius, Forest Grove, Hillsboro, Sherwood, Tigard, and Tualatin, and the 
Cedar Mill Community Library Association and the Garden Home Community Library Association 
(“Contractors”) as follows: 
 
 
In accordance with Section 4.I: Adding or Subtracting Members, the City of North Plains shall 
be added as a Member, effective July 1, 2007.  The City of North Plains, by its execution of this 
Amendment, also hereby agrees to be bound by all of the terms and conditions of the January 17, 
2006 Intergovernmental Agreement and all Amendments thereto.    
 
Amend Section 4, A: WCCLS EXECUTIVE BOARD Membership to read as follows:   

 
4. WCCLS EXECUTIVE BOARD 

 
A. Membership 

The Executive Board shall consist of thirteen (13) voting Board Members 
(“Members”) representing the eleven (11) Contracting library service providers, the 
West Slope Community Library, and Washington County.  For the cities of 
Beaverton, Cornelius, Forest Grove, Hillsboro, North Plains, Sherwood, Tigard, and 
Tualatin, the Members shall be the chief administrative officers of those jurisdictions 
or their designees.  For the City of Banks, the Cedar Mill Community Library 
Association and the Garden Home Community Library Association, the Members 
shall be representatives designated by the Contractors’ governing boards.  For the 
West Slope Community Library, the Member shall be a representative of the 
community appointed by the Board of County Commissioners.  The Washington 
County Administrator (or designee) shall represent countywide services.  The 
Executive Board will meet as needed and will convene either prior to or immediately 
following the city/county managers’ meetings. 

 
Amend Section 5, A: WCCLS POLICY GROUP Membership to read as follows: 
 
5. WCCLS POLICY GROUP 
 

A. Membership 
The WCCLS Policy Group (“Policy Group”) shall consist of thirteen (13) voting 
Members representing the eleven (11)  contracting library service providers, the 
West Slope Community Library, and a library that is a non-public library WILInet 
member (either Tuality Health Information Resource Center or the Oregon College 
of Art and Craft library).  These thirteen Members shall be the library directors or 
their designees.  



5/6/2016, Page 2 

 
 

This amendment shall become effective July 1, 2007. 
 

In performing the above, it is understood and agreed that all other terms and conditions of the 
original Intergovernmental Agreement of January 17, 2006 and amendments thereto are still in 
effect. 

 
 

FOR THE CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
      
Signature 
 
      
Title 
 
      
Date 
 
 
 
 
FOR WASHINGTON COUNTY: 
 
      
Signature 
 
      
Title 
 
______________________________  
Washington County   
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________  
Sr. Assistant County Counsel 
 



TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Aquilla Hurd-Ravich, Planning Manager
Alice Cannon, Assistant City Manager

DATE: 05/23/2016

SUBJECT: Continued from March 14, 2016: Consideration of a Petition Requesting
Annexation of Property at 18600 SW Pacific Highway (Tax Map 2S1 21A, Tax
Lot 1100) (ANN-15-0002)

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
This public hearing was continued from March 14, 2016 to May 23, 2016.  Consideration of a
petition for annexation of a property located at 18600 SW Pacific Highway and identified as Tax
Lot 1100 on Washington County Assessor’s Map 2S1 21A and withdrawing the territory from
the Washington County Enhanced Sheriff Patrol District and the County Urban Road
Maintenance District.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council consider the staff report and direct staff to prepare an
ordinance that reflects Council direction. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
This matter is a quasi-judicial public hearing, and it is a petition for an expedited annexation.
 
The applicant is Dave Kimmel, President, PDG Planning Design Group, representing Stein
Woodburn LLC, owners of the 2.05-acre Tax Lot 1100 (Map 2S1 21A) with the address of
18600 SW Pacific Highway. The subject property is located in the western portion of the City
and is bordered by Pacific Highway 99W on the eastern boundary, Pacific Drive on the western
boundary, Cipole Road on the southern boundary, and a development lot in the General
Commercial Planning District on the northern boundary.  A vicinity map and existing conditions
map are included as Attachments 101 and 102. The property is currently located in
unincorporated Washington County in the FD-10 Planning District (Future Development 10-Acre
Section 309). The application materials are included as Attachment 103.
 
The applicant conducted a neighborhood/developer meeting on September 10, 2015, to explain
the proposal to neighboring property owners and to receive comments. Besides the applicant
and one City staff member, 37 residents of nearby residential areas attended and marked the
sign-in sheets. Questions regarding development plans for the property were answered.



sign-in sheets. Questions regarding development plans for the property were answered.
Concerns were targeted at the applicant’s potential proposal to develop the site for a gas station
and convenience store if this Annexation application is approved and if the subsequent
Architectural Review application is approved.  Concerns ranged from traffic congestion, health
and safety impacts, environmental impacts, aesthetic risks, and diminishing property values. An
excerpt from the application materials contains comments received at the neighborhood
developer meeting held on September 10, 2015 (Attachment 104) and all comments received to
date are included in the Comment Log (Attachment 105).
 
There are no existing structures or improvements on the property (Attachment 102).

The site is already in the General Commercial Planning District in the City's Development Plan.
 A selection of the Tualatin Development Code (TDC) chapters that will apply to existing
structures, signs, uses, access, and facilities on the subject property upon annexation are not
limited to, but are as follows: 

General Provisions
Subdividing, Partitioning and Property Line Adjustment
Sign Regulations
General Commercial Planning District (CG)
Community Design Standards
Public Improvement Requirements
Access Management

 
The purpose of the General Commercial Planning District “is to provide areas of the city that are
suitable for a full range of commercial uses… [it] is particularly suitable for businesses needing
direct automobile access to the freeway and the arterial streets leading to the freeway.  Such
uses are motels, drive-in restaurants, automobile service stations and carwashes.” (Tualatin
Development Code Chapter 54 Section 54.010.)  If this annexation application is approved, any
of the permitted uses or conditionally permitted uses could locate on the subject property. 
 
The applicant has prepared application materials that address the annexation approval criteria
(Attachment 103). The submitted application contains all the necessary signatures to qualify for
the expedited annexation hearing as described in Metro Code 3.09.045. Staff has reviewed the
application material and addressed all annexation criteria in the Analysis and Findings section of
this report (Attachment 106). Notice of public hearing was mailed to all surrounding properties
for this March 14, 2016 hearing in accordance with TDC 31.064(1). 
 
The Analysis and Findings attachment compares in detail the application to each criteria and
the section below is a brief summary describing the criteria for consideration.   The City Council
must find that the annexation conforms to Tualatin Development Code (TDC) Objectives
4.050(20) and (21), and the applicable criteria in Metro Code 3.09 and Oregon Revised Statutes
(ORS; TDC 31.067[6]). The annexation approval criteria are listed below:
  

A.   Metro Code, 3.09.050(d) states that an approving entity’s final decision on a
boundary change shall include findings and conclusions addressing the following
criteria:

   
1) Consistency with directly applicable provisions in an urban service provider
agreement or annexation plan adopted pursuant to ORS 195.065. This Oregon
Revised Statute governs urban service agreements between local jurisdictions and special

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-31-general-provisions#31.064


districts. Two special districts that serve this property and will continue to serve the
property are Clean Water Services providing sanitation and Tualatin Valley Fire and
Rescue providing fire protection service.

2) Consistency with directly applicable provisions of urban planning or other
agreements, other than agreements adopted pursuant to ORS 195.065, between the
affected entity and a necessary party. Washington County and the City of Tualatin have
an Urban Planning Area Agreement that identifies this property as being part of Tualatin’s
Planning Area.

3) Consistency with specific directly applicable standards or criteria for boundary
changes contained in comprehensive land use plans and public facility plans.
Tualatin Development Code has the following standards in our comprehensive plan.

4.050(20)         Initiate annexation of property within the Urban Growth Boundary
planned for residential development only when petitioned to do so by owners of the
affected property, including cases involving unincorporated “islands” of property
surrounded by land annexed previously. The subject property is not assigned a
residential Planning District.  It is assigned a General Commercial Planning District and
the property owners have petitioned for annexation.

   
4.050(21)         Territories to be annexed shall be in the Metro Urban Growth
Boundary. The subject property is currently within the Metro Urban Growth Boundary.

   
4) Consistency with specific directly applicable standards or criteria for boundary
changes contained in the Regional Framework Plan or any functional plan. This
section addresses Metro adopted plans.  Annexation of the subject property is consistent
with these regional plans and explained in more detail in the full Analysis and Findings
section.

5) Whether the proposed change will promote or not interfere with the timely,
orderly, and economic provisions of public facilities and services. Staff examined
the availability of public utilities such as water, sanitary sewer service, and storm water to
the property in SW Pacific Drive and SW Cipole Road.  Transportation including
pedestrian, bicycle and vehicle access were also examined as part of this criteria and are
available via SW Pacific Drive, SW Cipole Road, and SW Pacific Highway.  All urban
services would be available to this site upon development. 

   
6) If the proposed boundary change is for annexation of territory to Metro, a
determination by the Metro Council that the territory should be included in the
Urban Growth Boundary shall be the primary criterion for approval. The subject
property is currently within the Urban Growth Boundary.

7) Consistency with other applicable criteria for the boundary change in question
under state and local law.   The applicant prepared a response to the Oregon
Administrative Rule Titled Transportation Planning Rule.  Staff finds the proposal
consistent with the State's Transportation Planning Rule.  There are two other items in
Oregon Revised Statues from Chapter 222 City Boundary Changes; Mergers;
Consolidations; Withdrawals. The first item ORS 222.111(1) allows Cities to extend their
boundaries to properties not in another city and that are contiguous to the city. The second
item ORS 222.520(1) allows for property to be withdrawn from a district such as the



Washington County Enhanced Sheriff’s Patrol. 

B.   Metro 3.09.050(g) states that, “Only territory already within the defined Metro
Urban Growth Boundary at the time a petition is complete may be annexed to the
city or included in territory proposed for incorporation into a new city.”   The
subject property was part of the Metro Urban Growth Boundary when the annexation
application was submitted on September 21, 2015 and deemed complete on December
16, 2015.

  
  
The territory will concurrently be withdrawn from the Washington County Enhanced Sheriff
Patrol District and the Urban Road Maintenance District. The property is within the service
district boundary of Clean Water Services (CWS), the Washington County stormwater
management and sewage treatment agency, and does not need to be annexed into the CWS
District upon annexation into the City.
 
 
Before granting the proposed annexation, the City Council must find that the annexation
conforms to TDC Objectives 4.050(20) and (21), the applicable criteria in Metro Code 3.09 and
Oregon Revised Statutes (TDC 31.067[6]). The Analysis and Findings (Attachment 106)
examines the application in respect to the requirements for granting an annexation. Staff finds
that the annexation meets the applicable criteria.

OUTCOMES OF DECISION:
Granting the Annexation petition will result in the following: 

 The property is annexed to the City of Tualatin and designated in the General Commercial
(CG) Planning District.

1.

 The territory is concurrently withdrawn from the Washington County Enhanced Sheriff
Patrol District and the Urban Road Maintenance District.

2.

 The City Council directs staff to bring back an ordinance for the annexation.3.

 
Denial of the Annexation petition will result in the following:
  

The property remains outside the city limits and within unincorporated Washington County.

ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION:
The alternatives to the staff recommendation for the Council are:
  

Continue the discussion of the annexation and return to the matter at a later date.1.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
If this application is approved, the City will provide services to the property and the property
owner will begin paying City property taxes for those services. The applicant paid the required
application fee of $1,530.00.

Attachments: Attachment 101 - Vicinity Maps



Attachment 102- Existing Conditions
Attachment 103- Application Materials
Attachment 104 - Comments Received at Neighborhood Meeting
Attachment 105- Comment Log as of March 7, 2016
Attachment 106 - Analysis and Findings
Attachment 107 - Presentation
Attachment 108- Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016
Attachment 109- Second Petition
Attachment 110- Comment Log as of March 11, 2016
Attachment 111- Comment Log as of March 14, 2016
Attachment 112- Lender Family Comment
Attachment- 113 Revised Legal Description and Map



SW
 1

35
TH

 T
E

R

SW
 1

34
TH

 T
E

R

SW
 1

33
R

D
 T

ER

SW PACIFIC DR

SW
 1

30
TH

 A
V

E

18600 SW Pacific Highway

²
This map is derived from various digital database sources.
While an attempt has been made to provide an accurate map,
the City of Tualatin, OR assumes no responsibility or liability
for any errors or ommissions in the information.  This map is
provided "as is". -Engineering and Building Dept.
Printed 2/29/2016

RF 1:4,000

_̂

SW PACIFIC HWY

City Boundary

Medium Low Density Residential

Medium High Density Residential

General Manufacturing

General Commercial

I

S
W

C
IP

O
LE

R
D

Attachment 101: Vicinity Map

 
 

Attachment 101 Vicinity Maps 1



S
W

 1
18

TH
 A

V
E

S
W

 1
35

TH
 T

E
R

S
W

 1
34

TH
 T

E
R

S
W

 1
19

TH
 A

V
E

SW
12

4T
H

AV
E

SW
124TH

AVE

S
W

 1
26

TH
 P

L

S
W

 1
33

R
D

 T
E

R

SW BRADLEY LN

S
W

 1
35

TH
 P

L

SW BEDFORD ST

SW LEVETON DR

S
W

 M
O

N
TA

G
U

E
 W

AY

S
W

 1
28

TH
 A

V
E

SW UTE ST

SW SHAKESPEARE ST

SW PACIFIC DR

SW
 C

IPO
LE R

D

SW PACIFIC HWY - 9
9W

S
W

 1
28

TH
 A

V
E

S
W

 1
30

TH
 A

V
E

18600 SW Pacific Highway

_̂

SW TUALATIN RD

SW
C

IPO
LE

R
D

City Boundary

General Commercial

Recreational Commercial

Light Manufacturing

General Manufacturing

Manufacturing Park

High Density Residential

Low Density Residential

Medium High Density Residential

Medium Low Density Residential

²
This map is derived from various digital database sources.
While an attempt has been made to provide an accurate map,
the City of Tualatin, OR assumes no responsibility or liability
for any errors or ommissions in the information.  This map is
provided "as is". -Engineering and Building Dept.
Printed 2/2/2016

RF 1:8,500

 
 

Attachment 101 Vicinity Maps 2



18600 SW Pacific Highway

SW PACIFIC HWY

SW PACIFIC DR

S
W

C
IP

O
LE

R
D

I

Attachment 102: Existing Conditions

Attachment 102 - Page 1







































































































































































































































































































































































































































 

Attachment 104:  

Comments received at the Neighborhood Developer Meeting on September 10, 
2015 

 

Attachment 104 - Comments Received at Neighborhood Meeting Page 1



Stein Oil Annexation, Proposed new Chevron Station, convenience store and card lock facility at 18600 S.W. 
Pacific Drive and Cipole Road, Tualatin, OR 

My concern is regarding the traffic situation on Pacific Drive. Currently on Pacific Drive beginning at the far 
east end of the street there are the following: 

1. Riverwood Assisted Living, a 60 apartment community that employees 30 staff members, some drive and 
a few use public transportation. There are an average of 20 visitors and service providers that visit this 
facility daily. This is approx. 45 vehicle round trips per day using Pacific Drive. 

2. Cedar Crest a 56 resident Alzheimer's Special Care Center which employees a staff of 50. Some of these 
drive and a few use public transportation. This is approx. 45 vehicle round trips per day using Pacific 
Drive 

3. Angel Haven Mfg. Home Community, a 55+ senior community with 125 homes, 184 residents and 
approx. 163 vehicles. At least 1/3 of these vehicles drive in and out daily, and approx. 20 visitors and 
service vehicles drive in and out daily. This is 75 vehicle round trips per day using Pacific Drive. 

*** Riverwood, Cedar Crest and Angel Haven all have an unusually high number of fire trucks, 
paramedic vehicles and ambulances arriving and leaving by way of Pacific Drive. Tri-met lift buses 
also use Pacific Drive to access these communities.**** 

4. Directly across the street from Angel Haven on Pacific Drive is Diamond Auto Sales and Tualatin 
Computer Repair. These businesses face Pacific Highway, but are also accessed on Pacific Drive. The 
traffic from these two businesses is minimal, probably 15 vehicles per day using Pacific Drive. 

5. Also across the street from Angel Haven is Willamette Landscape Co. The Company has approx. 25 
vehicles and there are approx. 30 employee vehicles. The employees arrive early in the morning and 
then they leave with the company vehicles. In the late afternoon the company vehicles return and the 
employees leave. This is approx. 55 vehicle round trips per day on Pacific Drive. 

6. Next to Angel Haven going west is Pony Ridge Housing Development that has about 120 homes and each 
home has an average of two vehicles. This is a mixed neighborhood with families with children, single 
people and couples. The residents are very mobile and have a high number of working people. Approx. 
140 vehicle round trips daily on Pacific Drive. 

7. Directly across the street from Pony Ridge is Funtime RV which has a parts department and service 
department in addition to their large sales lot. This business has a traffic load of approx. 25 vehicles 
daily on Pacific Drive. 

This totals potentially 455 vehicle round trips per day currently on Pacific Drive. Pacific Drive 
currently has a high traffic load and it is not in condition to handle a higher traffic load. If this facility 
were to be approved, Pacific Drive would have to be brought up to the standards of a Minor Collector 
street which it currently does not meet. 

Attachment 104 - Comments Received at Neighborhood Meeting Page 2



The City of Tualatin TSP, February 2013 has classified Pacific Drive as a "Minor Collector" street. They 
define Minor Collector as: "Primary function is to connect neighborhoods with major collector streets to 
facilitate movement of local traffic; serves as primary routes into residential neighborhoods; has slower 
speeds to ensure community livability and safety for pedestrians and bicyclists; on street pedestrian and 
bicycle facilities are required, bicycle facilities may be exclusive or where street parking is prevalent, shared 
roadways depending on traffic volumes, speeds and extent of bicycle travel; may be used by public transit." 

The Street Design Standards for Minor Collector indicates a minimum of 62 ft. from inside of sidewalk on 
the left to the inside of the sidewalk on the right. This 62 feet ilbroken up into two sidewalks, two planter 
strips, two bike lanes and two traffic lanes of eleven ft. each. Pacific drive currently has (where there are 
side walks) a seven foot sidewalk on the north side only of Pacific Drive, a "planter/parking strip" of 12 feet, 
21 feet of street and 13 feet of grass on the south side of the street. I measured this at one location outside of 
Angel Haven and across to Williamette Landscape's property fence. These figures definitely add up to 53 
feet which is 9 feet short of the 62 ft. required as a minimum for a Minor Collector Street. 

Attachment 104 - Comments Received at Neighborhood Meeting Page 3



I would like to address the traffic problems that exist on Pacific Drive: 

(1) The east entrance to Pacific Drive from Pacific Hwy is a very strange difficult "fishhook" with a 
right hand turn into Riverwood and Cedar Crest. The stop sign from Pacific Drive at Pacific Highway is 
hidden behind a bank with trees on the top of it by Diamond Auto Sales. There is also a Tri-met bus 
stop at the same spot. If the planned facility is approved, this whole area should be reworked, the bus 
stop moved and a "stop ahead" sign installed before the curve on Pacific Drive. 

(2) The intersection of Ci pole and Pacific Drive should be a three-way stop instead of the confusing and 
potentially dangerous current situation. Also the bushes and trees on the west side of Cipole Rd. need 
to be removed and that area kept clear so that traffic moving west to east on Pacific Drive can see the 
traffic on Ci pole without having to pull into the middle of the intersection. 

(3) The west end of Pacific Drive in front ofLoen's Nursery Garden Center needs to be reworked and 
repaired if there is to be an increase in traffic on Pacific Drive. 

( 4) Pacific Drive is hardly wide enough to handle two cars as they pass one another. There is a sidewalk 
only on portions of Pacific Drive and the rest of the street has grass and weeds along the street. There 
are residents from Riverwood and Angel Haven who use electric scooters on Pacific Drive. This is a real 
hazard for them. 

(5) Even with the amount of traffic that currently uses Pacific Drive to access Pacific Highway at Cipole 
Rd., there have been some very bad accidents at the Cipole Rd./Pacific Hwy. traffic signal. 

If this facility is approved, would the exit from the facility onto Pacific Drive be a "left hand only" exit in 
order that the traffic could be routed back to Ci pole Rd. or the west end of Pacific Drive? 

Currently there are usually 12 to 20 cars that park on Pacific Drive, if this facility is approved, would 
Pacific Drive be a "no parking" street? 

What does Tualatin and/or Washington County plan to do to correct existing problems and bring Pacific 
Drive up to standards of safety and livability for the over 500 people who currently live on or adjacent to 
Pacific Drive? 

Will the school bus stops be moved from their current locations? 

Will there be "local traffic only" signs installed to keep traffic from the Chevron/convenience store from 
entering 133rd, 134th and 135th Terraces? 

Barbara Ouellette 
18485 S.W. Pacific Dr., #21 
Tualatin, OR 97062 
bcohome@gmail.com 

Attachment 104 - Comments Received at Neighborhood Meeting Page 4



Kristin Lanning 
18404 SW 135th Terrace 

Tualatin, OR 97062 

September 10, 2015 

Attention: 
Stein Oil 
Residents of Pony Ridge 
City of Tualatin Planning Division 
Citizen Advisory Committee: Tualatin Planning Commission 

I am writing to express a list of concerns I have related to the proposal to ~nnex and develop the 
property located at 18600 SW Pacific with a Chevron Gas Station, Red Barn Convenience Store, 
and a card lock facility. 

My primary concerns involve the health and safety of the residents of my neighborhood, the 
environmental impact, and (to a much lesser degree) the aesthetic impact on our community. 

The Pony Ridge neighborhood is a quiet group of about 100 houses and 250 residents. These 
homes are exclusively 2-3 bedrooms, and tend to attract young families and empty nesters in 
particular. The proposed development will have a significant impact on our small community 
and will pose a threat to the parts of our community that are unique and highly valued by the 
residents here. 

Health Risks 

According to the American Cancer Society, which reviewed a number of studies related 
to this issue, children living near gas stations have a quadrupled risk of developing leukemia. 
Adults also have an increased of two types of leukemia and other blood-related cancers. This risk 
is related to high levels of exposure to the chemical benzene, which is found in high 
concentrations near gas stations for a variety of reasons that are not manageable by gas station 
companies. The use of a card lock system, and consequently unmonitored refueling, increases 
this risk further. 

The risks of benzene are well documented by other agencies as well, including 
The International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC), which is part of the World Health 
Organization (WHO). Based on a review of the evidence, the IARC determined that benzene is 
linked to severe illnesses including three types of leukemia, multiple myeloma (a blood cancer) 
and non-Hodgkin lymphoma. 

The National Toxicology Program (NTP), which is a joint venture with the National 
Institutes of Health, Centers for Disease Control, and the Food and Drug Administration, Attachment 104 - Comments Received at Neighborhood Meeting Page 5



classifies benzene as a carcinogen-that is, a chemical known to cause cancer, as does US 
Environmental Protection Agency. 

Locating a gas station near a residential area exposes families to benzene on a daily, long
term basis, and the health risks of benzene are known to increase with the length of exposure. 
Due to these risks to human health, studies recommend that gas stations be located at least 100 
meters from residential areas, particularly in areas with vulnerable people such as children and 
older adults. By my calculation, the location of the proposed development will be located within 
100 meters of about 15 houses. 

Leukemia is the most common form of childhood cancer, and occurs most often in 
children ages 2 to 4. For children in this age range, the cancer survival rate is only about 50%. 
As one of the eighteen families potentially affected by this risk, particularly as I am currently 
pregnant with our first child, these statistics are both alarming and heartbreaking. 

It is precisely these statistics and risk factors that have led to many communities 
restricting gas stations from being located near residential areas. In fact, a preliminary search of 
Tualatin's gas stations shows this to be an unprecedented move in this city, as other gas stations 
are located in business and industrial parks over 500 feet from residences. 

There is no shortage of available lots in our area for which developing a gas station 
would be a safe and responsible option. Next door to a neighborhood is a very poor choice for 
our community, and seriously jeopardizes the health and safety of both children and adults. I 
strongly believe that the business and commercial advantages are simply not worth the risk to 
our community and its most vulnerable residents. 

Environmental Risks 

Our community adjoins a small, beautiful walking trail that overlooks the Tualatin River. 
The Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge is about 7/10 of a mile from the lot of the proposed 
development. 

Research suggests that small amounts of spilled gasoline over long periods of time has a 
significant effect on the surrounding environment. According to an article published by Johns 
Hopkins in 2014, researchers estimate that, conservatively, about 1,500 liters of gasoline are 
spilled each decade at a typical gas station. Again, I imagine this amount to be even higher given 
an unmonitored card-lock system with 24-hour access. 

The Johns Hopkins article states that the environmental impact of gas stations has been 
poorly studied and understood thus far. This is particularly concerning considering the proximity 
of this lot to both the Tualatin River and the Wildlife Refuge, as rain water and natural seepage 
into groundwater will undoubtedly expose these areas to benzene and other harmful chemicals. 

In addition to the inevitable risks of daily, small spills, there is also a risk of leaking in 
the underground storage tank used by the gas station. According to a report from the Sierra Club 
on underground storage tanks (UST), "one gallon of petroleum can contaminate one million 
gallons of water. One pin-prick sized hole in an UST can leak 400 gallons of fuel a year." 

Attachment 104 - Comments Received at Neighborhood Meeting Page 6



These leaks are not uncommon and are both difficult and costly to address. According to 
a report from the United States Environmental Protection Agency from May of2015, over 
525,000 leaks have been confirmed since the program's creation, with 40 states spending 1 
billion dollars annually to clean up leaking underground storage tanks. Although cleanup from an 
underground storage leak is undoubtedly always impactful to the environment, a leak in such 
close proximity to both a river and a wildlife preserve would undoubtedly have a profound 
impact on sensitive nature and wildlife. 

Aesthetic risks 

Although the health and environmental impact of a gas station are my primary concerns, I 
will also briefly mention how the proposed development affects the aesthetics of our little 
community. 

One of the things that drew my husband and me to this neighborhood is the sense of 
peace and safety that was clear in our neighborhood. Despite the proximity of99W, I am 
continually amazed at how removed our street feels from the bustle of even the small cities of 
Tigard and Sherwood. Our street is traveled exclusively by residents and visitors, and at night the 
streets are quiet and the stars are bright. Often my husband and I will go for walks on Pacific, 
enjoying the fresh air of the green belt and the field, and listening to crickets and frogs. 

The proposed development will expose our neighborhood to light, smell, and sound 
pollution at all hours of the day and night, in addition to 24-hour traffic, and some of the 
invaluable aesthetic qualities of our community will be lost. This concern would be nonexistent 
if this development was located in a part of our city that is not primarily residential in nature. 

Summary 

The proposed development poses a threat to the health of my community and its 

surrounding environment. Locating this type of business in a residential area is a short-sighted 
and irresponsible choice that will have a significant impact on my family and the families around 
me. I cannot overstate that the health and environment of this development need to be researched 
and weighed by involved parties, as these impacts are irreversible once in place. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Attachment 104 - Comments Received at Neighborhood Meeting Page 7



References: 

EPA website: Underground Storage Tank Program: http://www.epa.gov/oust/aboutust.htm 

American Cancer Society: Benzene: www.cancer.org 

Center for Disease Control and Prevention: Facts about Benzene: 
http://www.bt.cdc.gov/agent/benzene/basics/facts.asp 

Study published in Epimideology Journal (2003): "Leukemia risk associated with low-level 
benzene exposure." http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/l 4501272 

Study published in Published by Occupational Environmental Medicine (2009): "Acute 
childhood leukaemia and residence next to petrol stations and automotive repair garages: the 

ESCALE study (SFCE)." http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/19213757 

Article published by Johns Hopkins University (2014): "Small Spills at Gas Stations Could 
Cause Significant Public Health Risks Over Time" http://www.jhsph.edu/news/news
releases/2014/small-spills-at-gas-stations-could-cause-significant-public-health-risks-over

time.html) 

Sierra Club report (2004): "Leaking Underground Storage Tanks: A Threat to Public Health & 
Environment" http://www. csu. edu/cerc/ documents/L USTThreattoPublicHealth. pdf 

Article published by Front Porch (2015): "Risks of Benzene Emissions from Gas Stations" 

http://frontporchstapleton.com/article/risks-benzene-emissions-gas-stations/ 

Article published by Scientific American (2009): "Is it safe to live near a gas station?" 

http://www.scientificamerican.com/article/is-it-safe-to-live-near-gas-station/ 

Article published by Discovery News (2011 ): "Gas stations are toxic neighbors" 

http:! /news. discovery. com/ earth/ gas-stations-are-toxic-neighbors. htm 

Article published by ScienceDaily (2011 ): "Gas stations pollute their immediate surroundings, 
Spanish study finds" http://www.sciencedaily.com/releases/201 l/02/110204130315.htm 

Attachment 104 - Comments Received at Neighborhood Meeting Page 8



I ask the city of Tualatin planning staff to personally come and visit the proposed location before more work is 

done on the proposed gas station development submitted by Stein Oil. You may contact me to arrange for this 

on-site visit. 

Next, I would like to propose that the City planning staff, and at least two of the Pony Ridge and Angel Haven 

community members meet to discuss a" master plan" for the commercial area along 99w and Pacific Drive 

adjoining our communities. I suggest this meeting occur BEFORE any more work is done by staff on the Stein Oil 

development proposal. Two topics that we would like to discuss with the City Planning staff are: 

• First, we would like to discuss that an "over lay" be added to this specific commercial area which allows 

general commercial, but the over-lay limits the commercial to lighter uses which are more compatible 

with the residential communities located along Pacific Drive. Such allowed uses in an over-lay might be 

low rise offices for medical, dental, small use retail for dog groomers, etc. An overlay such as this would 

provide a needed buffer between the residential areas and the commercial development. Tualatin, very 

often, provides a buffer between residential areas and commercial and industrial zones. Most recently, 

Councilor Beikman in the last City Council work session gave her concern that there needs to be more of 

a buffer between the residential areas and the proposed commercial and industrial areas in Basalt Creek 

planning area. The same consideration should be given this heavily residential area with its many 

children and aged populations. 

• Second, we are concerned about the width of Pacific Drive and needed improvements to accommodate 

future commercial growth. 

In summary, we would like to work with City planning staff to prepare an over-all design for this area which all 

can agree with and which gives proper consideration to the existing residential area and, also, allows for "light" 

commercial businesses to be successful. 

And last, I am also asking the City Planning staff and our City Councilors to consider the negative impacts of the 

Stein Oil development proposal prior to annexation and approval of the plan. 

In the interest of time, I will simply summarize some the adverse affects: 

1.Traffic to and from a 24 hour/ 7 days a week gas station will create a large volume of traffic 

2. Safety- the high population of elderly and children are unnecessarily put at risk with this type of 

commercial use 

3. Property Value- the presence of a gas station will de-value our owner-occupied properties due to the 

24/7 traffic, lights, etc. of a gas station in such close proximity to the residential. areas. 

Thank You, 

Ata (Ted) Saedi 

atasaedi@hotmail.com 503-925-9625 

Sept 10, 20015 Attachment 104 - Comments Received at Neighborhood Meeting Page 9



(Date) 

(Name) 
(Address) 
(City. State Zip) 

Letterhead (if available) 

RE: (Project name. description. location) 

Dear Property Owner: 

You are cordially invited to attend a meeting on (this date) at (this time) and at (this 
location). This meeting shalt be held to discuss a proposed project located at (address 
of property, cross streets). The proposal is to (describe orooosal here). 

The purpose of this meeting is to provide a means for the appHcant and surrounding 
property owners to meet and discuss this proposal and identify any issues regarding 
this proposal. 

Regards, 

<Your name) 
(Company name) 
(Contact phone number and email) 

As the applicant for the :51& a !Vo oJ fu ;· 1{ LL c 

project, I hereby certify that on this day, /JwrwtJ :2&, .::¥015 notice .of the 

Neighborhood I Developer meeting was ma11ed in accordance with the requirements of the 

Tualatin Development Code and the Community Development Department - Planning 

Division. 

Applicant's Name: =:D11 ue- ti '11111 e f 
(PLEASE PRINT) 

Applicant's Signature: __..~ ......... -=-_,,_,~ ......... ~·&if-...._J....__ __________ _ 

Date: B -- YC/--15"' 

-- --------------------

Attachment 104 - Comments Received at Neighborhood Meeting Page 10



PDG Planning Design Group 
1335 SW 66th Ave. #201 
Portland, Oregon 97225 

PH: 503-329-5399 
Email: pdgplanning@comcast.net 

 
 
August 26, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
RE: Stein Oil Annexation with Gas Station, Convenience Store and Card Lock 
 
Dear Property Owner: 
 
You are cordially invited to attend a meeting on September 10, 2015 at 6:00 PM and 
at 18878 SW Martinazzi (Tualatin Library Community Room). This meeting shall be 
held to discuss a proposed project located at 18600 Pacific at the intersection of 
Highway 99W and Cipole. The proposal is to annex the property and then develop a 
Gas Station, Convenience Store and Card Lock fueling facility. 
 
The purpose of this meeting is to provide a means for the applicant and surrounding 
property owners to meet and discuss this proposal and identify any issues regarding 
this proposal. 
 
Regards: 
 
 
 
David P. Kimmel 
PDG Planning Design Group 
1335 SW 66th Ave., Suite 201 
Portland, OR 97225 
503-329-5399 
pdgplanning@comcast.net 

Attachment 104 - Comments Received at Neighborhood Meeting Page 11



PDG Planning Design Group 
1335 SW 66th Ave. #201 
Portland, Oregon 97225 

PH: 503-329-5399 
Fax: 503-327-8456 

Email: pdgplanning@comcast.net 
 

 
 
September 14, 2015 
 
 

Neighborhood Development/Annexation Meeting 
Meeting Date: 9/10/15 

Time: 6:00 PM 
Location: Tualatin Public Library 

 
Dave Kimmel, Planning Design Group, introduced himself, welcomed the attendees 
and began the presentation shortly after 6:00 PM. (See three attached Sign In sheets 
for list of attendees). He also introduced Bob Stein, Sue Stein and Ann Stein as the 
new property owners. 
 
The following notes summarize his presentation to the group and responses from the 
group including letters submitted by neighbors. 
 
The proposed project is to annex the existing parcel into the City of Tualatin and 
develop a Chevron Gas Station with a 4,000 square foot convenience store with 
coffee drive-thru and a card lock facility for commercial vehicles. Mr. Kimmel 
expressed that this plan is the concept and includes all the items that the developer 
would like to construct, but that not all would be constructed initially. The card lock 
facility would initially consist of a single island, with the possibility of future expansion 
to add a second fueling island. 
 
Land use approval for the proposed project will involve two steps: first, annexation 
into the City of Tualatin; and second, architectural review and approval by the City of 
Tualatin. This meeting is intended to cover both aspects of the proposed 
development plan. Mr. Kimmel attempted to explain the annexation procedures, and 
was assisted by Cindy Hahn from the City who was also in attendance. 
 
The property is in the City of Tualatin’s General Commercial Plan District which 
allows the gas station, convenience store and the card lock facility. Access is 
proposed to be from both Highway 99W and also a single driveway on Pacific Drive. 
The developer will be providing additional property dedication along all three 
frontages as well as installing needed public improvements including sidewalks, bike 
lanes and landscape buffers as required by the City Engineering department. 

Attachment 104 - Comments Received at Neighborhood Meeting Page 12



41000' Buffer 1000' Buffer with Subdivisions Selected Taxlots

Mailing List - 18600 SW Pacific Dr

Attachment 104 - Comments Received at Neighborhood Meeting Page 13



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

Comments Received as of 
March 7, 2016 

 Name Comment 

1. John Maer  
 September 13, 2015  
Dear Mr. Mayor and City Council Members,  
 
I am writing to let you know how upset I am over the consideration by our City to annex the 
property and allow a gas station and quick-stop to be built on the corner of 99W and Cipole Rd. 
which is directly across from my neighborhood, Pony Ridge Estates. The first I heard of this 
was when I received an invitation to attend a meeting on the 10th of this month, which I plan to 
attend (and hope you do as well), but I get the feeling that the decision has already been made 
by my City representatives and this is just to appease the individuals whose neighborhood will 
be ruined by their decision.  
 
How can you possibly justify approving an action that would so adversely affect an entire 
neighborhood and do it with total disregard for the impacted individuals? That is truly appalling. 
The decision to build your fuel station will forever change the environment of our neighborhood 
and none of it in a positive way: 
 
• The crime in our neighborhood will likely rise due to the increased exposure from the greater 
traffic flow on our road. Our crime rate currently is likely one of the lowest in the City. This is 
because we are off of the ‘beaten path’. I know individuals who have lived in Tualatin 20 years 
and never knew our development was here.  
• Our children will be less safe due to the increased traffic—including tractor-trailers which 
cannot stop or maneuver as quick as automobiles.  
• Increased noise 24/7 from a variety of sources including traffic. Our neighborhood is currently 
a very quiet one.  
• Increased traffic congestion from all of the new traffic entering and exiting your new facility 
24/7—including semi trucks. Pacific Highway and Cipole Road were not designed to carry the 
amount of traffic that your station will generate.  
• You are negatively impacting my investment. This is currently a desirable place to live—the 
most recent home that sold here was on the market for one day and sold for $319,000. Home 
prices will go down due to your actions. I should have some say in this matter. This is not only 
the biggest monetary investment of my life, it is where I live—we chose this location based on 
it being ‘off the beaten path’ and quiet and not much traffic—now you are changing all of that. 
Why?  
 
Would you even consider doing this in your own neighborhood if even one of the above bullets 
affected you? I know you would not tolerate it. I cannot comprehend a city making decisions 
that impact its citizens without their input early on before things went beyond the point of no 
return.  
 
How is this decision representing our community’s best interest? I do not see any benefit to the 

1 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
1



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

City for annexing this property and zoning it to allow a fuel station to be constructed. The 
proposed station would be a 24/7 business with fuel, a quick-stop and lock-key system for semi-
trucks. It is not like we are lacking gas stations or quick stops along 99W. If you are only 
looking at it as an income source for the City what will happen when 120 homes lose a third of 
their value?  
 
Our city’s website brags about our community being one of America’s best cities and your 
genuine care for people…how does putting a gas station in what is basically my front yard 
enhance my life here? Are we not a part of the community as well? We already have to live with 
Grimm’s Fuel; do you think ‘oh well, these people deal with that every day, they won’t mind 
another annoyance—on top of the odor lets add light pollution and more traffic’? If you are 
really concerned about us who live on the fringe of the city why not re-zone this land when you 
annex it and turn it into something beneficial…maybe a small park for our children?  
 
Please consider your actions carefully and with our best interest in mind—as taxpaying citizens 
of Tualatin. As I stated, this decision has a huge impact on my both my quality of life and my 
financial investment. What I hear at Thursdays meeting will determine if/when I contact my 
senator concerning this. I am anxious to hear how the City believes this is a good idea and 
benefits the City of Tualatin and my neighborhood.  
 
Respectfully,  
John Maher 

 Name Comment 

2. John Maher From: John & Kathy  
Date: 9/17/2015 5:43 PM  
Subject: Re: Letter to Tualatin City Council Regarding Proposed Chevron Fuel Station 
 
Dear Mr. Mayor, 
Thank you for your response. My wife and I attended the meeting held by Stein Oil and it 
terrified us.  Our home is our largest investment and home prices are just recovering. Once this 
gas station is built, even if we wanted to sell our home we wouldn’t be able to. A realtor 
attended the meeting and informed us that the most common lenders would not approve loans 
to buyers located this close to a fuel station with large underground tanks—this is both terrifying 
and unacceptable! Not to mention that due to this loan restriction coupled with a fuel station in 
our back yard our home values will plummet. As mentioned before to you, I am a retired veteran 
from the U.S. Air Force and I cannot afford to start over again—I am counting on any equity I 
may build in my home as I am sure each of you are. 
 
My understanding of the situation is that the land that Mr. Stein recently purchased from the 
County was zoned residential but that the City of Tualatin has planned to zone it commercial 
upon annexation—commercial to the degree that allows just about anything including a fuel 
station. I am pleading with you that when the City reviews the annexation that a more realistic 
commercial zoning category be applied. One that would keep in line with the current businesses 
already on our road (an RV business,landscaping...). 
 
The room the meeting was held in was full and individuals brought medical studies pointing out 

2 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
2



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

the health hazards of living within our distance of fuel stations…serious and scary health 
hazards from chemicals such as benzene. I can provide these to you if you would like to see 
them. Our community has numerous children and elderly people already exposed to health 
hazards from Grimm’s Fuel, please don’t add to that risk. 
 
Again, I am pleading with you and the City Council to zone this land in a more appropriate 
way—one that does not financially and medically affect the lives of hundreds of your citizens. I 
cannot believe that just knowing the few facts that I have pointed out here that any responsible 
community would allow this. There are many other business opportunities for this land other 
than this option. Just as a courtesy, I want you to know that I am writing a letter to our Senator 
to bring this to his attention as well. Thank you very much. 
 
Respectfully, 
John Maher 

 Name Comment 

3. Angela 
DiPilato 

From: Angela DiPilato  
Sent: Wednesday, October 07, 2015 8:54 AM 
Subject: Re: Engineering Information - Future Development 
 
Hi All - 
I contacted you in February regarding some future development of land behind my current 
home. You were extremely helpful in giving me details about planning and I really appreciated it! 
 
This week, I saw signs up at the end of our street (SW 135th Terrace) discussing a proposal to 
Annex a plot of land for Stein oil to build a gas station. Many people in our neighborhood are 
against this proposal and some people have reached out to the city of Tualatin for explanations 
and options to voice our opinions. One resident suggested we write letters to city council. Do 
you have any more information on timing of the project or whether or not this gas station will be 
approved? 
 
Not only will it affect the value of our homes being so close to a gas station, but more 
importantly, it is bad for our children’s health and if the gas station is 24 hours like people are 
suspecting, that will bring unwanted clientele to our quiet neighborhood at all hours of the night. 
 
Thanks for your understanding. Please let me know if I should address my concerns to a 
different department. 
 
Kind Regards, 
Angela 

 Name Comment 

4. Patrick & 
Gerry 
McGuire 

Patrick McGuire 
Subject: Please help us fight against the ruination of our neighborhood 
Date: Saturday, October 17, 2015 3:08:25 PM 
Attachments: STEIN OIL too close to homes.pdf 
Some people live next to gas stations, but no one wants or chooses to. No 
one chooses to purchase the property next 

3 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
3



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

door if they can buy elsewhere. A proposed gas station/ card lock facility/ mini-mart by 
Stein Oil near the Pony Ridge Development in Tualatin (corner 
of Hwy 99W and Cipole/Fischbuck) will take away any choice in the matter for current 
residents and severely impact and disrupt their quality of life & 
property values. Stein Oil is requesting annexation from the city of Tualatin, who has 
zoned this property general commercial when annexed. None of 
the five other Stein Oil gas station/card lock facilities are in such close proximity to 
residential homes but are in solely industrial areas or have large 
buffer zones. There are approximately 500 people in this quiet & private neighborhood 
– not many people know this neighborhood exists. Besides 
single family homes, there is a senior and assisted living facility “Prestige Senior Living 
Riverwood” and “Angel Haven” mobile home community. 
Even with all the safeguards that are required today, tanks will leak and fumes escape 
while filling tanks. This poses very real health risks to those 
nearby especially the elderly and children who live adjacent to the property. The home 
we just bought at the beginning of the year is the closest property 
and would be directly affected by 24-hour light pollution, noise, mini-mart loitering, 
and higher risks of crime as well as known health risks. The wall of 
our house is 34 feet from where their curb will be. Future sale of the properties and 
property values will be impacted instantly – FHA financing has 
restrictions of proximity to large fuel tanks. 
We have tried to make our voices heard in meetings with Stein Oil and the city of 
Tualatin and fear no one cares about the impending ruination of what 
Riverwood’s website says: 
“Tucked away on the banks of the Tualatin River and in a quiet 
residential neighborhood, 
Riverwood Assisted Living is a perfect location for relaxation and 
reflection.” 
It won’t be for long with the increased traffic down our tiny narrow street: fuel trucks, 
cars and commercial rigs. Please help us get our voices heard! 
The following pages show other Stein Oil locations with the same facilities in 
appropriate locations – not next to homes. 

 Name Comment 

5. Clyde 
Holmes 

From: mblholmes  
To: council <council@citualatin.or.us> 
Sent: Sun, Feb 28, 2016 5:41 pm 
Subject: Stine oil co. 

The normal reaction to anything new is to reject the project as with the Stein oil co. on Pacific 
Dr. and Cippole.  I have looked at this project and thought very hard.     The project is not well 
suited for the location.  There are too many car wrecks at Hwy 99 and Cippole ,It is located to 
close to many houses which would be put in danger of many toxic fumes .   Should there be a 

4 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
4

mailto:council@citualatin.or.us


ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

major spill it would run down to the Tualatin reserve .  Even putting in a containment tank  will 
not stop the runoff if we have another great rain like we have had this year and what about a 
flood like we had a few years back.  We also  do not need to draw more people into the 
neighborhood who WILL look for an easy score.  You have a fuel line that crosses pacific Dr. 
and Hwy 99 Just on the other side of where this project is located. I have many more objections 
to this project ,but I want to be brief.   Please do not approve this project to be approved,allow a 
business that would be better suited for our 
neighborhood                                                                                                                                    
Thank you   Clyde Holmes a Pony Ridge resident  
 

 Name Comment 

6. Henry Russo From: HENRY RUSSO 
Sent: Sunday, February 28, 2016 5:02 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
Esteemed City Council members, 
 
I have been a resident of Pony ridge for 10 yrs., as such I can only be opposed to any business 
that would negatively impact the health, safety, security and property value of the Pony ridge 
neighborhood. The neighborhood charm truly speaks for itself, and the local should be zoned 
to allow only those businesses that would be more compatible with our neighborhood 
character. 
 
Sincerely, 
HJ Russo 
 

 Name Comment 

7. Mark 
Rieniets 

From: Mark Rieniets 
Sent: Sunday, February 28, 2016 8:36 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
Tualatin Council, 
I am a resident of 135th Ter Tualatin and live within a few hundred meters of the site which the 
Stein Oil Co is seeking permission to build a Gas station/Mini mart on Highway 99W. 
 
Although I have no opposition to a commercial development on this site, I am opposed to the 
current proposal of the Gas station/Mini mart.  I do not believe this type of business is well 
suited to a family orientated community such as we have in the Pony Ridge community. 
 
This type of business introduces environmental and physical risks to our community should 

5 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
5



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

any type of accident or spillage occur, but more importantly, it brings through traffic and foot 
traffic into our community at all hours of the day which may have a detrimental effect on the 
safety and wellbeing of our family orientated community. 
 
I thank you in advance for your consideration of my request to reject the Stein Oil Co proposal 
in favor of a commercial development which is better suited for our community. 
Thanks 
Mark 
 

 Name Comment 

8. Nancy Davis From: nancy davis 
Sent: Monday, February 29, 2016 7:44 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
Dear Sirs/Madame, 
As a resident of Angel Haven Mobile Home park, I strongly oppose the construction of a gas 
station/convenience store being proposed for the corner of Pacific Dr. and Cipole. This facility 
would cause a tremendous increase in traffic both foot and vehicle, and will only cause the 
possibility of vehicle accidents in the area. We currently enjoy a quiet neighborhood and this 
kind of facility will only bring crime and congestion to our neighborhood. 
Thank you, 
Nancy Davis 
 

 Name Comment 

9. Susan Forste Sent: Tuesday, March 01, 2016 7:10 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
Dear Councilors and Mayor 
 
I oppose the building of the gas station/mini mart due to the possible 
health risks, traffic congestion, safety issues, and lower property 
values that it is likely to cause. I have lived in this development for 
about 12 years now. It has been a nice small quiet community but I am 
concerned that by building this particular kind of  business that will 
drastically change. I would ask the council to consider a business that 
would better reflect the neighborhoods character. 
 
Thank you, 
Susan Forste 
 

6 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
6



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

 Name Comment 

10. Quentin 
Rieniets 

From: Quentin Rieniets 
Sent: Monday, February 29, 2016 8:42 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
To Tualatin City Council Members, 
I live in the Ponyridge community. I am writing to you in opposition of having a gas station 
built on Pacific Drive off 99W. There are many families in this community that will be 
negatively impacted if there were a gas station so close to our neighborhood, with many 
people stopping off the highway and being in such close proximity to children playing.  
My other concern is that it is so close to the wildlife refuge. Having spills and contamination of 
soils around an important water shed, as well as a vital wildlife habitat, would be irresponsible. 
 
Thank you for your time, 
 
Quentin Rieniets 
 

 Name Comment 

11. Jack Paris From: Jack Paris 
Sent: Tuesday, March 01, 2016 8:27 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposition to the Stein Oil Co. application 
 
Greetings to the Mayor and all of our Councilors.   
  
I would like to express my opposition and my grave concern about the Stein Oil Co. 
application.  I don’t see this application as a good or relevant fit for our neighborhood. 
I can imagine that it could create something of a traffic nightmare for us and it would also 
expose our quiet neighborhood to a lot of people who have no business being in 
or around our neighborhood. 
  
Thank you all for your consideration and we hope that you will join us in opposing this 
application. 
  
  
Jack Paris 
Controller 
Oregon Museum of Science and Industry 
 
 

7 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
7



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

 Name Comment 

12. Brenna 
Bastian 

From: Brenna Bastian  
Date: 3/1/2016 7:37 PM (GMT-08:00)  
To: Council <COUNCIL@ci.tualatin.or.us>  
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application  
 
My family lives in Pony Ridge. Our children are 17, 10 & 7. They are not opposed. They are excited about 
the prospect of being able to walk to buy overpriced stale candy. 𑠀. My husband and I are concerned 
about the safety of our neighborhood because a 24 hr gas station will attract unsavory people to our 
small neighborhood and will be more difficult for us to get in and out if Pacific drive becomes a one way 
street. Also concerned about the value of our home dropping and becoming difficult to sell.  
 
We would like to see a different business that is more family friendly  
 
Brenna Bastian  
 

 Name Comment 

13. Virgina 
Green 

From: Virginia Green 
Sent: Tuesday, March 01, 2016 5:33 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Company Application 
 

I am a resident of Pony Ridge and a homeowner for 6 years. I have been very happy 
here but that contentment has been threatened by the news of a gas station/mini 
mart/key lock facility proposed to be developed just feet away from our single family 
homes here. It will effect the value of homes that FHA would not finance (within 300 ft 
of a gasoline underground tank) and the value of homes beyond that limit would now be 
devalued in that it would negatively impact a potential buyer when they would be faced 
with the enormously increased traffic that would include trucks, tankers hourly entering 
and exiting on the only access street from our neighborhood.  
The visual effect of a 24/7 lighted gas station within view of my home at the end of my 
block - 135th Terrace is very disturbing.  

Over and above monetary value the negative effect on my quality of life is disturbing to 
contemplate. 

Please think a minute of your own neighborhood and picture a huge gas station/mini 
mart/ key lock facility within feet of your home and the security, well being and safety 

8 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
8

mailto:COUNCIL@ci.tualatin.or.us


ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

of your family. 

I urge you to delay the annexation of this property and consider a more compatible 
development in keeping with what is now a lovely Tualatin community – Pony Ridge. 
 

 Name Comment 

14. Cristine 
Olsen 

From: Cristine Olsen 
Sent: Tuesday, March 01, 2016 4:24 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Fw: NO GAS STATION ON CIPOLE 
 
 

On Tuesday, March 1, 2016 4:22 PM, Cristine Olsen  wrote: 
 

THIS IS CRAZY! THE LAND ACROSS CIPOLE AND PACIFIC DR. IS VACANT. WHY 
CAN'T THE GAS STATION BE THERE? THERE WOULD BE LESS IMPACT ON THE 
NEIGHBORHOOD AND TRAFFIC COULD GO BACK OUT TO 99W OR EAST 
PACIFIC INSTEAD OF DOWN WEST PACIFIC. THE SMELL IS DEFINITELY BE A 
PROBLEM FOR ME AS I HAVE ONGOING ALLERGIES AND SINUS PROBLEMS. 
THE NOISE OF BIG TRUCKS GOING DOWN PACIFIC DR. IS ALSO AN ISSUE. I 
WILL HEAR EVERY BRAKE AND GEAR SHIFT AND OUR NEIGHBORHOOD 
CHILDREN WILL NOT BE SAFE. THE EMPTY LAND BY THE NURSERY WOULD 
WORK ALSO. PUT YOURSELVES IN OUR PLACE, WOULD YOU LIKE TO HAVE A 
GAS STATION ACROSS THE STREET FROM YOUR HOUSE? I DON'T THINK SO. 
MY HOUSE IS CLOLSE ENOUGH TO THIS PROPOSED LOCATION THAT IT WILL 
EFFECT MY RESALE VALUE. ARE YOU GOING TO COMPENSATE ME FOR 
THAT? NEEDLESS TO SAY BUT JUST TO BE CLEAR, I AM TOTALLY AGAINST 
THIS! 
 
CRISTINE OLSEN 
 

 Name Comment 

15. Dean & 
Kathleen 
Johnston 

From: dean johnston 
Sent: Wednesday, March 02, 2016 5:18 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
Mayor and Councilors, 
  As we can not be at the meeting, my wife and myself want to let you know how we feel about 
this Stein Oil application. 

9 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
9



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

 
1.   Having increased traffic on Pacific Dr with Semi-trucks, other heavy vehicles and cars would 
put the children in our neighborhood in added danger waiting for school buses and when 
playing outside in the nice weather,  
 
2.    Pacific Dr is not wide enough or can handle the large and heavy trucks that would quickly 
break down the road surface.   
 
3.    Having this increased traffic 24/7 also would put a strain on us that live in Pony Ridge.  
Having large heavy vehicles driving in residential is an unsafe idea. 
 
Again, we oppose this application. 
 
Thank you 
 
Dean & Kathleen Johnston 
 
 

 Name Comment 

16. Delores 
Wageman 

From: Lorie Wageman 
Sent: Wednesday, March 02, 2016 11:22 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. application 
 
To whom it may concern: 

I moved into the Pony Ridge community 5 years ago. I fell in love with the remoteness 
of the area and the fact that the only people coming by were residents themselves.  I 
am a senior citizen living alone and love that I feel safe. To my knowledge no burglaries 
have taken place here. Don’t take away my security.   

Not only would this type of business bring in more traffic, but often times brings in 
questionable people that I often see hanging out at these places. Recently I witnessed 
a drug sale at the gas station off of 99 & Fischer Rd.  Once our little hideaway of Pony 
Ridge is discovered I can see the homeless camping along the river behind our 
community.  Hwy 99 has plenty of nearby gas stops within 1 mile in each direction and 
doesn’t need another.   

Does this city have to destroy every acre of native landscape?  Once the landscape is 
destroyed it will be forever. We wonder how come the deer & coyotes and coming 

10 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
10



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

from other areas to feed.   Leave things just as they are, or if this area must be 
developed let it be a business that benefits this community and not add to the decline.  
Thank you.  

Delores Wageman 

 Name Comment 

17. Julie 
Neumann 

Sent: Friday, March 04, 2016 2:30 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
Dear Tualatin City Council Members, 
 
As a teacher in the Tigard-Tualatin school district for the past 21 years, not a day 
passes without the SAFETY of children as my greatest concern.  I am writing to you 
today to voice my concerns and opposition to the Stein Oil Company application to 
place a gas station on the property within feet of the Pony Ridge neighborhood on 
Pacific Drive.   
 
Currently our neighborhood is very safe and peaceful.  If a gas station is placed in our 
backyard, the safety of our children, our vulnerable adult friends living in Angel Haven, 
and the elderly being cared for in the Memory Care facility will be seriously 
compromised.  The safety of the adult drivers going to and coming home from work 
everyday will be seriously compromised.  The gas station promises to create 
dangerous and endless traffic situations at an already unsafe section of Hwy. 99 and 
Cipole.  
  
I appreciate your consideration of my concerns and look forward to meeting with you 
on March 14th. 

 
Sincerely, 
Julie Neumann 
 

 Name Comment 

18. George 
Pongracz 

From: georgepongracz@yahoo.com [mailto:georgepongracz@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Friday, March 04, 2016 3:14 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to stein oil Co.Aplication 
 
I've been living in the pony ridge neighborhood for 13 years. I chose to 
buy her because it was off the beaten path and a very quite peaceful 
neighborhood. I don't want to drive into my neighborhood and see a ugly 

11 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
11

mailto:georgepongracz@yahoo.com
mailto:georgepongracz@yahoo.com


ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

gas station that will bring our property values down and make it more 
difficult to sell our homes. I don't have any children but if I did I 
would be scared to let them play out side because of all the extra 
traffic, loiterers and prowlers entering our neighborhood. It puts our 
children's and seniors health and safety at risk. I would like to see a 
type of business that is more compatible with our neighborhood go in 
instead of a gas station that will just bring unwanted problems to our 
peaceful neighborhood.  
 

 Name Comment 

19. Renee 
Dubarko 

From: Renee Dubarko  
Sent: Sunday, March 06, 2016 1:48 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Annexation for the Stein Oil Gas Station 

To Whom It May Concern:  
 
I am writing to let you know how I feel about you allowing the Annexation of the property in 
Pony Ridge in Tualatin.  We are a quiet close knit community that watch out for each other.  
Right now we feel safe walking around the neighborhood at night but if there is an all night gas 
station there, we will no longer feel safe in our community.   
 
We also have a lot of children that ride their bikes and play in the streets.  We don't have very 
much traffic right now and the parents feel safe allowing the kids to ride their bikes and play in 
the street.  However, if there is A LOT more traffic and people hanging around the gas station, 
The children will no longer feel or be safe in their own neighborhood. 
 
Our property value will decrease immensely!  There are a lot of people who just moved into 
this neighborhood because it is so quiet and safe and now their property values are going to 
drop drastically right after they just moved in.  
 
I would like to ask how you would feel if a gas station was put in right next door to your 
house?  Would you enjoy the traffic all night long?  Would you enjoy the people hanging 
around at all hours of the day and night?  What would you feel if this was put in by your 
children or grandchildren?   
 
We don't have a problem with a business going in there, just one that doesn't cause us to feel 
unsafe and create so much more traffic.  A park for children or dogs would be ideal since it is a 
neighborhood but a 9-5 office would be ok as well.   
 
Please do not allow the Annexation of this business.  There is a card lock station on Tualatin 
Sherwood Rd.  Why do we need another so close?  There are a lot of other vacant lots that are 
not in a neighborhood that they can use for their business just please don't ruin our quiet, 

12 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
12



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

happy neighborhood with this nightmare business. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Renee Dubarko 
 

 Name Comment 

20. Gene and 
ViAnn Austin 

From: Renee Dubarko 
Sent: Sunday, March 06, 2016 11:51 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Company 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Now this is a quiet neighborhood off the beaten path of traffic so we have a low crime 
rate.  Also, just 1.3 miles to the East there is already a Mini Mart and a large gas 
station.  Why do we need another one so close? 

Gene R. Austin and ViAnn Austin 

 Name Comment 

21. Anneke 
Bloomfield 
and Jerry 
Paster 

From: Anneke Bloomfield 
Sent: Saturday, March 05, 2016 7:38 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Stein Oil 

Regarding that Stein Oil wants to put a station on the corner of Cipole.  Please do not put such 
type of business into our quite neighborhood.  It would make it unsafe for the families with 
young childeren living that close.  It would make it uneasy for my evening walks and would 
mess up the traffic for our neighbors unsafe.  There are many more other type of businesses to 
bring to that corner.  But please no constant traffic of big trucks, evening beer buyers, 
cigarette sales and with that most likely drug dealings.  
  
We like to keep our corner of Tualatin quiet and very important, SAFE! 
  
Anneke Bloomfield and Jerry Paster  
 
 
 

13 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
13



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

 Name Comment 

22. Bebee Crow  
Sent: Sunday, March 06, 2016 1:51 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Gas station. 

Hello, 
My name is Bebee Crow and I live on 134th Terrace, Tualatin, Or. 
I am opposed to the gas station and mini mart being proposed to be built on the corner of 
99 w and Cipole road. 
 Right now I feel very comfortable walking my dog at 10 or 11 pm, but I will lose that 
security that I feel if that gas station is in this area. 
I have counted 14 gas  stations on 99 alone, from Costco Tigard thru Sherwood.    WHY 
DO WE NEED ANOTHER ONE??????? 
 
Sincerely 
 
Bebee Crow 

 Name Comment 

23. Kristine 
Koneck 

From: Kristine Koneck 
Sent: Sunday, March 06, 2016 3:10 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Proposed Gas Station adjacent to Pony Ridge 

I would like to add my voice in urging you to change the zoning of the property for the 
proposed Stein Chevron gas station and mini-mart to one more compatible with the 
neighborhood. 
  
I am strongly opposed to the current proposal.  The traffic exit onto Pacific Drive  is not a good 
solution for a street that is not sufficient for the traffic and parking that it currently handles.  
The proposed placement of tanks place the health of our children and senior citizens at risk.  
Many studies show the dangers posed by these chemicals. 
  
I am also very concerned about the loiterers and prowlers that would be attracted to the 
neighborhood.  I work many hours each week to pay my taxes and mortgage.  This will add risk 
to the neighborhood that I am unwilling to bear.   My home was purchased in August, 2015 
because I viewed this neighborhood as a quiet, friendly community.  I am just learning what a 
nice city Tualatin is.  I hate to think about leaving before I’ve had a chance to get settled.  I am 
concerned also about what will happen to property values if this business is placed on that 
property.  As a senior, I can’t afford to have the bottom drop out of the value of my home. 
  
The businesses along Pacific highway are ones that don’t generate a huge amount of traffic 
and are closed after 6 PM.  The neighborhood is quiet and attractive for people to be out 

14 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
14



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

walking dogs, children riding bikes and doing yard week.   
  
Please consider the wishes of the adjacent community.  We want a type of business that is 
more compatible with out neighborhood. 
  
Thank you. 
  
Kristine Koneck 
 

 Name Comment 

24. Chicory Eddy From: Chicory Eddy  
Sent: Sunday, March 06, 2016 9:51 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
Dear Mayor and city councilors, 
 
 I am opposed to the Stein Oil Co. application to build a gas 
station and mini mart on the corner of SW Pacific Dr. and SW Cipole 
because it would be a detriment to this little neighborhood.  This is a 
very quiet and residential neighborhood, and the few businesses currently 
on Pacific Dr. are small, quiet, and standard business hour type 
businesses.   
 
 The plot of land in question is literally a stone’s throw from the 
closest houses.  The constant traffic created by a gas station would 
severely and negatively affect both the amount of noise and the air 
quality (vehicle exhaust and odor of gas/diesel fuel)  in the 
neighborhood.  The 24 hour mini mart would add insult to injury in this 
case, keeping traffic going around the clock.  I am concerned it would 
also attract less than desirable people to the neighborhood in the middle 
of the night.  There are a lot of children and elderly people in this 
neighborhood and I would have serious concern about their safety with the 
dramatically increased traffic on SW Pacific Dr. trying to access the gas 
station/mini mart. 
 
 There is not a need for either a gas station or mini mart in this 
area.  We are so close to many of these businesses in both King City and 
Sherwood. 
  
 A more appropriate use of this land would be another small business 
similar to what is already there.  Something with standard business hours 
and would not dramatically increasing traffic.  Examples would be a 
bicycle shop, computer repair business, pet store, or sports shop (like 
Fleet Feet, Foot Traffic, etc). 

15 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
15



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

 
Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Chicory Eddy, DVM 
 

 Name Comment 

25. Jillian 
Cesena 

From: Jillian Cesena 
Sent: Sunday, March 06, 2016 4:38 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Gas station in pony ridge 
 
I am writing  to voice my opposition and concerns regarding the gas station proposal near the 
Pony Ridge neighborhood in Tualatin. I am a single mother of a teenager and have enjoyed 
raising her in this peacefull secluded neighborhood. I believe firmly that a gas station at the 
end of our street would have changed our experience for the last 10 years. I do not have any 
problem with a business there,  but a gas station is not the appropriate business to be in our 
neighborhood. Please consider carefully the impact you will have on so many people's lives in 
our neighborhood if you choose to allow this gas station to be built. 
Thank you very much for your consideration regarding this decision. 
 
Respectfully,  
Jillian Cesena 
 

 Name Comment 

26. Keith & 
Vickie 
Gearhart 

From: Gearsdad  
Sent: Thursday, March 03, 2016 8:34 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
To our Mayor and all City Councilors, 

Please vote no to the Stein Oil Company’s application to put in a 
gas station/mini mart at the end of my street in the Pony Ridge 
Addition at 18291 SW 135th Terrace.  There is only one narrow road, 
SW Pacific Drive, that is available for access to our already busy 
neighborhood.  With the other businesses that are currently located 
on this access road, the increased traffic and congestion from 
allowing the gas station to be put in would be detrimental and not 
compatible with our neighborhood character. 

 
Again, we would appreciate a NO vote to this application. 
Keith & Vickie Gearhart 

16 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
16



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

 Name Comment 

27. Marie & 
Gregg 
Schapp 

From: Marie Schapp 
Sent: Friday, March 04, 2016 8:24 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
I am writing to oppose the proposed development of a Gas Station on the corner of 
99w and Cipole road that is being proposed by Stein Oil. As a homeowner in the 
neighborhood directly affected by this proposal, I have several concerns about the 
location and nature of this business.   
 
The intersections of Cipole and Pacific where the entrance and exit of the gas station 
are being proposed are not conducive to the kind of traffic that a gas station will bring 
in.  The intersection of 99w and Cipole to get to the gas station is an extremely 
challenging intersection to navigate; several accidents within the last few years 
highlight this.  Adding a soon-to-be busy gas station/convenience store will only further 
add traffic congestion to this already confusing  intersection.    Additionally, this 
community is a family based community with bus stops and young children at play.  
Children and adults are on the corners of pacific daily, and many run for safety due to 
speeding cars.  The addition of a large gas station/convenience store will only create 
an additional traffic burden on an already over-burdened intersection.  
 
Together, our neighbors are working to make Pony Ridge a safe and family friendly 
community.  Many families have bought homes in the Pony Ridge area specifically for 
its family based atmosphere and quiet streets that allow for children to play outside and 
be creative.  Adding a large scale gas station/convenience store to this mix not only 
takes away from this appeal, it threatens the safety of pedestrians and local home 
owners.   The scale of this project is one you would expect on a large highway not near 
a residential community, nor on a street that only allows for smaller vehicles to 
commute to work or take their children to school. 
 
More than 300 people of our small community have asked that the consideration to 
stop the development be accepted by the city. We are open to a more family focused 
establishment that would be conducive to a community full of children vs a busy gas 
station. For example a smaller coffee shop with outdoor play options or park allowing 
for kids to continue their outdoor exploration. Please take this into consideration as you 
make your decision.  Pony Ridge is a family-friendly, livable, diverse community.  It 
does not deserve a twenty-four hour gas station/convenience store in the middle of it.  
We can do better for our city residents, we ask you do better by making the appropriate 
decision in this annexation request. 
Thank you 
Marie and Greg Schapp 
Homeowners 
 

17 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
17



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

 Name Comment 

28. Mary Frost & 
Family 

From: Mary Frost  
Sent: Friday, March 04, 2016 9:47 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Proposed Gas Station/Mini Mart Concerns 
 
Hello to you our City Councilors & our Mayor, 
 
I am sending this on behalf of our household living in the Pony Ridge neighborhood at SW 
134th Terrace, Tualatin with respect to the proposed building of a Gas Station & Mini Mart at 
the corner of SW Pacific Drive and SW Dipole Road by Stein Oil Company.  
 
This lot of land is also boarding Highway 99W, however the entrance & exit points of this lot 
would be directly on SW Pacific Drive. 
 
We have great concern for the negative impact with building a Gas station at this lot for 
several reasons.  
 
**First and foremost, Residential Safety from large vehicles & additional traffic. Any large 
trucks/semi’s would have to use SW Pacific Drive to gain access as the corner from SW Cipole 
is too tight for large rigs … we know, we watch the RV’s come through at the RV business on 
SW Pacific and see how much space there is for maneuvering - not the most spacious of 
corners. Large trucks/rigs would be forced to use the entire road and block traffic just to get 
into or out of the lot. (not exactly fair to the truck driver either to force them use of the road in 
this way & potentially cause accidents due to taking up both sides of the road). We also believe 
a gas station would attract a variety of vehicles and the additional “muffler” and traffic noise 
would greatly impact the neighborhood.  
 
**This stretch of SW Pacific Drive boarders a large family housing area at SW 133rd, SW 134th 
& SW 135th, it also boarders a gated community for 55 & over as well as a facility for assisted 
living / alzheimer’s residents. There are many kids of a variety of ages in the area as  well as 
many folks of all ages & abilities who regularly walk their dogs along the paths in the 
neighborhood including along SW Pacific Drive. Safety for the people who live here and use the 
area is a huge concern of ours. It’s very frightful that a company that doesn’t reside here (nor 
will reside here) want to come in and cause such unsafe situations towards the people who do 
live here. 
 
**Environmental concerns are also present. There is already a business across Highway 99W 
that causes the air in the neighborhood to absolutely stink at times. This is from the product 
they are making/using in the form of bark-o-mulch / landscape materials. It’s bad enough to 
have to endure those smells and now Stein Oil Company are choosing to add to poor air 
quality with the smells of their gasoline/diesel products. I also don’t believe for once instance 
that their fuel products will remain in a clean status for the ground either - I’m very concerned 

18 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
18



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 105 Comment Log 

 
 

 

 

 

about the impact to the ground soil, trees and nearby gardens. 
 
**Way too close to Residents. It is our understanding that for a business such as a Gas Station 
to be in a residential area, that Gas Station would need to have a minimum distance from the 
residences. We have reviewed the maps as we live really close to SW Pacific & SW 134th, so 
we believe that to put a Gas Station at the corner of SW Pacific Drive & SW Cipole Road would 
violate this safety distance. 
 
Our house hold does believe that the corner lot at SW Pacific Drive and SW Cipole Road could 
do with cleaning up and a better use - whether for business or private use. However for the 
sake of the environment and residential safety, we implore you to reject the application by 
Stein Oil Company for our reasons above. 
 
Our household trusts that you, our City Councilors and Mayor, will find an agreeable solution 
to future use of this lot by continuing good communications with the residents of this 
neighborhood. 
 
We appreciate you taking the time to read & include our comments with your decisions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Mary Frost & Family at 134th Terrace Tualatin, OR  
 

   

19 
 

Attachment 105- Comment Log 
19



ATTACHMENT 106 
 

ANN-15-0002:  ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS 
 
 
The subject is a petition for annexation of a property known as the Stein Oil Company 
property and as Tax Lot 1100 on Washington County Assessor’s Map 2S1 21A located 
at 18600 SW Pacific Highway and withdrawing the territory from the Washington County 
Enhanced Sheriff Patrol District and the County Urban Road Maintenance District. The 
applicant is Dave Kimmel, President, PDG Planning Design Group, representing Stein 
Woodburn LLC, owners of the 2.05-acre Tax Lot 1100.  
 
The City Council must find that the annexation conforms to Tualatin Development Code 
(TDC) Objectives 4.050(20) and (21), and the applicable criteria in Metro Code 3.09 and 
Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS; TDC 31.067[6]). The applicant submitted application 
materials that address the annexation requirements (Attachment 103), and staff 
reviewed the application materials and the applicant’s response below. 
 
A. Metro Code, 3.09.050(d) states that an approving entity’s final decision on a 

boundary change shall include findings and conclusions addressing the 
following criteria: 

 
1) Consistency with directly applicable provisions in an urban service provider 
agreement or annexation plan adopted pursuant to ORS 195.065. 

Applicant Response: At this time there are no agreements, pursuant to ORS 
195.065, in place between Tualatin and any service provider. This provision is 
not applicable. 
 
Staff Response: There is no urban service provider agreement pursuant to ORS 
195.065 that applies to the subject property. Therefore, there are no applicable 
provisions of an urban service agreement or annexation plan with which the 
proposed annexation can be reviewed for consistency.   
 
This site is currently located within the Clean Water Services (CWS) boundary 
and will remain in the CWS boundary after annexation. The property will now 
conform to the 2005 Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) and a 2015 
Amendment between CWS and the City as per the agreement.  Currently the site 
is vacant and does not have any utility improvements. The property would be 
served by City water and sewer.  The site is not currently in a parks district, but 
would be served by the City Community Services Department upon annexation. 
The property will be removed from the Washington County Sheriff’s Department 
patrols and will have City police service following annexation. The site is currently 
served by Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue (TVF&R), and fire protection service 
would continue upon annexation.  Sherwood School District 88J will continue to 
serve this property after annexation. 
 

Attachment 106 Analysis and Findings 
1



The criterion is not applicable. 
 

2) Consistency with directly applicable provisions of urban planning or other 
agreements, other than agreements adopted pursuant to ORS 195.065, 
between the affected entity and a necessary party. 

Applicant Response: The subject property is within the portion of Washington 
County that is inside the acknowledged Tualatin Urban Boundary.  Annexations 
within the established Urban Boundary are consistent with Tualatin’s Urban 
Planning Area Agreement with Washington County.  
 
Staff Response: The subject property is within the portion of Washington County 
that is inside the acknowledged Tualatin Planning Boundary reflected by TDC 
Map 9-1. 
 
As required by the Urban Planning Area Agreement (UPAA) between the City of 
Tualatin and Washington County, staff notified the County of this proceeding via 
first class mail.  Annexations within the established Planning Boundary are 
consistent with the UPAA. In accordance with TDC 1.030(6) and UPAA Section 
III(H), the subject property will automatically assume the General Commercial 
(CG) Planning District designation on the effective date of the annexation.  Per 
UPAA Section III(G), the County does not oppose this annexation. 
 
The criterion is met. 

 
3) Consistency with specific directly applicable standards or criteria for 
boundary changes contained in comprehensive land use plans and public 
facility plans. 

Applicant Response: Because the area to be annexed is within the City’s 
Planning Area Boundary and the Metro Urban Growth Boundary, services can be 
provided at the property owner’s expense. This is consistent with Tualatin’s 
Community Plan (Comprehensive Plan).  
 
Staff Response: The applicable standards or criteria in the TDC for boundary 
changes are 4.050(20) and (21). TDC 4.060(1) is also relevant to boundary 
changes.   
 
4.050(20) Initiate annexation of property within the Urban Growth 
Boundary planned for residential development only when petitioned to do 
so by owners of the affected property, including cases involving 
unincorporated “islands” of property surrounded by land annexed 
previously. 
 
The subject property is within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) and will be 
within the General Commercial (CG) Planning District upon annexation. It is not 
planned for residential development. The criterion is not applicable. 

Attachment 106 Analysis and Findings 
2

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/legal/developmentcode/12818/tdc_map_9-1_community_plan_map_0414.pdf
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/planning/urban-planning-area-agreement-upaa-washington-county


 
4.050(21) Territories to be annexed shall be in the Metro Urban Growth 
Boundary.  
 
The subject property is currently within the existing Metro UGB. The requirement 
is met. 
 
4.060(1) A long-range growth boundary is necessary to predict the 
amount and location of urban land needed in the future.  The establishment 
of this boundary provides a framework for the orderly conversion of rural 
land to urban uses. The growth boundary establishes the City’s intent to 
annex and provide urban services to specific properties over a specific 
period of time. Thus, the growth boundary establishes the basis of a City 
annexation policy and provides landowners with some assurance as to the 
City’s intent for the future use of their land. 
 
4.060(1) is not a directly applicable standard or criteria for boundary changes, but 
is relevant.  Because the annexation territory falls within the Urban Planning Area 
that accounts for future growth, the boundary is a long-range growth one, and the 
annexation is in support of the statement contained in TDC 4.060(1). 

 

4) Consistency with specific directly applicable standards or criteria for 
boundary changes contained in the Regional Framework Plan or any 
functional plan. 

Applicant Response:  The Regional Framework Plan and Functional Plan have 
no provisions directly related to annexation. Because services and transportation 
facilities are available in the area and all property within the Urban Growth 
Boundary and Urban Planning Area Boundary were included in calculations for 
facility capacity, housing and employment, annexation is consistent with the 
Framework and Functional Plans.  
 
Staff concurs with the applicant’s response. The criterion is met. 

 
 

5) Whether the proposed change will promote or not interfere with the timely, 
orderly, and economic provisions of public facilities and services. 

Applicant Response: All needed urban services are available as a result of 
previous development surrounding the subject property.  
 
Staff Response: Potable water, sanitary sewer, and stormwater public lines are 
available from SW Pacific Drive and SW Cipole Road. 
 
Pedestrian, cyclist, and vehicular access to the subject property is available via 
SW Pacific Drive, SW Cipole Road and SW Pacific Highway. 

Attachment 106 Analysis and Findings 
3



 
Following annexation and upon development, a developer will be required to 
construct stormwater management improvements for adequate treatment, 
detention and conveyance to serve the subject property.  Staff informed the 
applicant about the availability of public facilities at the annexation pre-application 
meeting. 
 
Future street rights-of-way (ROWs), including their functional classifications and 
prospective alignments, were established as part of the Tualatin Transportation 
System Plan (TSP), which is incorporated into TDC Chapter 11.  State of Oregon 
planning rules stipulate that the TSP must be based on the current 
comprehensive plan land use map and provide a transportation system that 
accommodates the expected 20-year growth in population and employment that 
will result from implementation of the land use plan.  (The Tualatin Community 
Plan, which is Chapters 1-30 of the TDC, is the Tualatin comprehensive plan, 
and TDC Map 9-1 Community Plan Map is the comprehensive plan land use 
map.)  Although actual alignment of roadways may be negotiated during 
development review, the general capacity needs and the associated alignments 
of the Tualatin transportation system have been established and planned for via 
the TDC.  (Any existing and future local streets, collector or arterial roads, or 
highways or expressways that are in the general vicinity of the subject property 
have been established as part of the TSP.) 
 
The general alignment and potential functional classification of such streets and 
roads can be found in TDC Figure 11-1 Functional Classification and Traffic 
Signal Plan and 11-3 Local Street Plan.  Though the annexation itself affects no 
public street needs, the City determines that because the street and road 
network and vehicular capacity planning has already been established as part of 
the TSP, future development will not interfere with the provision of this type of 
service in the area.  The ability of the transportation to serve development on the 
subject property and the need for street improvements to serve this property 
would be determined in a land use process upon proposal of development. 
 
The annexation process addresses the orderly provision of services and the 
adequacy and suitability of existing improvements on the subject property for 
existing and future development, as well as conformance with the Tualatin 
Development Code (TDC) and Tualatin Municipal Code (TMC).  

 
Staff finds that because the subject property can be served by these public 
facilities, the annexation will not interfere with the timely, orderly and economic 
provision of public facilities and services. 
 
The criterion is met. 
 

Attachment 106 Analysis and Findings 
4

http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/tdc-chapter-11-transportation
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/figures
http://www.tualatinoregon.gov/developmentcode/figures


6) If the proposed boundary change is for annexation of territory to Metro, a 
determination by the Metro Council that the territory should be included in the 
Urban Growth Boundary shall be the primary criterion for approval. 

Applicant Response:  Not applicable because the subject property is already 
within the Metro jurisdictional boundary. 
 
Staff Response: Because the subject site is already within both the Metro 
Service District Boundary and UGB, the criterion is not applicable. 

 
7) Consistency with other applicable criteria for the boundary change in 
question under state and local law. 

A traffic impact analysis addressed the Transportation Planning Rule Oregon 
Administrative Rule 660-012-0060.   
 
Applicant Response:  A Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) is required for the 
proposed development, since annexation of the subject property into the City of 
Tualatin will result in a change of zoning.  The TPR is intended to ensure that the 
transportation system is capable of supporting possible increases in traffic 
intensity that could result from changes to adopted plans and land use 
regulations.  The applicable portions of the TPR are quoted in italics below, with 
responses directly following. 
 
660-012-0060 
Plan and Land Use Regulation Amendments 
(1) If an amendment to a functional plan, an acknowledged comprehensive plan, 

or a land use regulation (including a zoning map) would significantly affect an 
existing or planned transportation facility, then the local government must put 
in place measures as provided in section (2) of this rule, unless the 
amendment is allowed under section (3), (9), or (10) of this rule. 
… 

(9) Notwithstanding section (1) of this rule, a local government may find that an 
amendment to a zoning map does not significantly affect an existing or 
planned transportation facility if all of the following requirements are met: 

(a) The proposed zoning is consistent with the existing comprehensive 
plan map designation and the amendment does not change the 
comprehensive plan map; 

(b) The local government has an acknowledged TSP and the proposed 
zoning is consistent with the TSP; and 

(c) The area subject to the zoning map amendment was not exempted 
from this rule at the time of an urban growth boundary amendment as 
permitted in OAR 660-024-0020(1)(d), or the area was exempted from 
this rule but the local government has a subsequently acknowledged 
TSP amendment that accounted for urbanization of the area. 

 

Attachment 106 Analysis and Findings 
5



The proposed zoning is consistent with the existing comprehensive plan map 
designation and will not change the comprehensive plan map.  The City of 
Tualatin’s zoning map indicated that the subject property is outside the city, but is 
included in the planning area and is designated has having future CG zoning.  
Tony Doran and the City of Tualatin have confirmed that the proposed zoning is 
consistent with the acknowledged TSP.  The annexed property was not 
exempted from this rule upon amending the urban growth boundary. 
 
Based on the analysis, the proposed zone change is in conformance with the 
City of Tualatin’s Comprehensive Plan, and the levels of development allowable 
under the proposed CG zoning were already included in the City’s planning 
model and the Transportation System Plan.  Accordingly, the City of Tualatin 
may find that the proposed zone change does not significantly affect an existing 
or planned transportation facility, and the Transportation Planning Rule is 
satisfied. 
 
Conclusions 
Based on the operational analysis, the study area intersections are projected to 
operate within ODOT, Washington County, and City of Tualatin performance 
standards through year 2017 with or without full build-out of the proposed 
development.  At the year 2035 planning horizon, the unsignalized intersections 
are projected to continue to operate acceptably either with or without the addition 
of site trips from the proposed zone change.  The signalized intersection of SW 
Pacific Highway at SW Cipole Road is projected to operate with volumes 
exceeding capacity during the peak hours. 
 
Based on the queuing analysis, the projected 95th percentile queues at the study 
are intersections are provided adequate vehicle storage space and queues are 
not projected to back up to adjacent intersections.  Therefore, no queuing-related 
mitigations are recommended. 
 
Left-turn lane warrants are not projected to be met for any of the study area 
intersections along SW Pacific Drive under any of the year 2017 analysis 
scenarios. 
 
Right turn lane warrants are projected to be met for the proposed right-in site 
access along SW Pacific Highway under 2017 build-out conditions. 
 
Due to insufficient main and side-street traffic volumes, traffic signal warrants will 
not be met for any of the unsignalized study area intersections under any of the 
year 2017 analysis scenarios. 
 
Based on detailed analysis, adequate sight distance is projected to be available 
for the proposed site access along SW Pacific Drive.  No sight distance 
mitigations are necessary or recommended. 
 

Attachment 106 Analysis and Findings 
6



Based on the most recent five years of crash data at the study area intersections 
crash rates are relatively low, crash severity was relatively low, and no significant 
crash patterns are evident.  The crash data does not appear to be indicative of 
any significant safety hazards.  Accordingly, no safety mitigations are 
recommended. 
 
Based on the analysis, the proposed zone change is in conformance with the 
City of Tualatin’s Comprehensive Plan, and the levels of development allowable 
under the proposed CG zoning were already included in the City’s planning 
model and the Transportation System Plan.  Accordingly, the City of Tualatin 
may find that the proposed zone change does not significantly affect an existing 
or planning transportation facility, and the Transportation Planning Rule is 
satisfied. 
 
Staff Response:  The discussion and findings provided by the applicant are 
generally with consistent with staff’s review.  The General Commercial (CG) 
planning district and the potential uses were already included in the City’s 
planning model and the Transportation System Plan.  Staff finds that the 
proposed zone does not significantly affect an existing or planned transportation 
facility, and the Transportation Planning Rule is satisfied.  The area in which staff 
has a different view is the assertion of a zone change.  The Oregon Department 
of Transportation views this property as changing from its current status under 
County zoning as FD-10 (Future Development 10-acre District) to a proposed 
zone of General Commercial upon successful annexation.  Neither the City nor 
the applicant is proposing a Plan Map Amendment as part of this application.  If 
the annexation is successful then the property will assume a predetermined 
Planning District of General Commercial.   
 
The Transportation Planning Rule is satisfied.  
 
Applicant Response: No other criteria have been determined to be applicable.  
 
Staff Response: Two other items in Oregon Revised Statues Chapter 222 City 
Boundary Changes; Mergers; Consolidations and Withdrawals apply to 
annexations.   
 
 
ORS 222.111(1) states, “When a proposal containing the terms of 
annexation is approved in the manner provided by the charter of the 
annexing city or by ORS 222.111 to 222.180 or 222.840 to 222.915, the 
boundaries of any city may be extended by the annexation of territory that 
is not within a city and that is contiguous to the city or separated from it 
only by a public right of way or a stream, bay, lake or other body of water. 
Such territory may lie either wholly or partially within or without the same 
county in which the city lies.” 
 

Attachment 106 Analysis and Findings 
7



The subject property is not currently within a city and is contiguous to Tualatin 
city limits on all sides. 
 
This requirement is met. 

 
ORS 222.520(1) states, “Whenever a part less than the entire area of a 
district named in ORS 222.510 becomes incorporated as or annexed to a 
city in accordance with law, the city may cause that part to be withdrawn 
from the district in the manner set forth in ORS 222.120 or at any time after 
such incorporation or annexation in the manner set forth in ORS 222.524. 
Until so withdrawn, the part of such a district incorporated or annexed into 
a city shall continue to be a part of the district.” 
 
The subject territory is in the Washington County Enhanced Sheriff Patrol District 
and the Washington County Urban Road Maintenance District.  As part of this 
annexation, the subject territory will be withdrawn from the Enhanced Sheriff 
Patrol District and the Urban Road Maintenance District.  The City of Tualatin will 
provide police services.  Because the proposed boundary change is consistent 
with state and local law, the requirement is met. 
 
The criterion is met. 
 

B.   Metro 3.09.050(g) states that, “Only territory already within the defined Metro 
Urban Growth Boundary at the time a petition is complete may be annexed to the 
city or included in territory proposed for incorporation into a new city.” 
 
The subject property is currently within the Metro UGB and was so at the time the 
petition for annexation was filed on September 21, 2015. 
 
The requirement is met. 
 
C.   Conclusion 
 
Based on the application and the above analysis and findings, the approval criteria of 
Metro Code 3.09.050(d), the Tualatin Development Code, and Oregon Revised Statutes 
are met.  

Attachment 106 Analysis and Findings 
8



 
Annexation Public Hearing 

ANN15-0002 
18600 SW Pacific Highway 

 City Council 
March 14, 2016 

Attachment 107 Presentation 1



Purpose of Tonight’s Meeting 

• Annexation Request reviewed in a quasi-
judicial evidentiary hearing procedure (TDC 31.077) 

 
• Petition by property owner to annex the 2.05- 

acre subject property 
 

• General Commercial Planning District 
designation 
 
 

Attachment 107 Presentation 2



Vicinity Map 

Attachment 107 Presentation 3



Vicinity Map (zoomed out) 

Attachment 107 Presentation 4



Existing Conditions  
Subject 
Property 

Attachment 107 Presentation 5



Conclusions 

• City Council must find that the annexation 
conforms to Tualatin Development Code, the 
applicable criteria in Metro Code, and Oregon 
Revised Statutes 
 

• Analysis and findings show that the petition 
meets the above criteria. 

Attachment 107 Presentation 6



Summary of Criteria 
• Consistent with Urban Service Provider agreements 

 
• Consistent with Urban Planning Area Agreement 

 
• Property owner initiated 

 
• Availability of public utilities (storm, water, sewer, and transportation) 

 
• Within Metro Urban Growth Boundary 

 
• Contiguous to City boundary 

 
– Analysis and findings show that the petition meets the above criteria. 

Attachment 107 Presentation 7



Steps to Development 

• Site development is subject to an Architectural 
Review land use decision 
 

• If the annexation is approved any permitted 
uses in General Commercial may locate here 
 

• Conditional uses can only locate if they are 
approved by the City Council in a public 
hearing 

 
Attachment 107 Presentation 8



Permitted uses, upon annexation 
General Commercial Uses are defined as: 
• “Uses particularly suitable for  businesses needing direct 

access to the freeway and arterial streets such as:” 
– Automotive services 
– Drive in restaurants and restaurants 
– Car washes 
– Gas stations 
– Motels  
– Sales of building & home improvement materials & supplies 
– Veterinary office or animal hospital 
– Sales of Boats, recreational water, snow and land vehicles 
– Pet Day Care  

Attachment 107 Presentation 9



Questions? 

Attachment 107 Presentation 10



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
1



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
2



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
3



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
4



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
5



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
6



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
7



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
8



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
9



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
10



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
11



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
12



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
13



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
14



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
15



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
16



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
17



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
18



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
19



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
20



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
21



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
22



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
23



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
24



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
25



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
26



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
27



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
28



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
29



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
30



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
31



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
32



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
33



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
34



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
35



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
36



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
37



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
38



Attachment 108 Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016 
39





ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 110 Comment Log #2 

Comments Received as of 
March 11, 2016 

 Name Comment 

1. Kacy  & Matt 
Donovan 

From: Kacy Donovan   
Date: 3/10/2016 12:41 PM (GMT-08:00)  
To: Council <COUNCIL@ci.tualatin.or.us>  
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co Application  
 
I'm writing as a resident of 134th Ter in the Pony Ridge neighborhood. Along with most everyone in 
this neighborhood, we are asking that you do not allow the plans for a gas station/mini mart at 
99W/Pacific Drive/135th Ter to move forward. 
 
My husband and I purchased our very first home here just under 2 years ago. We chose this 
neighborhood because of its seclusion, safety, and close proximity to nature. Adding a gas station 
would erase all of those things. 
 
There are many issues that concern our neighborhood regarding this proposed gas station: pollution 
increase, safety of pedestrians (kids) and drivers due to increased traffic, potential crime increase as a 
result of a 24 hour establishment, decreased home values, and accessibility. Just to name a few.  
 
The entrances and exits are already very limited in this neighborhood, it scares me to think how all who 
live here (Pony Ridge homes, Angel Haven, Senior Living Homes, and Alzheimer's Care) would quickly 
and safely exit if there were ever some type of emergency, accident, leak, fire, etc., at this proposed 
gas station.  
 
Please reconsider developing this land into a gas station and keep our neighborhood safe and family 
friendly.  
 
Thanks for your time, 
 
Kacy & Matt Donovan  
 

 

 Name Comment 

2. Art Doughty From: Art Doughty   
Sent: Thursday, March 10, 2016 11:02 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Stein Oil app. 
 
 As homeowners in Pony Ridge, my wife and I are troubled by the 
intentions of Stein Oil. We are not opposed to annexation, only the 
intended use of the property. We ask that this application be denied at 
this time, in the hope that Stein Oil will alter their plan and then 
reapply with something more in keeping with the tone of our 

1 
 

Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
1

mailto:COUNCIL@ci.tualatin.or.us


ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 110 Comment Log #2 

neighborhood. Another gas station is not needed with several others so 
close by.          Arthur Doughty 

 Name Comment 

3. Andy and 
Katie Stirling 

From: Andy and Katie Stirling 
Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 4:42 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein oil Co. Application 

Dear council members,  

My name is Kathryn Stirling and I am writing you to ask you to please do not vote in 
the gas station. Before 1996 prior to the pony ridge neighborhood being built a gas 
station would of been an ok fit but please consider that is no longer the case. Our 
childrens bus stop is located right in front of where this gas station would be 
increased risk of accidents by drivers loosing control and children getting hurt or 
possibly killed.  A gas station that sells alcohol can contribute to intoxicated people 
whom don't live in our neighborhood causing trouble, we have already had a few 
problems with homeless people living in the blackberry bushes. The smell of gas alone 
is not something I like to smell mix that with the Grimms odor and well this can 
become a very not nice place to live . My third point is that there is a huge increase in 
cancer rates for people who live this close to gas stations. Think of your children and 
grandchildren would you want an increase risk of this. If this was your neighborhood 
would you want a gas station less than 30 feet from your front door? not to mention 
there is a 24hour card lock station meaning that any car or truck that has a card 
locking card can fill up and lets be honest a semi at 2am is not quiet . My last point is 
that scientists have stated we are over date for a 9.0 earthquake no matter what 
codes are put in place a 9.0 earthquake will snap any pipes and tanks will burst we 
will have an instant explosion killing likely all in about 300ft of the gas station 
depending upon the supply at the time. I grew up in NE Portland so I am used to 
several buildings business ect. You would be hard pressed to find a gas station so 
close to homes. Please consider having something going in here like a little 
neighborhood market which will add to the community and will foster childhood 
memories like I remember hanging out with friends on a summer day and walking 
down to the market to get ice cream or a soda ect. Please lets remember what 
Tualatin is and it's historical importance is taken from the Indian word Tuality 
meaning slow,restful and peaceful. If this Gas station is permitted the people of the 

2 
 

Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
2



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 110 Comment Log #2 

pony ridge and Angel haven communities of Tualatin as well as the Alheimers resident 
center will not have a slow restful or peaceful place to call home. I am all for business 
but when it is not good placement it does not help the community it hinders it. there 
are gas station 1 mile down in Tigard and 1.5 mile into Tualatin and 3 gas stations 
located down in Sherwood 1.2 miles away. We don't need another one to add 
pollution so close to the Tualatin wildlife park.  Thank you for your consideration I am 
hopeful you will make the correct choice on this matter and not allow a gas station or 
any other business not suitable for a neighborhood. Please think what if it was me in 
this position would I want to have this here. 

Thank you, 

Kathryn Stirling 

 Name Comment 

4. William 
Forste 

From: William Forste 
Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 4:43 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
Dear Councilors and Mayor 
 
I oppose the building of the gas station/mini mart due to the possible health risks, 
traffic congestion, safety issues, and lower property values that it is likely to cause. 
I have lived in this development for about 12 years now. It has been a nice small 
quiet community but I am concerned that by building this particular kind of 
business that will drastically change, and I probably would relocate if this went 
through. I would ask the council to consider a business or a playground that would 
better reflect the neighborhoods character. 
 
Thank you, 
 
William Forste  
 
 
 
 
 

 Name Comment 

5. Jeffrey & From: Sonja Stobie 

3 
 

Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
3



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 110 Comment Log #2 

Sonja  Stobie Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 3:42 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 

Dear Mayor Ogden and City Councilors: 

We have been residents of Tualatin for 20 years and don’t get involved politically; except for 
voting. 

 However, currently a proposal is under consideration by you, the governing body of Tualatin, 
to allow Stein Oil Co. to construct a gas station/mini-mart on the corner of S.W. Cipole Road 
and S.W. Pacific Hwy (99W). 

 We believe that this type of business would alter the character of our otherwise quiet and 
low-crime neighborhood. 

 We also feel that underground fuel tanks pose both a fire and a bio-hazard danger to the 
neighborhood. 

 Please consider a different type of business establishment that would be more compatible 
with our neighborhood character. 

 Thank you for your attention regarding this matter. 

 Respectfully, 

Jeffrey and Sonja Stobie 
 

 Name Comment 

6. Karen S. 
Smith 

Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 2:05 PM 
To: Council 
Cc: karens365 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co application 
 
I am a retired resident /homeowner of Angel Haven Manufactured Home Park.  The 
proposed Chevron gas station with attached 24/7 mini mart will have a marked impact 
on this park and the surrounding neighborhoods.  That impact can only be guessed at 
for the current time but here are my thoughts. 
  
The entrance/exits should be located from either/or SW Pacific Hwy (99W) or Cipole 
Rd with no exit/entrance traffic from SW Pacific Dr. which is a narrow street handling 
the traffic of several small businesses, deliveries to said companies plus residential 
traffic which includes school buses several times a day.  It is not built to handle 
anything more than that and then only because most of the traffic is early morning and 
later afternoon.  One would hope it is not expected to handle more than this. 

4 
 

Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
4



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 110 Comment Log #2 

  
Also under consideration should be some form of sound blocking behind this 
proposed business, preferably along SW Pacific Dr. where it would be most 
appropriate and needed.  This type of business is going to bring with it an increase in 
noise pollution, light pollution and the inevitable pollution from vehicles whether it be 
from dust or vehicle emissions and protection for the residents should be foremost on 
the Councils minds.  We all have invested our time and money in our homes and do 
not wish to have this type of business put a negative impact on our lives. 
  
I cannot fathom how the Council could consider this business to fill any kind of need, 
there is a full service Chevron station 1.5 miles south on 99W and several other 
stations within a 1-2 mile radius, all on 99W. 
  
There are many other types of businesses that would be a better match for this type of 
mixed environment, residential/small business and it is my hope you would consider 
all other (or preferably none) before allowing this gas station to be built. 
  
Respectfully submitted for your consideration 
  
Karen S. Smith 
 

 Name Comment 

7. Janine 
Wilson 

From: Janine W  
Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 2:15 PM 
To: Council 
Cc: ponyridgetualatin@gmail.com 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application  
 
I am a resident of Pony Ridge, just 8 houses from the proposed gas 
station. To my knowledge, the City has never allowed a gas station/ mini 
mart to be constructed adjacent to single family homes. There is a lack 
of land space to place adequate land use and/or landscape buffers 
between the Stein development and the neighborhoods of Pony Ridge and 
Angel Haven.   I will be prepared to list several other conflicts when I 
address the Council at the hearing on 3/14. Thank you for you time. 
Janine Wilson 
 

 Name Comment 

8. Andy Wilson From: andy   
Date: 3/9/2016 5:52 PM (GMT-08:00)  
To: Council <COUNCIL@ci.tualatin.or.us>  
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application  
 
Members of the Council, 
 

5 
 

Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
5

mailto:ponyridgetualatin@gmail.com
mailto:COUNCIL@ci.tualatin.or.us


ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 110 Comment Log #2 

I am a resident of Pony Ridge on, about 500 feet north of the proposed gas station site.  
 
My concerns are to the traffic and livability that a service station/mini-mart will have on my quality of 
life and daily routines.  I have seen the application and included traffic study, and am of the opinion 
that the conclusions understate or ignore real-life scenarios.  Putting a human face on things, imagine 
600 cars and trucks going through the same stop sign and signal you do, and at the same times.  It will 
be a miserable experience, repeated day after day.   
 
Please think about the daily life of the residents of Tualatin when making your decisions.   Government 
leads by improving the lives of its citizens, not by blindly following rules without thought to the effects 
and consequences.   
 
Thank you, 
Andy Wilson 
 

 Name Comment 

9.  Michael  
Drlik 

From: Michael Drlik  
Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 11:24 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
Hello, 
I live in Pony Ridge and I am opposed to the building of a gas station by Stein Oil 
Company. The negative impact that this type of business will have on our 
neighborhood will be due to increased traffic, health issues as well as property values 
and the ability of home owners to sell their property, should they ever choose to.  

  
Pacific Drive or Old State Hwy 99W is technically not considered a standard 

road due to its width, which falls 9 feet short of what is considered a normal street. 
When cars are parked along either side of the street, it is difficult for two cars, coming 
from opposite directions, to safely pass each other. If a gas station were to be built at 
the end of this street, it goes without saying that many more cars would travel along 
this path. In addition, it has been shown that proposed construction plans include cars 
from Hwy 99 (southbound traffic) entering the gas station complex from a hard right 
turn drive way, then up an embankment. There is no mention of a freeway off-ramp-
style lane to be constructed, which would allow cars that want to enter the gas station, 
a chance to slow down in order to make this right hand turn. Vehicle speeds along this 
stretch of Hwy 99 are usually in excess of 60 mph. I believe that the posted speed is 
45-55 mph but I know from watching and driving this segment myself that usually cars 
are going a bit faster than the posted speed. I anticipate an increase in traffic 
collisions, should a gas station be build here as currently designed without this slow 
down turning lane included. 

  
Living so close to a facility that stores and dispenses a product which contains 

benzene is extreme harmful to humans. Benzene is a carcinogen, which has been 
known to greatly increase the risks of leukemia. Several homes in the Pony Ridge 
neighborhood will be within 25 YARDS of the proposed gas station. There simply is 

6 
 

Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
6



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 110 Comment Log #2 

not enough of a buffer zone between the gasoline storage tank and current 
residences. In addition, the Tualatin River behind the Pony Ridge neighborhood is 
within 500 yards of the proposed gas station. If any gasoline from the storage tank 
were to seep into the ground water, this could lead to contamination of the river, 
affecting all residents and businesses located along its path. As most of you probably 
already know, this water would eventually join with the Willamette River in Oregon 
City. 

  
It has been brought to the attention of several homeowners, that FHA lenders 

will not finance a home that is within 1000 feet of a gas station. This means that ALL 
BUT 27 HOUSES in Pony Ridge will only be sellable to a buyer who pays cash or 
goes through a lender other than FHA, that WILL finance a home that is this close to a 
gas station. Pony Ridge consists of 178 houses. 85% of these will NOT be 
financeable by FHA loans.  

  
I encourage the Stein family to build an alternate business on this property that 

could include a convenience store and/or coffee establishment- anything short of a 
gas station facility. Other businesses along Pacific Drive include an RV dealership, a 
landscaping service company and a used car lot. The land at the corner of Cipole and 
Pacific Drive should only be zoned for light commercial use. I would really like to see a 
park for kids and pets from our neighborhood to enjoy but this wouldn’t make the land 
owners any money so that’s a mute point. Perhaps the City of Tualatin could buy this 
land and build such a park here? 
  
Thank you, 
Mike Drlik 

 Name Comment 

10. Jennifer 
Thomas 

From: Jennifer Thomas  
Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 10:20 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
Dear Mayor Ogden, Councilors Beikman, Brooksby, Bubenik,Davis, Grimes & 
Truax, As a relative newcomer to the Pony Ridge neighborhood I am 
compelled to express my strong opposition to the service station being 
proposed by Stein Oil. As a grandmother on the brink of retirement I not 
only worry about the devaluation of my property, which will surely occur 
if this development goes forward, but also my safety and that of my 
small grandchildren. Please protect our citizens by opposing this 
development and selecting one more appropriate for this "little gem" of 
a neighborhood. The impact a 24 hr. service station and mini-mart will 
have on us will be devastating. We are all proud citizens of Tualatin, 
one of America's Best Cities. I beseech you to stand with us and protect 
us from this potentially harmful proposal. 
Respectfully yours, 
Jennifer Thomas 
 

7 
 

Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
7



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 110 Comment Log #2 

 Name Comment 

11. Jordan Doyle From: Jordan  
Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 10:18 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application  
 
Good Morning Mayor Ogden, and Council Members, 
 
I am writing this email with concern over the opposed Stein Oil Co. 
Application. My mother moved to Pony Ridge not too long ago. We were so 
excited she found a great hidden location in a great neighborhood with 
many family's around. All of that would change if a gas station/ mini 
mart were to be built on her door step.  
 
The noise would be hard at night with a 24 hour station. I could not 
imagine my children being awaken  at night by trucks parking and filling 
up. The people being drawn to the neighborhood would be very upsetting 
as well. I would always be worried about my mothers safety and the 
safety of family's around her. Crime would go up. I am also very 
concerned about her property value. With a service station going in 
property values would go down. Not to mention the research that has been 
done regarding service stations and the affect on health issues with 
people who live around them. Many peoples developed respiratory issues 
as well as cancer. This would be very devastating  to  our family and 
our mother if this station is allowed.  
 
I ask that you please think about the people who live in this great 
area. And all of the impact it would have on family's and children.  
 
Thank you for your time. 
Jordan Doyle   
 

 Name Comment 

12. Robin 
Stephenson 

 
From: Robin Hebert  
Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 7:32 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposition to the Building of a Gas Station/Minimarts/Card Lock Facility 
 
 Dear Tualatin City Councilors, 
 
I am writing to you to seriously consider delaying the decision for such Gas Station, et al... 
 
Certainly, Stein oil could find another location as huge trucks coming down Pacific ave. 
(behind the rev and proposed station is ludicrous considering the quiet residential area 
including our older citizens from the manufactured homes that go up and down Pacific ave 

8 
 

Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
8



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 110 Comment Log #2 

walking and in their motorized wheelchairs. Pony ridge also has the children who play in the 
area. 
 
I look forward to hearing a delay and denial of Stein oil co. application. 
 
This is your chance to do what's right for the Pony ridge neighborhood. 
 
Sincerely, 
Robin Stephenson 
Tualatin, OR. 97062 
 

 Name Comment 

13. Mahvash 
Saedi 

From: Mahvash saedi  
Sent: Wednesday, March 09, 2016 10:03 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Stein Oil Development at Pacific Dr. 
 
Dear Tualatin City Councilors and Mayor, 
 
We are living in Pony Ridge for 18 years and we wanted to live here for 
the rest of our retirement. With the proposed building of a gas station 
complex so close to our home, will definitely have a serious negative 
impact in our community and in our lives. It will completely change the 
neighborhood fabric in opposite direction. Tualatin is a great city to 
live and we are expecting our city government to keep enhancing the 
livability of its citizens.This type of development will degrade it.  
Devaluation of our property, security of our homes specially at nights, 
traffic at Pacific Drive, etc. are real and worrisome. 
We are respectfully asking that you do what it is in your power to 
change the course of building a gas station in Pony Ridge and allow for 
types of businesses that would preserve and enhance our neighborhood. 
 
Regards,  
Mahvash Saedi  
 

 Name Comment 

14. Patrick 
McGuire 

From: Patrick McGuire 
Sent: Tuesday, March 08, 2016 9:25 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
Dear Mayor Ogden and City Councilors’: 
 
I am opposed to the Stein Oil Application (Request for Annexation) for the reason that it will 
devalue my recently purchased rental home located directly across Pacific Drive at 18460 SW 

9 
 

Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
9



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 110 Comment Log #2 

135th Terrace, Tualatin. The near proximity of the proposed Gas station/Convenience store 
will make it difficult to find tenants to rent my home which could lead to foreclosure as the 
result of my inability to pay the mortgage. It could also result in having to sell the home at a 
substantial loss causing me economic harm. These are just a few reasons why there are no 
gas stations near Tualatin homes.  
 
Please allow a type of business establishment that would be compatible with our 
neighborhood character.  
 
 Sincerely, 
 Patrick E. McGuire 
 

 Name Comment 

15. Jeff & 
Elizabeth 
Watson 

From: Jeff Watson 
Sent: Tuesday, March 08, 2016 5:42 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
Mayor Ogden and Tualatin Council, 
 
We are writing to express our deep concern and frustration over the planned development of 
a 24-hour gas station and mini mart at the entrance to our neighborhood.  The property 
formerly a private residence at 18600 SW Pacific Hwy has been annexed by the City of 
Tualatin and re-zoned in a manner that in no way complements or enhances the livability of 
our quaint, safe and secluded neighborhood.  It does quite the opposite, promoting 
congestion along the only access road leading into our subdivision (Pony Ridge), 24-hour 
movement of big rigs along the same access road (Pacific Drive) running parallel with Hwy 
99W and offering nothing but a complete disruption, eye sore and invitation to prowlers to 
what now is a quiet, safe and detached section of homes.  We are original owners having 
purchased our home in 1996 and there is a reason we bought and have remained here for the 
better part of 20 years.  We have felt safe and secure in our home living in an area 
surrounded by beautiful open space and have benefited from property values that have risen 
modestly over the years.  All of this is at stake.  The nature and character of our 
neighborhood will change forever and we won’t stand for it!! 
 
We are emphatic that this cannot go forward and urge you to consider another use of the 
land to be more compatible with and which complements the Pony Ridge subdivision.  Please 
consider that our neighborhood along with the Angel Haven park is mainly comprised of 
young families and the elderly.  Putting a 24-hour gas station& minimart complex at our 
doorstep may pull in additional tax revenue to the City but will have a lasting and harmful 
effect to many of your residents.  We will be at the hearing on March 14th to voice our 
opposition. 
 
Sincerely, 

10 
 

Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
10



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 110 Comment Log #2 

 
Jeff & Elizabeth Watson 
 

 Name Comment 

16. Robyn Shaw Sent: Tuesday, March 08, 2016 4:19 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
  
Dear Sir or Madam,  
 
First of all, I must thank you for your time and efforts being on the council. I appreciate that you 
take your time and listen to many parties on opposing sides of issues and would only ask that 
you review this correspondence in the urgent light that it is written. 
 
I have lived in the Pony Ridge, Tualatin area for 14 years. I knew that, some day, a business 
would be built on the corner at issue.  There are numerous reasons why the corner is not set 
up for this kind of business and high traffic volume.  The light at Highway 99 for Cipole is 
infamously short and has been the scene of numerous traffic accidents.  I personally, very 
narrowly avoided being struck by a semi truck that ran the red light on Hwy 99 only due to the 
fact that I had hesitated entering the intersection for the known dangerous situation.  The real 
problem is that traffic has a very long distance to build up speed from either direction and, 
needless to say, in a 55 MPH zone, any accident could potentially be a devastating one.  
 
Additionally, we live with high power lines directly over a petroleum line with a pump facility 
nearby on the Tualatin River. I fear that adding very large gas tanks so close to the power lines 
and petroleum pipeline could pose a trifecta of a disaster when there is an earthquake.  
 
I plead that you consider that the development of a gas station at this corner would solely 
benefit a large oil company and bring only many problems to your constituents. There are so 
many other businesses that could be compatible with our little neighborhood! 
 
I pray that you handle this matter as though you lived just one short block away from this 
problem. 
 
Thank you sincerely, 
 
Robyn Shaw 
 

 Name Comment 

17. Barbara 
Ouellette 

From: Barbara Ouellette 
Sent: Tuesday, March 08, 2016 3:30 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Company Application 
 
I ask that the City Council delay the Stein Oil annexation decision until the City can designate 
the parcel of land as a planning district with designated uses compatible with our mostly 
residential neighborhood.  Keep crime out of our neighborhood.  Keep huge numbers of 

11 
 

Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
11



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 110 Comment Log #2 

vehicles including large trucks off our little street.  Keep our neighborhood one we can be 
proud of. 
 
Thank you - Barbara Ouellette 
 

 Name Comment 

18. Marcia 
Church 

From: Marcia Church 
Sent: Tuesday, March 08, 2016 2:40 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. application 
 

Please do not allow a gas station in our residential neighborhood. It 
would cause too much traffic . Children only have the streets to have 
games and other play. Something more compatible, such as a park, would 
be an asset. NO ONE WANTS A GAS STATION HERE! You would not want a 
gas station next to your home. We don't either.  Sincerely, Marcia Church 

 

 Name Comment 

19. Jason 
Campbell 

From: Jason Campbell 
Sent: Tuesday, March 08, 2016 2:12 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Concerns about proposed gas station in Pony Ridge Neighborhood 
 
Dear Councilors, 
 
As a resident in the Pony Ridge Neighborhood (on 135th Terrace), I am writing to express my 
concerns regarding the proposed gas station to be built on the corner of Cipole and Hwy 99. 
Such a business is not compatible with the neighborhood that contains many small children 
and families that would be negatively impacted by the construction of such a large and busy 
commercial facility. 
 
Numerous studies have been conducted regarding both the environmental impact as well as 
property values of the nearby houses, many of which would be within a stone’s throw of the 
proposed facility. 
 
See the following for information from credible sources regarding the environmental impact on 
the nearby families: 
 
http://www.sciencedaily.com/releases/2011/02/110204130315.htm 
 
http://news.discovery.com/earth/gas-stations-are-toxic-neighbors.htm 
 

12 
 

Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
12

http://www.sciencedaily.com/releases/2011/02/110204130315.htm
http://news.discovery.com/earth/gas-stations-are-toxic-neighbors.htm


ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 110 Comment Log #2 

 

 

There are many businesses that our residents would gladly welcome that would not have such 
a negative impact on the cheerful, safe, and quiet neighborhood hundreds of us now enjoy. 
Please consider these alternatives in your adjudication of the zoning and construction issues 
surrounding this project. 
 
Many thanks,  
 
Jason Campbell 
Resident 
 

 Name Comment 

20. Chana 
Frederick 

From: Chana Frederick 
Sent: Tuesday, March 08, 2016 2:03 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
Hello Tualatin City Council members and Mayor; 
 
I wanted to express my deep concern for the Stein Oil application to put a gas station in our 
quiet neighborhood.  I chose this neighborhood specifically because it was away from major 
businesses.  A gas station at this location would make a huge impact on my home specifically 
because it is very close to the proposed location (18439 SW 135th Terrace).  We walk this 
neighborhood with our pets and kids and I fear this would no longer be possible with all the 
traffic into our neighborhood.  Our safety would be greatly impacted.  Not to mention the 
additional noise and light pollution from a 24 hour facility.  The only way to access this site 
would be through the neighborhood which is unacceptable.  We adamantly oppose this type 
of business at this location. 
 
Please consider a more neighborhood friendly business at this location that would have 
limited traffic and hours of operation. 
 
Thank you for your time and consideration of our concerns. 
________________________ 
Chana Frederick, CPE 
 

 Name Comment 

21.   

13 
 

Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
13



Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
14



Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
15



Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
16



Attachment 110- Comment Log #2 
17



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 111 Comment Log #3 

Comments Received as of 
March 14, 2016 

 Name Comment 

1. Susan Diane 
Rudin 

From: Susan Diane Rudin   
Date: 3/11/2016 6:13 PM (GMT-08:00)  
To: Council <COUNCIL@ci.tualatin.or.us>  
Subject: opposed to Stein Oil Co. application  
 
My husband and I  are both opposed to the building of a gas station with a mini mart on 
Cipole and Pacific. This will cause traffic problems with our neighborhood, the smell of 
patrolium, and the volume of people going through our small subdivision. We will be at the 
City Council Annexation hearing on March 14th at our senior Center on Tualatin road. 
 

 Name Comment 

2. Lori 
Birkeland 

From: Lori Birkeland] 
Sent: Saturday, March 12, 2016 9:19 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 

Hello, 

I am writing to express, as a homeowner in Pony Ridge area and as a 14 year resident 
of Tualatin, my opposition for the council to grant the application to Stein Oil Co. for 
the gas station/mini mart.   

My reasons really are simple: 

•       The traffic going in and out of the gas station would increase the proposed 
corner significantly spilling over into the entrances of our neighborhoods.   

•       My understanding is that one day the farm land directly across the corner 
and behind pony ridge will someday be developed by Metro who owns the land be a 
nature walking path.  Having a gas station right in the middle of a scenic nature walk 
and wildlife conservation area does not make sense. 

•       Its bad enough having the smelly Grimms across 99 w where we smell the 
fumes on a regular basis, and having a motor home/camper facility almost in our 
neighborhood without adding a gas station to boot. 

This area is a quiet residential area, not an area for manufacturing and 
industrial.  If Stein and council want to place a gas station then why not 

1 
 

mailto:COUNCIL@ci.tualatin.or.us


ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 111 Comment Log #3 

look more in the industrial parts of Tualatin?  Why must it be right up 
against a residential neighborhood?  

Please if we must have a business establishment on this corner, please 
at least consider a compatible type of business that would lend to the 
enhancement of our neighborhood and mesh with being in a 
residential neighborhood area not continue to push more industrial 
types of businesses.  Gas stations and mini marts attract, sorry for my 
bluntness,  but they attract all sorts of types of people and some not so 
conducive to hanging around our peaceful, family neighborhood.    

Thank you so much for your serious consideration of this proposal and 
let’s take some time and search for a better alternative for this corner 
than a gas station please. 

Respectfully, 

Lori Birkeland 

Pony Ridge Homeowner and 14 year Tualatin resident 
 

 Name Comment 

3. Gerry 
McGuire 

Sent: Monday, March 14, 2016 7:51 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
Dear Mayor and City Councilors, 
 
I am writing to let you know that I am opposed to the application for annexation to Stein Oil. I 
own the home at 18640 135th Terrace in Pony Ridge, which is directly across the street from 
the proposed gas station complex. I understand that that land is slated for commercial use 
but nowhere in this city are homes so close to a gas station. No one wants to live next to a gas 
station – that would be a choice of last resort by the desperate. Property values plummet. We 
just bought this home 1 year ago and rent it out to help fund our retirement. This will cause 
us economic harm. There are more than 10 gas stations on Hwy 99 – another is not needed – 
especially one next to homes with limited access to enter and exit the neighborhood. All 
traffic would come to a standstill. School buses and neighborhood cars would be in gridlock 
with gas station clientele. There would be no flow possible. This reduces the livability of this 
neighborhood to a huge frustration.  
Stein Oil’s other properties are in appropriate areas: Not next to single family homes, Not 
gridlocking traffic, Not where there are already so many stations nearby.  
This is not the use of what should be annexed into the city for this property. 

2 
 



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 111 Comment Log #3 

Please do not destroy this neighborhood, it’s health, it’s peace, or it’s hope. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Gerry McGuire, owner 
 

 Name Comment 

4. Kristin 
Lanning 

From: Kristin Lanning  
Sent: Sunday, March 13, 2016 7:50 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposition to proposed gas station at 135th and Pacific Drive 
 
Greetings, 
 
I plan to attend the meeting on Monday evening to express my concerns regarding the proposed 
development of a gas station on 135th and Pacific Drive.  
Here is a copy of a letter I sent to the Planning Manager on March 2nd which outlines my concerns. I also 
plan on speaking at the meeting to reiterate these points.  
 
Thanks, 
 
Kristin Lanning 
18404 SW 135th Terrace 
Tualatin, OR 97062 
  
March 2, 2016 
  
As I write this, I am 9 months pregnant, due in 5 days, and feeling the contractions and kicks of my little 
boy. We wait out these last few days in eager anticipation of his arrival, our first child and the first 
grandchild on my husband’s side. We moved to the Pony Ridge neighborhood about 2.5 years ago with 
the specific purpose of filling our 3-bedroom house with our children-to-be, and are so thrilled to live in a 
neighborhood that is filled with young families, safe streets, and a developing community.  
  
My reason for writing this letter is simple: I have serious concerns about the health risks involved with the 
proposal to annex and develop the property located at 18600 SW Pacific with a gas station. There are a 
variety of reasons of why this specific type of business will disrupt our neighborhood—from noise, light, 
and air pollution to environmental impact on nearby nature to lowering property value—but my biggest 
concern is for the health and safety of my son and my family. 
  
According to the American Cancer Society, which reviewed a number of studies related to this issue, 
children living near gas stations have a quadrupled risk of developing leukemia. Adults also have 
an increased of two types of leukemia and other blood-related cancers. This risk is related to high levels 
of exposure to the chemical benzene, which is found in high concentrations near gas stations for a variety 
of reasons that are not manageable or controllable by gas station companies. The use of a card lock 
system at this particular development, and the consequently unmonitored refueling, increases this risk 
further. 
  
In addition to the American Cancer Society, the health risks of benzene are well documented by other 
agencies as well, including The International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC), which is part of the 
World Health Organization (WHO).  Based on a review of the evidence, the IARC determined that 

3 
 



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 111 Comment Log #3 

benzene is linked to severe illnesses including three types of leukemia, multiple myeloma (a 
blood cancer) and non-Hodgkin lymphoma. Additionally, the National Toxicology Program (NTP), 
which is a joint venture with the National Institutes of Health, Centers for Disease Control, and the Food 
and Drug Administration, has classified benzene as a carcinogen—that is, a chemical known to cause 
cancer, as does US Environmental Protection Agency. 
  
Locating a gas station near a residential area exposes families to benzene on a daily, long-term basis, 
and the health risks of benzene are known to increase with the length of exposure. Due to these risks to 
human health, studies recommend that gas stations be located at least 100 meters from residential 
areas, particularly in areas with vulnerable people such as children and older adults. My home is located 
four houses away from the proposed development and within the 100 meter zone, as are at least 15 
other families. 
  
Leukemia is the most common form of childhood cancer, and occurs most often in children ages 2 to 4. 
For children in this age range, the cancer survival rate is only about 50%.  The link between benzene 
exposure from gas stations and childhood leukemia has been demonstrated by multiple studies, a very 
small sample of which is included at the end of this letter.  
  
In a few days, my son will become Tualatin’s youngest and among its most vulnerable residents. The 
idea of putting a gas station near my home and the homes of my neighbors is both terrifying and 
heartbreaking for me and my husband. We will live daily with the knowledge that our son—the little boy 
whose little face I have not yet seen—has a very real, elevated risk of developing a devastating form of 
cancer, and one in which his chances of survival are only 1 in 2. 
  
Though I do not expect a company such as Stein Oil to consider or care about these risks and the impact 
of their actions on the surrounding community, my sincere hope is that the City of Tualatin will take action 
to protect the health and safety of its citizens, especially the most vulnerable ones. There are actions the 
city can take, such as rezoning this lot to reflect its proximity to residential homes.  
  
I cannot stress enough how this development poses an irreversible and life-threatening impact on my 
family and the other families in my neighborhood. I am including with my letter one of the original 
ultrasound pictures taken of my son – an irreplaceable keepsake for me that I hope will represent and 
remind you of how my son’s life is also irreplaceable. 
  
Thank you for your time and consideration. 
  
Sincerely, 
   
Kristin Lanning 
 
References:  
  
EPA website: Underground Storage Tank Program: http://www.epa.gov/oust/aboutust.htm  
  
American Cancer Society: Benzene: www.cancer.org 
  
Center for Disease Control and Prevention: Facts about Benzene: 
http://www.bt.cdc.gov/agent/benzene/basics/facts.asp  
 
Study published in Epimideology Journal (2003): "Leukemia risk associated with low-level benzene 
exposure." http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/14501272 
   

4 
 

http://www.epa.gov/oust/aboutust.htm
http://www.cancer.org/
http://www.bt.cdc.gov/agent/benzene/basics/facts.asp
http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/14501272


ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 111 Comment Log #3 

Study published in Published by Occupational Environmental Medicine (2009): “Acute childhood 
leukaemia and residence next to petrol stations and automotive repair garages: the ESCALE study 
(SFCE).”  http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/19213757 
  
Article published by Johns Hopkins University (2014): “Small Spills at Gas Stations Could Cause 
Significant Public Health Risks Over Time” http://www.jhsph.edu/news/news-releases/2014/small-spills-
at-gas-stations-could-cause-significant-public-health-risks-over-time.html) 
  
Sierra Club report (2004): “Leaking Underground Storage Tanks: A Threat to Public Health & 
Environment” http://www.csu.edu/cerc/documents/LUSTThreattoPublicHealth.pdf  
  
Article published by Front Porch (2015): “Risks of Benzene Emissions from Gas Stations” 
http://frontporchstapleton.com/article/risks-benzene-emissions-gas-stations/ 
  
Article published by Scientific American (2009): “Is it safe to live near a gas station?” 
http://www.scientificamerican.com/article/is-it-safe-to-live-near-gas-station/ 
  
Article published by Discovery News (2011): “Gas stations are toxic neighbors” 
http://news.discovery.com/earth/gas-stations-are-toxic-neighbors.htm  
  
Article published by ScienceDaily (2011): “Gas stations pollute their immediate surroundings, Spanish 
study finds” Gas stations pollute their immediate surroundings, Spanish study finds  
 
 

 Name Comment 

5. John & Kathy 
Maher 

From: John & Kathy 
Sent: Sunday, March 13, 2016 7:40 PM 
To: Council 
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. Application 
 
Dear Council Members, 
  
I have sent several e-mails to you and the Mayor since learning about Stein Oil Co. purchasing 
the land on the corner near my home and their plans to build a fuel station on it.  As you 
know, my wife and I are very much opposed to this plan for all of the reasons I have given you 
in the past and will not repeat here.  After conversations with our Senator and Representative 
they agree with us that they would not want a gas station this near to their homes either as 
I’m quite sure that none of you would stand for it to be built anywhere near your homes. 
  
My comment to you today concerns the annexation and zoning of this property.  As you 
know, it is currently zoned general commercial.  This zoning decision occurred years ago 
before our housing development was even built.  I am asking that the zoning be revisited and 
a more appropriate zoning for this land be applied.  When the city gave this property the 
current zoning designation the property did not even belong to the city.  The conditions 
surrounding this land have changed enormously since the property was zoned and it would 
only make sense to me that now that the city wants to annex the land that the zoning should 
be reviewed and updated according to the current environment.  This seems to be a very 

5 
 

http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/19213757
http://www.jhsph.edu/news/news-releases/2014/small-spills-at-gas-stations-could-cause-significant-public-health-risks-over-time.html
http://www.jhsph.edu/news/news-releases/2014/small-spills-at-gas-stations-could-cause-significant-public-health-risks-over-time.html
http://www.csu.edu/cerc/documents/LUSTThreattoPublicHealth.pdf
http://frontporchstapleton.com/article/risks-benzene-emissions-gas-stations/
http://www.scientificamerican.com/article/is-it-safe-to-live-near-gas-station/
http://news.discovery.com/earth/gas-stations-are-toxic-neighbors.htm
http://www.sciencedaily.com/releases/2011/02/110204130315.htm


ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 111 Comment Log #3 

basic and responsible action for the city to perform to ensure the safety, health and 
protection of their citizens is being looked out for which is a responsibility we have entrusted 
upon you each. 
  
It is my hope that a more appropriate zoning designation would result from this review and 
that the review, if it is to occur, is not simply a cursory exercise completed simply to be able 
to check a box in the annexation process but rather a comprehensive review that takes into 
account what I mentioned above and is one that is completed with the consideration of what 
is best for your citizens. 
  
Sincerely, 
  
John Maher 
 

 Name Comment 

6. Joyce Fox 
 
Sandy Van 
Vain 
 
Don 
Hodgdon 
 
Gloria & 
Pedro 
Calderon 

From: Joyce Fox  
Sent: Friday, March 11, 2016 10:20 AM 
To: Council 
Subject: Stein Oil Co. Annexation Ann-15-0002  
 

TO:  Tualatin Mayor Lou Ogden                                   FROM:   Tualatin Homeowners 

        Council President Monique Beikman                                      Joyce Fox 

        Councilor Wade Brooksby                                                        Sandy Van Vain        

        Councilor Joelle Davis                                                                Don Hodgdon 

        Councilor Wade Brooksby                                                          Gloria & Pedro 
Calderon 

        Councilor Nancy Grimes  

        Councilor Ed Truax 

DATE:  March 6, 2016                                                         RE:  Stein Oil Co. Annexation Application 

We, the six undersigned home owners, object to proposed Annexation Ann-15-0002  of 
property located at 18600 SW Pacific Hwy, requested by Stein Oil Company, for the purposes 
of constructing a gas station, card lock fueling facility and general convenience store.  We 
have compiled our reasons which are listed below and urge you to vote against this proposal. 

The three proposed buildings would bring three times an increase in vehicular traffic, three 
times an increase in noise levels, and three times an increase in various types of pollution. 

6 
 



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 111 Comment Log #3 

These particular types of businesses would also introduce the negative element of personal 
harm/theft/safety into our community.  

The increase in car and truck traffic on SW Pacific Drive/SW Cipole Road is an objectionable 
concern for us from several standpoints. The first is personal safety for us and other 
residents.  Residents from 133, and 134 and 135 Terrace streets, plus seniors from Angel 
Haven Manufactured Home Park (residents must be 55 yr +) regularly walk with/without 
animals along the sidewalks and along pathways around the SW Pacific Drive. Sherwood 
school buses have regular morning and afternoon stop routes in this area. Children and adults 
bike along this area throughout the day from early morning into evening hours. This drive 
also provides the only access points to the park-like paved community walkway located 
behind Ute Street which is utilized by many people. Tri met has two Pacific Hwy 99 bus stops 
(one north, one south) which are reached via walking along SW Pacific Drive/SW Cipole Rd. 
An increase in vehicle traffic poses a decrease in safety not only to us, but to all of these 
individuals who are our friends and neighbors. 

Employees for Fun Time RV business park along the sides of SW Pacific Drive (even where No 
Parking is posted) during their work hours.  This business is only open weekdays, but the 
three new businesses currently proposed could have 24/7 access not only increasing traffic, 
but also adding congestion from parked vehicles. If “No Parking” was enforced, additional 
parking would then move onto 133 rd & 134, 135th Terrace streets -- in front of private homes 
adding congestion and blocking the view of drivers and homeowners driving in & out of their 
own driveways.  This poses safety issues for children playing and people walking and biking, 
again making our own neighborhood unsafe.   

 An increase in traffic also brings concerns for individual personal safety since people seeking 
rides, requesting money for food & other needs, plus the crimes of theft/robbery/mugging 
are known to increase with these types of proposed businesses.  Needless to say, some of this 
activity will filter directly down our neighborhood streets. 

The large, double axial trucks which utilize card-lock fuel station services, compounded by the 
various types of vehicles driving in & out of a gas station, not only pose traffic problems and 
risks to person safety, but an increase in noise levels on a possible 24 hr. basis.  Our 
neighborhood is known for being a small, quiet residential area tucked off of the busyness of 
Pacific Hwy 99 and our monetary house values reflect those desirable qualities in the real 
estate market. As homeowners we are slowly recovering from a major housing market 
recession, and do not want future increases in our home values to be hindered.  Needless to 
say, we ourselves to do not want to live with the additional noise pollution accompanying the 
operations of these proposed businesses.  

Other types of pollution, which would no doubt increase, would include trash and road side 
litter, accident remaining residue, and gas and exhaust fumes from the operation of not just 
one, but two, gasoline fuel stations. We already live with the strong odors produced from 
Grimm’s Fuel Company located directly across Pacific Hwy 99.  The potential hazards from 
ground and soil contamination also loom large in our objections to these proposed 
businesses.  

7 
 



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 111 Comment Log #3 

One last matter we wish to bring to your attention is probably the most practical and costly 
issue to be addressed. SW Pacific Drive is the only direct access road to-and-from for all of 
our neighborhood resident streets: Streets 135, 134, 133, two entrances/exits for Angel 
Haven and the only entrance/exit for Riverwood (senior residence).  Not only will the added 
congestion caused by these three businesses complicate and prolong driving times from our 
homes, SW Pacific Drive and its three access points from Pacific Hwy 99 are not designed to 
handle such an increase in traffic, especially heavy truck traffic. The north entrance from Hwy 
99 is narrow and twists, and it also presently serves as a Tri met bus stop. Pacific Hwy 99  &  
Cipole Road intersection access already has been the scene of many accidents, and several 
have been fatal.  South bond traffic exiting Pacific Hwy 99  at this intersections does not have 
a right turn lane to allow vehicles safe passage when exiting and turning onto SW Cipole Rd.  
SW Pacific Drive’s remaining exit/entrance further south (to Sherwood) is already 
complicated by limited visibility, payment road angles and other factors which make it 
difficult and unsafe to use.  The need for costly revisions to provide logistic and safer access 
from Pacific Hwy 99, plus upgrading SW Pacific Drive itself, are very apparent and will 
necessitate costly revisions, many constructions delays, and probable acquisition of adjacent 
homeowner properties  for road improvements—something no homeowner wants to 
confront. 

We recognize this area is zoned for commercial buildings; however, we would advocate for 
the addition of businesses with far less vehicle activity. At least consider more residential-
neighborhood-friendly businesses, such as a family restaurant, a coffee shop, or even a drive-
through/dine-in fast food business. 

Thank you for hearing our concerns and we urge you to vote ”NO” on the current proposed 
Annexation Ann-15-0002 of property located at 18600 SW Pacific Hwy 

for the purposes of constructing a gas station, card lock fueling facility and general 
convenience store.   

 

Homeowner:                                   Homeowner: 

Joyce Fox                                  Sandy Van Valin     

18162 SW 133 Terrace             18207 SW 133 Terrace 

Tualatin, Oregon 97062            Tualatin, Oregon 97062 

 

Homeowner:                               Homeowners: 

Don Hodgdon                         Gloria & Pedro Calderon 

8 
 



ANN15-0002 Stein Oil Company 

Attachment 111 Comment Log #3 

 

18210 SW 133 Terrace           18144 SW 133 Terrace 

Tualatin, Oregon 97062             Tualatin, Oregon 97062 

 

9 
 



From: Sherilyn Lombos
To: Aquilla Hurd-Ravich
Subject: FW: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. application
Date: Monday, March 14, 2016 4:30:36 PM

From: Gary Lender 
Sent: Monday, March 14, 2016 2:16 PM
To: Council
Subject: Opposed to Stein Oil Co. application

Dear Sirs,
I am a homeowner, husband and father in the Pony Ridge
 neighborhood.   What makes the area nice is that it is very quiet.
 The only traffic we get through here are the people who live
 here.  If You were to allow this gas station to proceed it would
 ruin the quality of life in our neighborhood. There would be an
 increased flow of traffic. It would entice people to drive down
 our streets. It would also effect the air quality. 
The People of Pony Ridge beg you to not allow this happen. For
 the safety of us and our children. 

Yours truly,
The Lender Family 

Tualatin, OR

Sent from Pepperland

Attachment 112

mailto:/O=CITY OF TUALATIN/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SLOMBOS
mailto:ahurd-ravich@ci.tualatin.or.us


Attachment 113





TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

THROUGH: Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

FROM: Aquilla Hurd-Ravich, Planning Manager
Alice Cannon, Assistant City Manager

DATE: 05/23/2016

SUBJECT: Consideration of Resolution No. 5275-16 Authorizing the City Manager to
Execute an Annexation Agreement and Restrictive Covenant with Stein
Woodburn LLC for Property Located at 18600 SW Pacific Highway (TAX MAP
2S121A, TAX LOT 001100). 

ISSUE BEFORE THE COUNCIL:
Council consideration of Resolution 5275-16 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Annexation Agreement and Restrictive Covenant with Stein Woodburn LLC for Property
Located at 18600 SW Pacific Highway (TAX MAP 2S121A, TAX LOT 001100).

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the Council consider Resolution No. 5275-16.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Stein Woodburn LLC, is the owner of the 2.05 acre tax lot 1100 (Map 2S1 21A) at 18600 SW
Pacific Highway.  The subject property is located in the western portion of the City and is
bordered by Pacific Highway 99W on the eastern boundary, Pacific Drive on the western
boundary, Cipole Road on the southern boundary, and a developed lot in the General
Commercial Planning District on the northern boundary.  The property is currently located in
unincorporated Washington County in the FD-10 Planning District (Future Development 10-Acre
Section 309).  

The Council opened a public hearing on March 14, 2016 to discuss an application for
annexation.  Members of the public, and notably residents near the subject property, submitted
comment letters and petitions prior to the hearing that were not in favor of the applicants
proposed use of a gas station and card lock facility. Although the application and public hearing
was strictly related to the annexation request, the nearby residential neighborhood raised
concerns with a potential use that is permitted in the General Commercial Planning District.  

In response to the public opposition, the applicant made a promise to not develop a retail gas
station or a card lock facility. In response to the applicant, staff worked on an annexation
agreement and restrictive covenant to permanently restrict this use from the property.  The



agreement and restrictive covenant to permanently restrict this use from the property.  The
Annexation Agreement and Restrictive Covenant is attached as Exhibit 1 to Resolution No.
5275-16.  

The restriction in the document states that: 
 

"The Property will not be used as an automobile service station (gas station) or card lock
automobile service stations (card lock gas station)."

This restriction will remain on the property forever regardless of any change in ownership and to
ensure this is the case the restrictive covenant will be recorded on the property.  

OUTCOMES OF DECISION:
Approval of the Resolution authorizing the proposed annexation agreement and restrictive
covenant between the City and the property owner will result in the following:

Authorizes the City to execute the proposed annexation agreement.

When signed by the property owner and the City, the agreement will apply to the property
upon annexation.

Denial of the Resolution will result in the following:

The City will not execute the proposed annexation agreement

The agreement will not be in effect if the property is annexed

ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATION:
The alternatives to the staff recommendation for the Council are:

Approve the Resolution with revisions to the proposed annexation agreement and
restrictive covenant

Do not approve the Resolution

Continue the discussion of the proposed annexation agreement and return to the matter at
a later date

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:
The fiscal year 2015/2016 budget allocated revenue to process current planning applications.
 The applicant has paid the required application fee. 

Attachments: Reso 5275-16 - Annexation Agreement
Exhibit 1 to Reso 5275-16 - Annexation Agreement
Attachment 102- Presentation



RESOLUTION NO. 5275-16  Page 1 of 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  5275-16  

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 
ANNEXATION AGREEMENT WITH STEIN OIL LLC FOR PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT 18600 SW PACIFIC HIGHWAY (TAX MAP 2S121A, TAX LOT 
001100).  

 
   WHEREAS, Stein Oil, LLC (“Owner”) applied to the City to annex 2.05 acres of 
land, located at 18600 SW Pacific Highway (Tax Map 2S121A, Tax Lot 001100) 
(“Property”); and 
 

WHEREAS,  a public hearing was held before the Council on March 14, 2016 and 
continued to May 23, 2016 relating to the annexation of the Property; and 

 
WHEREAS, during the Annexation Hearing, public testimony raised concerns 

about use of the Property as a gas station; and 
 
WHEREAS, during the Annexation Hearing, Owner agreed to not use the 

Property as a gas station and to work with the City to execute an Annexation Agreement; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Owner and City have come to agreement on the term and conditions  

of an Annexation Agreement and Restrictive Covenant to prevent gas station uses at the 
Property;  

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TUALATIN, OREGON, that: 
 
 Section 1. The Council authorizes the City Manager to execute the Annexation 
Agreement and Restrictive Covenant with Stein Oil LLC, which is attached as Exhibit 1 
and incorporated herein. 
 
 Section 2.  This resolution is effective upon adoption. 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of May, 2016. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 
 
BY_________________________ 
                 City Attorney 

CITY OF TUALATIN OREGON 
 
BY       
                      Mayor 
 
ATTEST 

 
BY      
                  City Recorder 
 



ANNEXATION AGREEMENT AND DECLARATION OF 
RESTRICTIVE COVENANT 

Property Address: 18600 SW Pacific Highway 
Tax Parcel ID: 2S121A001100 

This ANNEXATION AGREEMENT AND RESTRICTIVE COVENANT is made 
this ___ Day of _________ 2016, by and between Stein Woodburn LLC,  13001 
Clackamas River Dr., Oregon City, Oregon 97040) (“Grantor”) and City of Tualatin 
(“Grantee”). 

Grantor is the owner of property described in Exhibit A (Legal Description) and 
as depicted in Exhibit B (Map) (“Property”). Grantor has petitioned Grantee to have 
the Property annexed into the City of Tualatin (“Annexation”). As part of the 
Annexation application, Grantor included a conceptual proposal to develop the 
Property with a gas station, card lock gas station and convenience store.  Based on 
public comments submitted by neighbors expressing concern about the gas station 
and card lock, Grantor agreed to the conditions in this Annexation Agreement and 
Restrictive Covenant.  To facilitate this agreement and permit the annexation of the 
Property into the City of Tualatin, Grantee and Grantor enter into this Annexation 
Agreement and Restrictive Covenant.  

Grantor, in consideration of Grantee’s approval of the Annexation and the 
covenants, terms, conditions and restrictions set forth in this Annexation Agreement 
and Restrictive Covenant and other good and valuable consideration, receipt of 
which is acknowledged, grants and conveys to Grantee, its successors and assigns, 
forever, a restrictive covenant in the Property as set forth herein. 

A. Restricted Uses: Grantor covenants and agrees that the Property will be held, 
sold and conveyed subject to the following covenants, conditions and restrictions 
forever: 

The Property will not be used as an automobile service station (gas station) or 
card lock automobile service stations (card lock gas station). 

Exhibit 1
to Resolution No. 5275-16After recording return to:

City of Tualatin, Oregon
18880 SW Martinazzi Ave.
Tualatin, OR 97062-7092



B. Grantee’s Approval of the Annexation: This Annexation Agreement and 
Restrictive Covenant is contingent upon Grantee’s approval of the Annexation 
without any additional conditions or restrictions on the type of use allowed on the 
Property, except those applicable conditions or restrictions that apply to the 
General Commercial Planning District on the effective date of the Annexation. If 
Grantee does not approve the Annexation, or approves the Annexation in a 
manner inconsistent with this Annexation Agreement and Restrictive Covenant this 
Annexation Agreement and Restrictive Covenant shall be null and void. Nothing in 
this Annexation Agreement and Restrictive Covenant restricts Grantee from 
imposing conditions or restrictions on the Property in the future through any 
subsequent legislative or quasi-judicial process and decision after the Property has 
been annexed. 

C. Terms and Conditions: The restrictions described in this Annexation Agreement 
and Restrictive Covenant continue in perpetuity. This Annexation Agreement and 
Restrictive Covenant is inheritable and assignable and runs with the land as an 
incorporeal interest in the property enforceable by Grantee, and its successors and 
assigns, against Grantor and its heirs, successors, and assigns. It is the intent of 
the Grantor and Grantee that all statutory common law requirements of a restrictive 
covenant are met in this agreement. 

D. Enforcement and Remedies: Grantor grants to Grantee the right to enforce the 
terms of this Annexation Agreement and Restrictive Covenant. In the event that 
Grantor, its heirs, successors, or assigns violate or breach any such terms, 
conditions or restrictions contained in this Annexation Agreement and Restrictive 
Covenant, Grantee, its successors and any assigns, has all remedies at law and 
equity to stop the violation or breach of this Annexation Agreement and Restrictive 
Covenant. Grantee, its successors, and assigns, by any prior failure to act, does 
not waive or forfeit the right to take actions as may be necessary to insure 
compliance with the terms, conditions, and purposes of this Annexation Agreement 
and Restrictive Covenant.  In the event a claim, suit or arbitration is instituted to 
enforce or interpret this Agreement, each party will bear   its own costs, including 
attorneys’ fees. 

E. Removal: This Annexation Agreement and Restrictive Covenant may be removed 
only by the prior written consent of the Grantee, which must be preceded by a vote 
of the Tualatin City Council authorizing the removal.   

F. Entire Agreement: This Annexation Agreement and Restrictive Covenant sets 
forth all the covenants, promises, agreements, conditions, and understandings 
between the parties---either oral or written relating to Annexation of the Property.  
Except as herein otherwise provided, no subsequent alteration, amendment, 
change, or addition to the terms of this Annexation Agreement and Restrictive 
Covenant shall be binding upon either party unless reduced to writing and signed 
by both parties. 

G. Governing Law:  This Annexation Agreement and Restrictive Covenant shall be 

Exhibit 1
to Resolution No. 5275-16



construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon.  

H. Recording. This Annexation Agreement and Restrictive Covenant must be fully 
executed before passage of the Annexation Ordinance and must be recorded in 
the deed of records for Washington County, Oregon immediately after passage of 
the Annexation Ordinance. 

EXECUTED this ____ day of ____________, 2016. 

___________________________ 
Name  (print or type) 

___________________________     
Signature 

___________________________ 
Date 

STATE OF OREGON ) 
)ss 

County of Washington ) 

On this ____ day of ________________, 2016, before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public, personally appeared  _____________________  and acknowledged the 
foregoing instrument to be their voluntary act and deed. 

Before me: _________________________ 
        Notary Public for Oregon 

My commission expires:_______________ 

CITY OF TUALATIN, OREGON 

By: _______________________________ 
City Manager 

Date: _____________________________ 

STATE OF OREGON ) 
)ss 

County of Washington ) 

Exhibit 1
to Resolution No. 5275-16



On this ____ day of ________________, 2016, before me, the undersigned, a 
Notary Public, personally appeared  _____________________  and acknowledged the 
foregoing instrument to be their voluntary act and deed. 

Before me: _________________________ 
        Notary Public for Oregon 

My commission expires:_______________ 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
By: _______________________________ 

City Attorney 

Exhibit 1
to Resolution No. 5275-16



Exhibit A

Exhibit 1
to Resolution No. 5275-16



Exhibit B

Exhibit 1
to Resolution No. 5275-16



 
Annexation Agreement 

ANN15-0002 
18600 SW Pacific Highway 

 City Council 
May 23, 2016 

1 



Purpose of Tonight’s Meeting 

2 

 
• Consider a resolution authorizing the City to 

enter an Annexation Agreement with Stein 
Woodburn LLC, property owners of 18600 SW 
Pacific Highway 

 
 
 



Background 

3 

• A public hearing opened on March 14, 2016 
 

• Applicant agreed to not use property for a gas 
station or card lock facility 
 

• Council directed staff to work out an 
Annexation Agreement with applicant 
 
 



Vicinity Map 

4 



Vicinity Map (zoomed out) 

5 



Existing Conditions  

6 

Subject 
Property 



Annexation Agreement 

7 

• Staff and the applicant worked on an 
Annexation Agreement and Restrictive 
Covenant  

• Language from document: 
– “The Property will not be used as an automobile 

service station (gas station) or card lock 
automobile service stations (card lock gas 
station).” 

 



Council Action 

8 

• Approval of Resolution authorizes the City to 
execute the Annexation Agreement 
 

• Denial of Resolution will not authorize City to 
execute the Agreement 
 

• Direct staff to continue discussions and make 
changes to the Annexation Agreement 

 



Questions? 

9 


	Agenda
	AI_2139_Proclamation Designating the Week of May 15-21, 2016 as Emergency Medical Services Week in the City of Tualatin
	ATT_Proclamation
	Proclamation
	Proclamation Designating the Week of May 15-21, 2016 as Emergency Medical Services Week in the City of Tualatin

	AI_2138_Consideration of Approval of the Minutes 
	ATT_Council Regular Meeting Minutes of May 9, 2016
	AI_2137_RESOLUTION NO. 5276-16 AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS WITH WASHINGTON COUNTY FOR LIBRARY SERVICES
	ATT_Resolution 5276-16 - WCCLS Agreements
	ATT_PLSA
	Exhibit A.pdf
	Public Library Pool 1


	ATT_Information Network
	ATT_Second Amendment to IGA
	ATT_WCCLS IGA
	AI_2132_Annexation Stein ANN15-0002
	ATT_Attachment 101 - Vicinity Maps
	Attachment 101 Vicinity Maps
	18600SWPacificHighway_PlanningDistricts_SmallScale Zoomed out Vicinity Map

	ATT_Attachment 102- Existing Conditions
	ATT_Attachment 103- Application Materials
	ATT_Attachment 104 - Comments Received at Neighborhood Meeting
	Attachment 104 cover
	Attachment 104 Comments received at Neighborhood developer meeting

	ATT_Attachment 105- Comment Log as of March 7, 2016
	ATT_Attachment 106 - Analysis and Findings
	ATT_Attachment 107 - Presentation
	�Annexation Public Hearing�ANN15-0002�18600 SW Pacific Highway�
	Purpose of Tonight’s Meeting
	Vicinity Map
	Vicinity Map (zoomed out)
	Existing Conditions 
	Conclusions
	Summary of Criteria
	Steps to Development
	Permitted uses, upon annexation
	Questions?

	ATT_Attachment 108- Petition Submitted on February 22, 2016
	ATT_Attachment 109- Second Petition
	ATT_Attachment 110- Comment Log as of March 11, 2016
	Attachment 110 Comment Log #2
	KLanning Letter and Photo 3_7_16
	KLanning Letter 3_7_16
	Photo 3_7_16


	ATT_Attachment 111- Comment Log as of March 14, 2016
	ATT_Attachment 112- Lender Family Comment
	ATT_Attachment- 113 Revised Legal Description and Map
	Revised Legal Description 2S121A - Tualatin Legal2 1_7_16
	Revised Map 2s121a Tualatin2 1_7_16

	AI_2133_Stein Annexation Agreement
	ATT_Reso 5275-16 - Annexation Agreement
	ATT_Exhibit 1 to Reso 5275-16 - Annexation Agreement
	Annexation Agreement and Restrictive Covenant - Stein Edits to City's 04212016 CLEAN
	Attachment 101 Annexation Agreement Restrictive Covenant and Exhibits 5_23_16
	Exhibit A Revised Legal Description 2S121A - Tualatin Legal2 1_7_16
	Exhibit B Revised Map 2s121a Tualatin2 1_7_16


	ATT_Attachment 102- Presentation
	�Annexation Agreement�ANN15-0002�18600 SW Pacific Highway�
	Purpose of Tonight’s Meeting
	Background
	Vicinity Map
	Vicinity Map (zoomed out)
	Existing Conditions 
	Annexation Agreement
	Council Action
	Questions?


